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Chairman’s statement

Chairman’s statement

It is with great pleasure that | introduce Shawbrook’s 2019 Annual Report and Accounts, reviewing the strong
progress we have made throughout the year against both our strategic and financial objectives.

I am pleased to report that the Group has continued to deliver impressive and balanced growth through
supporting our customers’ growth ambitions, achieving both loan growth of 15% and an encouraging 11% year
on year increase in profit before tax to £122.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. This was driven
by an enhanced focus on our small and medium enterprise (SME) proposmons

Business model and strategy

2019 was an important year in the evolution of Shawbrook’s business model and strategy. The Board and
Executive team have worked closely together to agree the strategy that will best drive value for all our
stakeholders, while also ensuring continued development of a safe and sustainable business model.

We have reviewed our various revenue streams with the aim of simplifying the business and to ensure that we

-focus on products where we can support our customers’ needs most effectively whilst generating value for
Shawbrook. A number of changes have been successfully implemented which are detailed in this report,
including the sale of our offshore business, Shawbrook International Limited and the rationalisation of our
Consumer Lending offering and partner relationships.

- The changes provide increased clarity on where and how we will play in our chosen markets, with a greater
focus on the attractive SME segments, where our expert knowledge, judgement and human touch give us a
competitive advantage. These strengthen our business model and give our stakeholders a clear sense of
_ purpose, setting us up for further success as we head into 2020.

Good corporate governance
We firmly believe that good corporate governance provides the foundation for a successful organisation and
in 2019 we continued to evolve Shawbrook’s governance framework. This included commissioning a further
independent Board effectiveness review in 2019 to assess progress made against our -actions from the 2018
review. The review concluded that the Board was effective. Further details of the structure of the review and
its actions can be read in our Parent Company's Annual Report and Accounts.

in October 2019, we welcomed Michele Turmore to the Board as a Non-Executive Director. Michele brings .

" . with her an impressive track record across both retail and commercial banking. Formerly a Chief Operating

- Officer at the SME bank Allica, her insights have been welcomed by the Board and Executive team alike.

Roger Lovering 'David Gagie-and Sally Ann Hibberd stepped down from the Board in 2019 and | would like to
take this opportunity to thank them for their support and dedication to the Group and wish them well for their
future endeavours. A : _ -

Further information about our stakeholders and how the Board and Group engaged with them can be found
on pages 11 to 13 : . .

Our approach to sustalnabmty .

We understand that in order to deliver truly sustainable returns, the Group’s social, environmental and
economic impact must be embedded into our day to day business activity. Our approach to sustalnablllty is
dehvered through four key segments environment, community, marketplace and workplace.

- Investing in our employees '
 Now with more than 800 talented Shawbrook employees, the culture in which our people work remains critical
to our success. We. know that to attract and maintain this high-level talent, we must remain committed to
- prioritising employee satisfaction and development whilst maintaining a positive workplace culture.

~ Key to our culture is inclusion and diversity, ensuring we access the widest talent pool available and that our

- employees feel welcome and included and can bring their ‘whole-selves’ to work. In 2019, we introduced

several initiatives including an employee-led inclusion network and a new employee mentoring programme.
~ These have the added benefit of bank wide collaboration by broadening internal networks.

- Shawbrook Bank Limited . Annual Report and Accounts 2019 ' . 4



Chairman’s statement

Chairman’s statement (continued)

Looking ahead :
‘| would like to take this opportunity to extend my thanks to all Shawbrook’s employees as well as the Board
and Executive team for their continued commitment to the Group. We have made extensive headway from
where we were a year ago and it would not have been achievable without their tireless support.

| see an exciting future for Shawbrook, as we continue to closely align our model to support our customers and
deliver our specialist proposmons in line with our ambition to be recognised in our markets as the specialist
SME lender of choice. .

Since the year end, the Covid-19 outbreak has been classified as a pandemic by the World Health
Organization. We have been monitoring its impacts closely and have taken all precautions as advised by the
government to ensure the safety of our employees, whilst ensuring- continuity of operations. We have
implemented our Incident Management Plan within the business and are contlnually assessmg the impacts -
against our operatlng model and future business plans. ‘

At this stage, we are satisfied with how the Group has responded to this unprecedented event, with the majority
~ of our staff now working from home and our material outsourced suppliers providing their critical services
-successfully under the current conditions. Whilst the full effects are not known, at the time of publishing these
..accounts, the Group continues to be fully operational and profltablllty for the first quarter of 2020 is in line with

- our financial forecasts.

b e

John Callender
Chairman

: ShaWbrbok Baﬁk Limited ‘ Annual Report and Accounts 2019 : 5



Chief Executive Officer's statement

Chief Executive Officer’s statement

I am delighted to'be presenting Shawbrook’s 2019 Annual Report and Accounts following my first full year as
Chief Executive Officer. We are reporting another strong and progressrve set of results, further endorsing our
continued emphasis on the specralrst segments we serve.

Continued growth

An increased focus on our core propositions has helped drive strong lending volumes with our loan book
increasing by 15%, or £0.9 billion, to £6.8 billion" at the end of 31 December 2019. This growth was particularly
evident across our Property Finance and Business Finance divisions, where loan balances increased to £4.4
billion and £1.7 billion respectively. '

Our cost to income ratio decreased to 48.4% and is on an improving trend as we begin to benefit from improved
operational efficiencies, underpinned by investment in automation. We expect a continued positive trajectory
as we head through 2020, whilst still managing to balance a progressive investment plan. Profit before tax -
increased 11% year on year to £122.6 million, or 26% excluding the one-off insurance recovery recognised in
2018. We maintain our focus on delivering strong risk adjusted returns in our chosen markets, with an
improvement in the cost of risk to 0.47% also present. The Group experienced some competitive pricing
pressures in certain markets which, when combined with a shift in asset mix, has put pressure on gross asset
yield. Notwithstanding this, we delivered a net interest margin of 4.6%.

Building out our specialist SME capabllltles ' -
In 2019, we set out our strategic aspirations to place greater emphasis on providing specialist solutrons to the

SME markets, in particular where we have deep expertise and can offer a truly dlfferentrated proposition to
serve our customers’ needs.

We have simplified our business, our propositions and our processes, exiting certain product lines and markets
where these no longer fit our strategic rationale. Shawbrook International Limited (our offshore Jersey entity),
for example, lacked thé scale required and in October 2019 we successfully sold the business via a
management buy-out transaction. | wish the-team every success for the future.

As part of a detailed strateglc review of our Consumer Lendrng franchise, we have rationalised our footprint in’
this space, for example withdrawing the buy-now-pay-later product and exiting the retail point-of-sale
market. This will enable us to focus on those consumer lending segments where we have a unique sellrng
point, delivering straightforward lending products through customer-centric propositions.

We also entered some new markets and developed new services such as our unitranche loan and buy-to-let
product switch portal. We will continue to build on these foundations in the short to medium-term, to dehver
sustainable growth across the franchise whrle improving customer experience.

Funding our growth :

Our deposit franchise is key to our lending growth and in 2019 we stepped up our rnvestment in our Savings
business, serving more than 147,000 customers with- our simple, straightforward and consistently competitive
savings products. To provide a more rounded SME offering, we also successfully launched our new dlgrtal
SME deposit range. :

We also continued to diversify our funding sources more broadly, successfully completmg our malden
securitisation — further information can be found in the Busrness review on page 14.

Strengthening the team
The strong performance achieved in 2019i |s the result of the experience and effort that everyone at Shawbrook
demonstrates on a daily basis and for this, I'd like to express my thanks to aII staff

Dunng the year, | was delighted to welcome two new members to the Executive team, John Eastgate joined -
as the Managing Director of our Property Finance division and Julian Hynd joined as Chief Operating Officer. -

Both John and Julian have tremendous experience and proven ability in their fields and it is a real testament. - -

to the business and the progress we have made that we can attract such high calibre individuals who share
our vision and are already playing a pivotal part in driving sustainable growth.. . :

" Includes loans classified as assets held for sale of £104.1 million.
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Chief Executive Officer’s statement

Chief Executive Officer’s statement (continued)

Looking to the future

We are mindful of the economic uncertainty that continues to exist, primarily in relation to trading conditions
following the UK'’s exit from the EU and, most recently, the Covid-19 pandemic. In relation to Covid-19, we are
taking all appropriate steps in line with government advice and reviewing the most up-to-date information
available. We have implemented our Incident Management Plan and our priority during this period continues
to be on ensuring the safety of our people, whilst keeping our business operational to meet the needs of our
customers. Alongside this, we will continually assess the possible impacts to our operating model and future
business plans and adapt them to ensure we remain within our risk appetite. :

As this report describes; we have made significant progress over the last year and | am confident that oui
ongoing investment plan is leading to improvements for customers whilst creating long-term sustainability and
value for our busmess | believe we are uniquely placed to lead the market as the specialist SME lender of
choice. .

~lan Cowie
Chief Executive Officer

Shawbrook Bank Limited Annual Report and Accoimts 2019 o ' L 7



' Strategic Report
Strategio Report
Shawbrook — Proudly different
Shawbrook is a leading specialist bank providing lending and savings products to SMEs and consumers. We
have an established reputation for providing products and services in sectors we know and understand, that

deliver quality and consistency for our customers, either directly or through our partnership models.

We remain committed to the simple quality of good sense, adopting traditional values with a modern delrvery
This is a big part of who we are.

Communicatlon matters. We listen, we understand and we talk to one anofher We care about our customers
“and their specialist needs. People are the life force of our business, so our approach is to blend human
judgement with data and technology. when it comes to decision-making.

That’s why ensuring a deep understanding of our customers is atop priority.
How we’ve done

2019 key highlights

Enhance customer
_ _ ' . . focus
- How we have delivered A:g’ﬁ;feztzz?‘?r;':k A
- against our strategic ! In 2019, we served over
pillars: 6.4% Gross asset yield 420,500 personal and
: business customers.
Progressively increase “| Maintain excellent credit | Maintain conservative
_originations : quality ‘ foundations
15% increase in loan book - 47bps Cost of risk a 11.9% CET1
to £6.8 billion, . - _’ A . ' 16.4% Total capital ratio

Shawbrook Bank Limited : ‘ Annual Report and Accounts 2019 8



Strategic Report
Strategid Report (continued) |
Our business

What we do

Shawbrook is a specialist UK lending and savings 'bank focused on Property Finance, Business Finance,
Consumer Lending and Savings. We differentiate ourselves by concentrating on markets where our expert
knowledge, judgement and personalised approach to underwriting offer us a competitive advantage.

Our divisions

Property Finance :

Our Property Finance division is comprised of our Commercial Property and Residential Mortgages teams.

Aimed at serving professional landlords and property traders in residential and commercial asset classes, and
personal customers through specialist second charge mortgages.

£4.4bn

Loan book .

Business Finance

. Our Business Finance division offers a wide range of products to serve- the UK SME market. Whether it is
replacing essential equipment or investing for growth, when it comes to funding, we understand that speed,
flexibility and certainty matter the most.

£1.7bn

. Loan book

Consumer Lending ~
Our Consumer Lending division provides digital unsecured personal loans to consumers for a variety of
purposes including home improvement and holiday ownership.

" £0.7bn’

~ Loan book

Savmgs :
Our Savings division prov:des a wide range of cash savings squtlons both directly and through partners, to
our personal and SME customers. .

. £6.1bn

Customer deposits

! Includes loans classified as assets held for sale of £104.1 million.

Shawbrook Bank Limited - Annual Report and Accounts 2019 9



Strategic Report (continued)
Our differentiated approach
The Shawbrook way. A customer led approach...

Specialists.

Thoughtful decision making through judgement.
~ Driven by customer needs.

Innovative and tailored products.

Focus on quality.

Our five Astrategic pillars

 Achieve strong risk adjusted returns.
-Enhance customer focus.
Maintain excellent credit quality.
Progressnvely increase originations.
Mamtam conservatwe foundatlons

Our values

We are expert: we are quietly confident and enabling.
We are driven: we are ambitious and passionate.
We are practical: we are down to earth and pragmatic.

Our people and community
814
Employees (average on. a full-time equivalent basis)

45
Charities supported

-Group gender metrics

« All employees: 56% male, 44% female

e Senior Management team: 51 male, 12fema|e
e Directors: 7 male, 2 female

by:
lan CoWie '

- Chief Executive Officer

Shawbrook Bank Limited h Annual Report and Accounts 2019

We act with integrity: we are thoughtful and responsible.

Strategic Report

bThe Strategic Report was approved by the Board ‘of Directors on 16 ApnI 2020 and was sugned on |ts behalf
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- Creating value for our stakeholders

Creating value for our stakeholders

The Board of Directors understand their duties and responsibilities under the Companies Act 2006 (2006 Act).
This section of the Strategic Report describes how the Directors have had regard to the matters set out in
section 172(1) (a) to (f) of the 2006 Act. Detail of how the Board has engaged with the Group’s stakeholders
is set out below. Further information on how Board members have fulfilled their Directors’ duties can be found
in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board believes that effective stakeholder engagement is central to ensuring responS|b|e and balanced
-~ outcomes, while also helping to both shape Shawbrook’s strategy and align business activities with stakeholder
expectations. Throughout the year, the Board engaged with each of our stakeholder groups, both directly and
indirectly, in order to bring their views and insights into the room.

Customers :

Our customer base is comprised primarily of UK SMEs and consumers seeking specialist finance and savrngs
solutions. Customers are at the core of our business, so our engagement with customers facilitates our ability
to ensure a continued understandlng of their needs and required outcomes

The Board regularly reviews customer management mformatlon (M), -for example complaints data, to
understand trends and-enable continuous improvement to the Shawbrook proposition. The Executive Directors
and broader Executive team also continually engage with customers to understand areas for |mprovement
reporting this information back to the wider Board.

One of the agreed Shawbrook business ‘enabler’ areas is to enhance focus on customer needs — this entails

encouraging all staff to bring customer views and insights into day to day business operations and decisions,

especially when designing new products. More detail on how the Board received these insights to inform a key
-investment decision is included in the commercial property re-engineering case study on page 13.

Distribution partners
The maijority of our specialist propositions are deployed through a range of like- mmded distribution partners;
including brokers and networks, key business introducers, platform lending partners and digital partners.

Our distribution partners provide a crucial interface between us and our customers, keeping us informed on
changing market conditions and sentiment including feedback on our customer propositions. As a result, we
continuously look for ways to deepen relationships through regular communications, feedback and training. By
working collaboratively with our partners, we make sure that the. right tools are in-place to enable quick and
better informed decrsmns for our customers.

The Executive Directors and Executive team regularly meet key distribution partners to enable an improved
understanding of their businesses. We understand the importance of providing all strategic broker relationships
with an opportunity to join our conversation and in 2019, we held our first property broker summit aimed at
updating brokers on business |mprovements and aligning them with our 2020 strategy, attended by the Chief
Executive Officer.

The Board, received detailed Ml on performance of our platform lending solutions partner propositions, and
dedicated spotlight discussions were also held at our business review offsite sessions which gave further
- insight into these key relatlonshlps :

The Board also discussed feedback received from our distribution partners mcludlng the results of our 2019
Property Finance broker barometer.

Employees
Our employees are critical~to the successful delivery of our strategy, so we are commltted to prioritising
employee engagement, satisfaction and development. '

We ran two engagement surveys over the course of the year, providing the opportunity for the Board to
-understand and act on our key employee engagement drivers. This was complemented by regular feedback
shared with the Board by our Group Human Resources Director, acting as the representative for employee
voice, including designated people and culture sessions at Board meetmgs and busrness review offsite
sessions.

Shawbrook Bank Limited ' Annual Report and Accounts 2019 : 11



Creating value for our stakeholders

Creating value for our stakeholders (continued)

During 2019, we hosted a range of employee events, such as our annual staff conference, updating employees
on the Group’s strategy, performance and priorities. Board members have been present at a number of these
events, for example our Chairman provided the introduction to our all staff conference as well as presenting
our 2019 employee recognition awards.

Board meetings were hosted across three different Shawbrook office locations. These included ‘Director
walkabouts’, which covered both business and functional areas, facilitating dlrect dialogue between the Board
* and employees.

Throughout 2019, the Board also supported the introduction of several employee initiatives to promote a-
culture of inclusion, for example our newly launchéd mentoring scheme and staff recognition tool.

Suppllers

Our business is supported by more than 700 suppliers, ranging from small local fruit prowders to our larger
loan servicing partners, and our supplier. network provides us with the tools required to better serve our
customers. ' '

Underplnnlng our desire to lmprove cultural allgnment we regularly engage with our supplier communlty to
ensure they are acting in accordance with our ethlcal requirements, acting responsrbly and our supply chain
remains aligned to our core values. .

The Executlve Dlrectors and Management conduct regular meetmgs with our suppliers including our matenal
outsourcing partners. In 2019, this included a dedicated offsite session with our major servicing partner which
focused on all aspects material to the Group's operations.

‘During the year, the Board also received regular Ml on supplier performance and reports on specific supplier
issues, complemented by dedicated spotlight sessions at Board meetings. presented by the Chief Operating
Officer, who is responsuble for third party oversight arrangements.

Regulators

As a regulated UK bank, we are subject to the regulation of both the Prudentlal Regulatlon Authorlty (PRA)
and the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) and the Board understands the importance of further developing
relationships with both, liaising regularly on a range of topics.

The Chairman and Executive Directors met regularly with the PRA in 2019, to provide updates on strategic A
changes. Individual meetings were also held with a number of the Non-Executive Dlrectors as well as the PRA
presenting at a Board meeting during the year.

We also had contact with the FCA throughout the year on toplcs such as culture and our compliance and
broader strategy.

Investors ' : »
Our Investors include both our private equity Shareholders and our debt investors.

Our Shareholders are central to Shawbrook’s success, bringing a different perspective and expertise to the
business.. As such, there is regular dialogue and engagement with both major Shareholders on key
performance, strategic and business matters. The Board composition also includes two Institutional Directors,
who ensure that the views of our Shareholders are brought into the Boardroom. In 2019, additional Shareholder
representatives also attended the dedlcated business review offsite sessions, bringing addltlonal insights to
strateglc toplcs

The Executive Directors hold one-to-one meetlngs with a range of our debt investors to keep them mformed
of Shawbrook S progress. v

Commumty
Our Communlty stakeholder group includes both the Iocal communlty and wider envrronment

As a business we feel strongly about giving back to the.community we operate in, and therefore continue to

- support local causes with charitable donations. During the year, the Board reviewed and approved the Group’s
v an_nual charity budget to be put to a good cause and donated to employee nominated charities.

Shawbrook Bank Limited : ' Annual Report and Accounts 2019 ' ) _ 12



Creating value for our stakeholders

Creating value for 6ur stakeholders (continued)

In addition, the Group’s Chairman had direct engagement with one of the chosen charities that subsequently
. received donations. .

The Group is also committed to functioning as a sustainable business and therefore closely manages its wider .
social and environmental impacts. During the year, the Board engaged in the production of the Group's Climate
Change Plan, including approving the finalised plan prior to submission to the PRA. The Board recognises that
climate change considerations will have greater prominence in business operations going forward.

S$172 case studies

Shawbrook International Limited disposal

During 2019, the Board and Executive-team undertook a strategic review of our Shawbrook International
operations in Jersey and Guernsey, leading to a decision to exit this business. This decision was aligned to
our strategic aspiration to simplify the Group’s business, enabling increased focus on our core value creation
activities. v

Stakeholder impact was central when determining the optimal outcome of the Group's exit from.the Channel
Islands and future of the Shawbrook International business. The focus was therefore on finding a purchaser -
who planned to continue the business and to build on the solid foundations laid, with the same customers, in
the same community and working with the same local suppliers and distribution partners, while minimising the
impact on Shawbrook International’s staff. Investors’ and regulators’ views were also sought and taken into
account, with our Shareholders and regulators in both the UK and Channel Islands engaged throughout the
process.

Thé successful completion of a management buy-out transaction of Shawbrook International resulted in the
continued employment of all its staff and its-business operations remaining allgned providing continuity to its
customers d|str|but|on partners and suppliers.

Commercial property re-engineering :
During the year, the Group made platform improvements to benefit our commercial ‘property customers
Utilising technology to improve the end to end customer journey. The relevant investment proposal presented
to the Board by the employee project team contained key outputs from a customer journey mapping exercise
evidencing customer, broker and employee ‘pain points’ arising from the previous process. The Board’s review
of stakeholder Ml played a fundamental role in the decision to support the improvements and agree the
investment. Approval was provuded subject to the business initiating regular progress meetmgs with the
Group’s majority shareholders to monitor the pl’OJeC'[ status

Following launch of our new product switch portal, a demonstration of the end to end customer journey was
presented by employees at a Board meeting and support was subsequently given to commence with the next
stage of the project. The platform changes also underwent governance reviews by the Board’s risk and product
sub-committees to ensure they sat W|th|n the Group’s risk appetite and were in the best interests of our
customers.

Shawbrook Bank Limited Annual Report and Accounts 2019 13



Business review
Business review

“2019 has seen continued growth with profit before tax increasing 11% year on year to £122.6 million
and excluding the one-off insurance recovery recognised in 2018, growth was 26%. Our strategic focus
on our specialist propositions enabled strong asset growth of 15% whilst also exiting our offshore
business.”

== Progressively increasing originations
Key performance % . . . o
indicators? 2019 2018 change | A Progressive increase in ongmahons drove
strong net lending of £0.9 billion across the
portfolio and resulted in the loan book increasing

Assets and liabilities :
Loan book (Em) 6,781.72 '5,880.0 153

X i ioved by 15% to £6.8 billion (2018: £5.9 billion). Strong
(Ev;;age p""c'pa employe 6,372.6 5,351.8 19.1 demand for our SME led customer propositions

- saw higher' levels of growth across Property

Customer depo§|ts (Em) - 6,1094 49779 22.7 - Finance, up 20% to £4.4 billion and Business
Wholesale funding (£m) 1,1226 10294 91 Finance, up 16% to £1.7 billion. As discussed on
Profitability : — page 13, the Board undertook a strategic review
Gross asset yield (%) 6.4 6.7 (0.3)  of our lending proposition during 2019 and we -
Liability yield (%) ~ - {(1.8) (1.6) (02) chose to dispose of Shawbrook International
Net interest margin (%) 4.6 5.1 (0:5)  Limited, our Jersey specialist lending business
Management expenses ratio ' (2.2) 26) 04 " (assets of ¢.£28 million). Following the strategic
%) review of our.Consumer Lending proposition, we
Cost to income ratio (%) ~...484 50.9 (2.5)  also agreed the sale of a legacy unsecured
Costofrisk (%) - (0.47) (0-43); (0.04)  personal lending portfolio as we refocus our
— s t (068)° 021 wunsecured offering inside our proprietary
eturn on iending assets . it :
before tax (%) . 1.9 21 (0.2) underwriting scorecards.
Return on tangible equity (%) - 15.8 , 16.3- (0.5) Diversifying.our funding base
Liquidity : - Our funding base remains predominantly retail
Liquidity coverage ratio (%) 2745 244.9 296 and SME deposit led with a significant component
Capital and leverage - v being from the Term Funding Scheme (TFS).

. Common Equity Tier 1

capital ratio (%) 18 122+ - (03)

Customer deposits increased 23% to £6.1 billion

Total Tier 1 capital ratio (%) 145 . 152 . (0.7) (2018 £5.0 billion). Wholesale funding increased -
Total capital ratio (%) 16.4 17.0 (06) 9% to £1.1 billion and was supported by the
Leverage ratio (%) - 8.6 91  (0.5) Group’s successful inaugural securitisation in

Risk-weighted assets (£m) 49745 42068 . 182 June of a £250 million mortgage backed security
to external investors. .

We issued an additional £20 million in Tier 2 capital through a private placement in September at a coupon of

6.5% and ensured we maintained an optimal hybrid capital position. In order to position the balance sheet for

the maturity of the TFS, we chose to early redeem £118 million of our initial tranches from the scheme and

following this we had £757 million drawn under the scheme  with contractual maturities spread across 2021

and 2022. We are now reviewing our options following recent announcements regarding thé Term Funding
 Scheme with additional incentives for SMEs.

Achieving strong risk adjusted returns
During the year, operating income grew by 13% to £408.3 million (2018: £360.1 million) reflecting net loan
growth: Our gross asset yield of 6.4% (2018: 6.7%) fell slightly as the loan book shifted away from the

o .. Consumer Lending loan book to 10% of the portfolio at 31 December 2019 (2018: 13%) and against the

backdrop of a highly competitive rate environment. Interest expense increased by 30% to £113.1 million with
the liability yield increasing to 1.8% (2018: 1.6%) driven by our increased wholesale funding and early TFS
repayment. Retail deposit costs stayed consistent at 1.5%* for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
1.5%). As a result, the Group's net operating income increased by 8% to £295.2 million (2018: £272.9 million)
whlle the net interest margm reduced to 4.6% (2018: 5.1%).

o Keyiberformance indicators are defined on page 154. )
- ZIncludes loans classified as assets held for sale of £104.1 million.
3 2018 cost of risk excluding £13.0 milfion insurance recoveries was 68 basis points.
4 Calculated as interest expense on customer deposits divided by average principal employed.

Shawbrook Bank Limited . Annual Report and Accounts 2019 ' g : ’ 14



Business review

Business review (continued)

Maintaining excellent credit quality

Whilst we continued to experience economic uncertainty throughout 2019 our cost of risk remained low at
0.47% (2018: 0.43%) reflecting our robust approach to risk management. Adjusting for the insurance
recoveries received in 2018 our cost of risk reduced against 0.68% recognised in 2018. Of the total 2019
impairment charge, £8.1 million, (2018: £15.5 mllllon) related to the £104.1 million portfolio of loans which the
Group sold post year-end

Continued investment in people and

technology 2019 2018 %
Careful cost management remains a key — 1 : £m £m__change
objective of the Group, however, we continued to _Operating income’ 408.3 36041 13.4

invest in technology solutions to support our ::’;:::e:tsexl’e"se andsimilar 4434y (87.2) (29.7)
business priorities. . d

Net operating income 295.2 272.9 8.2
~Total administrative expenses increased to  Administrative expenses (138.4) (128.8) (7.5)
£138.4 million (2018: £128.8 million), an increase  Impairment losses on
of 8% reflecting - further investment in the _financial assets? (29.9)  (232) (289

" business including growth in our teams, costs - Provisions for liabilities and (4'55 (10.1) 55.4
incurred to meet regulatory developments such _charges _ ' i
“as GDPR, and enhancements to our customer _Total operating expenses (172.8) (162.1) (6.6)
proposition and service as we seek to sustainably  Share of results of associate (0.1) (0.5) 80.0
grow the Group in our chosen segments. Gain on disposal of 0.3 A )

' subsidiary )
- We continue to provide for conduct matters in  pofit before tax i 1226 1103 11.2
relation to liabilities under the Consumer Credit —— v 288) (258 (116)
Act where suppliers have become insolvent.

However, the-charge for the year reduced to £4.5 _Profit after tax - 93.8 845 110

million (2018: £10.1 million).

The cost to income ratio decreased to 48.4% (2018: 50.9%) and the mariagement expenses ratio reduced to
 2.2% (2018: 2.6%) as we begin to benefit from the solid foundations we have invested in during previous years.

Maintaining conservative foundations .
As at 31 December 2019, the Group maintained a robust capital position with a total capital ratio of 16.4%
(2018: 17.0%) and a Common Equity Tier 1 ratio of 11.9% (2018: 12.2%). The reduction in capital ratios over
the year reflect the profit after tax of £93.8 million and a private issuance of £20 million Tier 2 capital, offset by
growth in risk-weighted assets of £768 million and payment of AT1 coupons totalling £9.8 million. We continue
to optimise our capital resources while maintaining a robust and prudent risk appetite.

The Group is not required to comply with the PRA leverage ratio framework, however the Group maintains its
returns with prudent levels of leverage. The leverage ratio for the Group is 8.6%.(2018: 9.1%), compared to
the minimum requirement of 3.0% with risk-weighted assets as a propomon of customer loans having remained
stable at ¢.73% (2018: c. 72%)

Outlook

During 2019, we reviewed the strategic ambltlons of the Group and aligned our proposition, positioning the
Group well to navigate the known challenges ahead. These challenges include a continuation of low interest
rates, ongoing uncertainty as the UK government negotiates a post-Brexit trade relationship with the EU and
continued pricing competition in many of our markets. The recent Covid-19 pandemic, whilst still developing,
.will create further challenges to the economy and, alongside any government and regulatory responses, we
will take the appropriate steps to support our customers whilst ensuring our capltal and ||qu1d|ty remains within
. appetlte

" Vincludes interest income calculated using the effective interest rate méthod, other interest and similar income, net income from operating
leases, net fee, commission income and net galns/(losses) on financial instruments mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss and
- other operating (expense)/income. " -
2 During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group received £13.0 mllllon from the Group’s insurance clalm in respect of a controls
- breach identified in the Business Finance d|V|S|on in 2016.

Shawbrook Bank Limited Annual Report and Accounts 2019 ' ' 15



Corporate Governance Report

.Corporate Governance Report

This report explains the Board’s role and activities, and how corporate governance operates throughout the
Group. The Company recognises that corporate governance provides the framework within which we form our
decisions and build a business that is focussed on creating long-term value to all stakeholders. :

The Company recognises that it is not obliged to comply with a corporate governance code but does take into
consideration the guidance and advice from industry bodies such as the Financial Reporting Council and its
2018 UK Corporate Governance Code (the ‘Code’) published in July 2019 when making decisions about the
way the Group is managed and makes decisions.

The Board

The Board takes account of the views of the Group’s Shareholder and has regard to wider stakeholder interests
and other relevant matters in its discussions and decision-making. The Board recognises that stakeholders’
interests are integral to the promotion of the Company’s long-term success. Further information about how the
Board considers the interests of its stakeholders can be found on page 11.

‘ Composutlon Board balance and time commltment
The Board currently consists of nine members, namely the Chairman, four Independent Non-Executive
Directors, two Executive Directors and two Institutional Directors. :

The Independent Non-Executive Directors have substantial experience across all aspects of banking, including -
relevant skills. in financial management, regulatory matters, credit assessment and pricing, liability
management, technology, operational and conduct matters. The Independent Non-Executive Directors are .
considered to be of sufficient calibre and experience to brmg significant influence to bear on the decrsron-
makrng process. :

The Board considers that the balance of skills and experience is appropriate to the requirements of the Group’s
business-and that the balance between Executive and Independent Non-Executive Directors allows it to
exercise objectivity in decision making and proper control. Each member of the Board has had access to all .
information relating to the Group, the advice and services of the Company Secretary (who is responsible for
ensuring that governance procedures are followed) and, as required, external advice at the expense of the
Group.

The Board with the assistance of the Group’s Nomination Committee keeps under review the structure, size
and composition of the Board (and undertakes regular evaluations to ensure it retains an appropriate balance
of skills, knowledge and experience).

The terms of appointment of the Independent Non-Executive Directors specify the amount of time they are
expected to devote to the Group's business. They are currently required to commit at least four days per month
which is calculated based on the time required to prepare for and attend Board and Commlttee meetings,
meetings. with the Shareholder and with Management and training. '

Meetings and attendance
The Board holds joint meetings of Shawbrook Group plc and Shawbrook Bank Limited at regular mtervals at
which standing items such as the Group’s financial and business performance, risk, compliance, human
resources and strategic matters are reviewed and discussed. There is a comprehensive Board pack and
agenda which is circulated beforehand so that Directors have the opportunity to consider the issues to be
discussed. Detalled minutes and any actions arising out of dlscussmns are documented.

The Board and Board Commlttees held a number of scheduled meetlngs in 2019 at which senior executives,
external advisors and independent advisors were invited, as required, to attend and present on business
developments and governance matters. The Company Secretary and/or their deputy attended all Board
meetings and he, or his nominated deputy, attended all Board Committee meetings. The table on the following
page sets out the attendance at scheduled meetings in 2019. Additional Board and Committee meetings were -
convened during the year to discuss ad hoc business development, governance and regulatory matters
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Number of scheduled meetings attended*

Board Audit Risk Remuneration | Nomination
Committee Commiittee Committee Committee

John Callender (Chair) 8/8 5/5 . 5/5
lan Cowie 8/8 '
Dylan Minto 8/8
‘Robin Ashton'’ 7/8 . . 5/6 4/5 | _ 5/5 5/5
Lindsey McMurray? 8/8 6/6 5/5 4/5 . 5/5
Cedric Dubourdieu? 8/8 6/6 5/5 . 5/5 4/5 |
Paul Lawrence -~ 8/8 6/6 5/5 5/5 5/5
Andrew Didham* 8/8 '6/6 5/5 2/4
Michele Turmore® 2/2 22 2/2
David Gagie® ~ 11
Sally-Ann Hibberd’ 1/1
Roger Lovering® 4/6 33 2/3

The attendance above reflects the number of scheduled Board and Committee meetings held during the
financial year. During the year there were also a number of ad-hoc Board and Committee meetings to deal
with matters arising outside of the usual meeting schedule. The majority of Directors made themselves
available at short notice for these meetings.

Notes

* Meetings were held from January 2019 fo December 2019.

1. Due to a family bereavement, Robin Ashton was unable to attend the Board meeting on the 19 March, and due to illness, the
Audit and Risk Committee meetings held on the 16 November 2019.

_ Due to a prior commitment, Lindsey McMurray was unable to attend the 8 October 2019 Remuneration Committee meeting.

" Due to a prior commitment, Cedric. Dubourdieu was unable to attend the 23 January 2019 Nomination Committee meeting.
Andrew Didham was appointed to the Remuneration Committee on the 1 February 2019. Due to prior commltments Andrew
was unable to attend the 28 February and 13 May 2019 Remuneration Committee meetings.

Michele Turmore was appointed to the Group on the 1 October 2019.

David Gagie stepped down on the 31 January 2019.

Sally-Ann Hibberd stepped down on the 31 January 2018.

Due to prior commitments, Roger Lovering was unable to attend the Board meeting on 1 April and 7 May 2019 and the 23
January 2019 Risk Committee meetmg Roger stepped down on the 31 August 2019.

pown

O NG

Board meetings and activity in 2019

Board meetings
The activities undertaken by the Board in 2019 were intended to help promote the long-term sustamable
success of the Company. Scheduled Board meetings focussed on five main themes in 2019:

Strategy and execution, . including: approving and overseeing the Group’'s key strategic targets and
monitoring the Group’s performance against these targets; reviewing and approving key projects aimed at
. developing the business; reviewing the strategy of |nd|V|duaI divisions. :

Financial performance, including: setting financial pIans, annual budgets and key performance indicators and
monitoring the Group’s results against them; approving financial results for publication; and monitoring and.
approving the approach to the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) and Internal: quu1d|ty 4
Adequacy Assessment Process (ILAAP).

Risk management, regulatory and other related governance, including: reviewing and agreeing the
Group's policies; setting risk appetites; reviewing the Group’s solvency position and forecast and agreeing the
Group’s approach to climate change in light of the PRA’s supervisory statement published in April 2019. -

Spotlights, including: deep dive sessions on investments, consumer lending, platform lending and
par’tnershlps savings, employee engagement survey and culture and the exit from Shawbrook Internatlonal
. Limited.

Board a‘nd Board Committee.governance,' including: receiving reports from the Board’s Committees;

updating terms of reference for the Committees; implementing an independent annual review of Board
effectiveness; and commencing an annual review of the Group’s governance framework.
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Corporaté Governance Report (continued)

In addition to routine business, the Board considers and discusses key issues that impact on the business as
they arise. The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer spend a considerable amount of time with
the different divisions and business areas ensunng that the Board’'s aims are being correctly disseminated
throughout the Group, and that our employees’ views and opinions are reported back to the Board and Board
Committees.

Strategy days

The Board sets aside time each year outside the annual Board calendar to hold strategy days giving the
Directors the opportunity to focus solely on strategic matters. In February and October 2019, the Board held
offsite sessions to set and monitor progress against the Group’s strategy and to discuss the strategic
challenges and opportunities within the Group and its divisions. Sessions focussing on the savings proposition,
modernisation of business functions, optimisation of resources and further enhancing the Risk Management
Framework were also held. '

Board induction

All new Directors appointed to the Board undertake an induction programme aimed at ensuring they develop
‘a solid understanding of the Group, its divisions, people and processes, and of their roles and responsibilities
as Directors of the Company. The programmes are tailored to suit each Director and include:

e  provision of relevant current and historical information about the Group;

e - visits to business units around the Group;

e one-to-one meetings with Board members, Senior Management and the Company s advisors.

Michele‘Turmore, who joined the Board as Independent Non-Executive Director in October 2019, received
such an induction pvrogramme, which was completed in November 2019.

Board effectiveness review

To reflect upon the progress since the 2018 Board effectiveness review, Egon Zehnder were invited to
undertake a follow up review in 2019. The review concluded that the Board was effective. Further details of
the structure of the review and its actions can be read in our Parent Company Annual Report and Accounts.

Conflicts of interest

All Directors have a duty to avoid situations that may give rise to a conflict of interest (in accordance with s175
of Companies Act 2006). Formal procedures are in place to deal with this. Directors are responsible for
~ notifying the Chairman and the Company Secretary as soon as they become aware of any actual or potential
conflict of interest for discussion. This will then be considered by the Board which, will take into account the
circumstances of the conflict when deciding whether to permit it (or whether to impose any conditions). Any
actual or potential conflicts of interest are recorded in a central register and Directors are also required, on an
annual basis, to confirm that they are not aware of any circumstances which may affect their fitness and
‘propriety and therefore their ability to continue to serve on the Board. In addition, Directors are required to
seek the Board's approval of any new appointments or material changes in external commitments.

Induction, training and professional development
- On appointment, all new Directors receive a comprehensive and tailored induction, having regard to any
previous experience they may have as a Director of a financial services company: The Group also provides
additional induction materials and training for those Directors who are also Committee Chairs. The content of_
our Director induction programmes is tailored, with input from the new Director. The induction information is
delivered in a variety of formats; including face to face meetings with the Chairman, Board Directors, Executive
Management and key members of staff, and input from external advisers as appropriate. This is supplemented

" by the provision of key governance documents as reading material, including policies, procedures, Board and

Committee minutes, the Board meeting schedule, the Group structure chart and copies of the Code, the FCA -
Handbook, regulatory codes/requirements and information on Directors’ duties and responsibilities under the
Companies Act 2006 and other relevant Iegislation.-

An ongoing programme of tralnlng is available to all members of the Board which includes professional external
. training and bespoke Board training on relevant topics such as regulatory and governance developments,
changes to the Companies Act 2006 or accounting requirements. Directors are also encouraged to devote an

' ~ element of their time to self-development, including attendance at relevant external seminars and events. This

is in addition to any guidance that may be given from time to time by the Company Secretary.
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The Chairman is responsible for reviewing the training needs of each Director, and for ensuring that Directors
continually update their skills and knowledge of the Group. All Directors are advised of changes in relevant
legislation, regulations and evolving risks, with the assistance of the Group’s advisers where appropriate.

The Board receives detailed reports from Executive Management on the performance of the Group at its
meetings and other information as necessary. Regular updates are provided on relevant legal, corporate
governance and financial reporting developments. The Board frequently reviews the actual and forecast
performance of the business compared against the annual plan, as well as other key performance indicators.

Rlsk management and mternal control systems

The Board has overail responsibility for the Group’s system of internal control and for monitoring its
effectiveness. The Audit Committee and Risk Committee have been in operation throughout the relevant period
and oversee the Group’s system of internal control. Material risk or control matters are reported by the Audit
Committee and Risk Committee to the Board. The Board monitors the ongoing process by which ‘top risks’
. affecting the Group are identified, measured, managed, monitored, reported and challenged. This process is
consistent with both the Group Risk Management Framework and with internal control and related financial
and business reporting guidance issued by the Financial Reporting Council. The key elements of the Group’s
system of internal control include regular meetings of the Executive Management and risk governance
committees, together with annual budgeting, and monthly financial and operational reporting for all businesses
within the Group. Conduct and compliance are monitored by Management, the Group risk function, internal
- audit and, to the extent it considers necessary to support its audit report, the external auditor.

. The Board assesses the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls (including financial,

operational and compliance controls and risk management systems) based on:

e established procedures, including those already described, which are in place to manage perceived risks;

e reports by Management to the Audit Committee and Risk Committee on the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group’s system of internal control and significant control issues;

¢ under the direction of the Chief Risk Officer, the continuous Group-wide process for formally identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks to the achievement of the Group’s objectives; and

e reports from the Audit Committee on the results of internal audit reviews and work undertaken by other
departments. '

The Group’s system of internal controls is designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to
" achieve the Group’s objectives and can only provide reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss. In assessing what constitutes reasonable assurance, the Board considers the materiality
of financial and non-financial risks and the relationship between the cost of, and benefit from, the system of
internal controls. During 2019, the Group continued to strengthen its risk management and internal controls
capability to ensure that it remained relevant, appropriate and scalable to support the Group’s objectives over
the duration of the strategic plan and continued to embed improvements into the Group’s RISk Management
Framework. '

Lines of responsibility and delegated authorities are clearly defined. The Group’s policies and procedures are
regularly updated and distributed throughout the Group. The Audit Committee and Risk Committee receive
-reports on a regular basis on compllance with the Group’s policies and procedures.

Cyber resilience

The Group recognises the importance of cyber resilience. The Board oversees the Group’s cyber resilience
approach and the level of investment into cyber security, providing robust challenge and scrutiny to ensure
that the Group is adequately mitigating the threats it faces. The Board recognises that specialist knowledge is
required in this area and therefore seeks relevant advice from third parties where appropriate.

The cyber resilience strategy is routinely monitored by the Risk Committee and reviewed by the Board on an
annual basis. The review considers the latest cyber threat intelligence assessment, the specialist nature of
cyber threats and any outsourcing risks faced by the Group in this area. This ensures that the strategy remains
- fit for purpose to combat the potential cyber threats the Group may face. :
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Directors’ Report

Corporate governance statement

The Directors of the Company present their report together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019. Other information that is relevant to the Dlrectors Report, and which is incorporated
by reference into this report, can be located as follows: .

| Subject ' Pages |
Business activities and future development 8-15
Corporate governance report . 16-19
Internal controls and financial risk management : : 19
Post balance sheet and important-events _ ' 152
Research and development : : 8415
Relationship with suppliers ' : ' - 1113
Results for the year ' ' 89-93
Use of financial instruments v 129_11 25_?22

Section 414 of the Companies Act 2006 requires the Directors to present a Strateglc Report in the Annual
Report and Accounts. The information can be found on pages 8 to 15,

The Company has chosen in accordance with section 414C(11) of the Companies Act 2006, and as noted in
this Directors’ Report, to include certaln matters |n its Strategic Report that would othen/vrse be disclosed in
this Directors’ Report

The Directors present their Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Principal actlvmes

The Company and its subsidiaries comprise the Group The Company is a banklng institution which is
authorised by the Prudential Regulation Authority and regulated by both the Frnancral Conduct Authorlty and
the Prudentlal Regulat:on Authority.

Results for the year ‘
~ The Group made profit before taxation for the year of £122.6 m|II|on (2018 £110.3 million) and proft after
- taxation of £93.8 million (2018: £84.5 million).

The Company made proflt before taxation for the year of £121 4 million (2018: £1 10.9 mulllon) and profit after
taxation of £92.6 million (2018: £85.1 mtlllon)

Dividends -
The Directors are not recommending a final d|V|dend |n respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
£nil). . .

Directors’
The Directors who served during the year were:
e Robin Ashton
John Callender
lan Cowie
~ Andrew Didham
Cédric Dubourdieu
David Gagie (resigned on 31 January 2019)
Sally-Ann Hibberd (resigned on 31 January 2019)
Paul Lawrence
Roger Lovering (resigned 31 August 2019)
Lindsey McMurray
Dylan Minto
Michele Turmore (joined 1 October 2019)
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Employees with disabilities

Applications for employment by people with disability are given full and fair consideration bearing in mind the
respective aptitudes and abilities of the applicant concerned and other ability to make reasonable adjustments
to the role and the work environment. In the event of existing employees becoming disabled, all reasonable
effort is made to ensure that appropriate training is given and their employment with the Group continues.
~ Training, career development and promotion of a disabled person is, as far as possible, identical to that of an
able-bodied person.

Human rights and Modern Slavery Act

Shawbrook has zero-tolerance to any modern slavery and by having the correct tools and regularly rewewmg
our policies, we can ensure that any occurrences are swiftly addressed. In 2019, we continued to take the
appropriate steps to prevent slavery and human trafficking from both our business and supply chain through a
database utilised to monitor Modern Slavery Act compliance. This built upon our established outsourcing policy
which ensures that there Is a framework which is followed to efficiently manage potential and contracted third
party relationships and comply with regulatory obligations. A full copy of our modern slavery statement can be
found on the Group’s website at: https://www.shawbrook.co.uk/modern-slavery-act/ -

Appomtment and retirement of Directors

The Group’s Articles of Association set out the rules for the appointment and repIacement of Directors. In
accordance with the recommendations of the 2018 Code and the Companies Act 2006, all Directors shall retire
from office and may offer themselves for re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting.

Powers of Directors

The Directors’ powers are conferred on them by UK legislation and by the Group’s Articles of Assocnatlon
Changes to the ‘Group’s Articles of Association must be approved by the Shareholder passing a special
resolution and must comply with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 The Group s Articles of Assocuat|on
can be viewed here: https://www.shawbrook.co. uk/nnvestors/

Dlrectors mterests _
None of the Directors hold shares in the Company Lindsey McMurray and Cedric’ Dubourdleu are dlrectors of
Marlin Bidco L|m|ted the Group’s sole Shareholder. '

Directors’ indemnities ’

- The Group’s Articles of Association provnde that, subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, the
Group may indemnify any Director or former Director of the Group or any associated Group against any liability
and may purchase and maintain for any Director or former Director of the Group or any associated Group
insurance against any liability.

The Directors of the Group have entered into individual deeds of indemnity wnth the Group which constltuted
‘qualifying party indemnity provisions’ entered into by the Directors and the Company. The deeds of indemnity
protect the Directors to the maximum extent permitted by the law and by the Articles of Association of the
Company, in respect of any liabilities incurred in connection with the performance of their duties as a Dlrector
of the Company and any associated Group company, as defined by the Companies Act 2006.

The Group has maintained appropriate Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance in place throughout 2019.

Company Secretary

All'Directors have access to the services of the Company Secretary in relation to the dlscharge of their duties.
Daniel Rushbrook is the Group Company Secretary. He can be contacted at the Company S reglstered office,
details of which are on page 3.

Our environment ' o

We understand embedding sustainability in all aspects of our busmess model is the right thing to do and are
committed to creating a strong business that is not achieved at the expense of our environment. Whether it be
-our carbon footprint, our waste and energy consumption or the way we do business, Shawbrook strives to
entrench sustainability across all aspects of our business operations. :
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Energy Savings Opportunity Scheme

Over the past 12 months we have been looking at ways to reduce our energy consumption. During the year,
we submitted phase two of the Energy Savings Opportunity Scheme assessment. The findings revealed that
since completing phase one in 2015, our head office electricity consumption decreased significantly.

This drove several energy saving opportunities to be identified and in 2020 we will formulate an actionable
plan to introduce more sustainable elements across our new offices.

Emissions :

During 2019, our head office experienced a 21% decrease in kilowatts per hour (kwWh) despite employee
headcount increasing, improving our employee to kWh ratio. Our second largest office in Redhill” also
performed exceptionally well during the year compared to industry benchmarks and following the consolidation
of our two legacy offices to one central Redhill hub a 49% reduction in kwh was revealed. In total, Shawbrook
experienced a 21% decrease across our combined estate.

Going concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis and the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group has the resources to continue in business for the 12 months from the reporting
date. In making this assessment, the Directors have considered a wide range of information relating to present.
and future conditions, including the current state of the balance sheet, future projections of profitability, cash
flows and capital resources and the longer-term strategy of the business. The Group’s capital and liquidity
plans have been stress tested under a range of stressed scenarios and have been reviewed by the Directors.

The impact of Covid-19 has also been assessed and stress tested against the 2020 financial and business
plans. Whilst the Covid-19 impacts are not yet fully known and will depend on many factors including the length
of the enforced closure of certain businesses and social facilities, the social distancing measures and the
success and continuity of the government and Bank of England measures put in place to support the economy
and businesses, the Group has assessed its capital and liquidity over the going concern period. The Directors
assessed the financial implications of the risks associated with Covid-19, including the expected effect of
Management actions taken in response, against the most severe but plausible scenario used in the Board’s
assessment of the ICAAP approved in 2020. This scenario was the ‘Rates Down’ scenario specified by the
Bank of England for use in preparing ICAAP stress tests. Having regard for the severe financial outcomes from
this scenario and the reverse stress tests also conducted, the Board concluded that both capital and liquidity
forecasts remained within present regulatory requrrements including use of capital buffers, over the going
concern period.

After making enquiries, the Directors believe that the Group has sufficient resources to continue its activities
for the 12 months from the reporting date and the Group has sufficient capital to enable it to continue to meet its
regulatory capital requiremehts as set out by the PRA. '

Political and charitable donations
The Group made charitablé donations of £62k during the year (2018 £64k). The Group did not make any
political donatlons durlng the year (2018: £nil).

Share capltal :
Shawbrook Bank Limited is a company limited by shares.

Details of the Group’s issued share capital, together with details of the movements in the Group s issued share
caprta\ dunng the year, are shown in Note 32 of the Fmanmal Statements. -

The Group S share oaprtal comprises one class of ordinary share with a nominal value of £1.00 each. At 31
December 2019, 175,487,207 ordinary shares were in issue. There were no share allotments in 2019.

Restrictions on the transfer of shares
According to the Articles of Association and prevailing legislation there are no specmc restrictions on the
transfer of shares of the Group.

Rights attaching to shares '
- On a show of hands, each member has the right to one vote at General Meetmgs of the Group. On a poll, each
member would be entitled to one vote for every share held. The shares carry no rights to fixed income. No one
. person has any special rights of control over the Group’s share capital and all shares are fully paid.
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New issues of share capital

Subject to the Framework Agreement and under section 551 of the Companies Act 2006, the Directors may
allot equity securities only with the express authorisation of the Shareholder. Under section 561 of the
Companies Act 2006, the Board may also not allot shares for cash (otherwise than pursuant to an employee
share scheme) without first making an offer to the Shareholder to allot such shares to them on the same or
more favourable terms in proportion to their respective shareholdings, unless this requirement is waived by a
special resolution of the Shareholder. '

Purchase of own shares by the Company
Subject to the Framework Agreement and under section 701 of the Companies Act 2006 the Group may make
a purchase its own shares if the purchase has first been authorised by a resolution of the Shareholder.

Auditor
Resolutions to reappoint KPMG LLP as the Group’s auditors and to give the Directors the authority to
determine the auditor’s remuneration will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting. :

Disclosure of information to the auditor

The Directors confirm that:

1. So far as each of the Directors is aware, there is no relevant aud|t |nformat|on of which the auditor is .
unaware; and

2. The Directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as Directors in order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audlt information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that
information.

This conf rmation is given and should be mterpreted in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
'2006.

Dlrectors responsublllty statement ' '
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and Accounts and the Group and Parent
Company fmancual statements in accordance with appllcable law and regulatlons .

Company law requires the Directors to prepare such financial statements for each flnanC|aI year. Under that
law, the Directors must prepare the Group financial- statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union and Article 4 of the International Accounting .
Standard (IAS) regulation/and applicable law and have elected to prepare the Parent Company financial
statements on the same basis. .

Under company law, the Directors must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Parent Company and of their profit or loss for that
~ period.

In preparing the Group's financial statements, the Directors are required to: properly select and apply
accounting policies, present information, including accounting policies, in @ manner that provides relevant,
reliable, comparable and understandable information, and provide additional disclosures when compliance
with the specific requirements of IFRS is insufficient to enable an understanding of the impact of particular
transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial performance Finally,
the Directors must assess the Group s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Directors are responsible for keeplng adequate accounting records that: are sufficient to show and explain
the Group's transactions and disclose, with reasonable accuracy, at any time the financial position of the

company and enable them to ensure that its financial -statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
Additionally, the Directors are responsible for safeguarding the Group's assets and, hence, taking reasonable
steps to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. The Directors are responsible for maintaining and
ensuring the integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Group’s website at
https://www.shawbrook.co.uk/. Legislation in the UK governing and preparing and disseminating financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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. Each of the Directors, whose names are listed on page 20, confirms that, to the best of their knowledge:

e the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards, give a
true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Group and the
undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole; .

» the Strategic Report (on pages 8 to 15) and the Directors’ Report (on pages 20 to 24) include a fair review
of: (i) the business'’s development and performance and (ii) the position of the Group and the undertakings
included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together W|th a description of the principal rlsks and
uncertainties that they face;

e the Annual Report and financial statements comply W|th all aspects of the Gmdellnes for Disclosure and
Transparency in Private Equity; and

e the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable, and prOVIde

the information necessary for Shareholders to assess the Group’s position and performance business
model and strategy

By order of the Board.

Daniel Rushbrook
Company Secretary

16 April 2020 .
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Risk Management Report

Approach to risk management

The Group seeks to manage the risks inherent in its business activities and operations through close and
disciplined risk management which quantifies the risks taken, manages and mitigates them as far as possible
and prices appropriately for the residual level of risk carried in order to produce an appropriate commercial
return through the cycle.

The Group’s approach to risk management continues to evolve and has benefitted from further investment
during 2019 in key areas such as financial crime, technology and information security. There has been further
investment in the Group’s key operating divisions including the appointment of a new Property Finance Risk -
Director and the recruitment of additional analytical resources to support the delivery of the Group's lending
objectives. The Group's Risk Management Framework was further enhanced in 2019, reflecting the
emergence of climate change and the realignment of key responsibilities. The Group has also developed a
new approach to stress testing which is being embedded in both its Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Process (ICAAP) and the further development of risk appetite measures and reporting. The Group appointed
a new Chief Operating Officer and a Managing Director of Property Finance in April 2019 and a new Head of
Operational Risk in November 2019. :

The Group’s approach to enterprise wide risk management is underplnned by five key elements: risk strategy, .
risk appetite, the Risk Management Framework, governance and cuIture Further details of these key elements
are provided below.

Risk strategy.
The risk strategy sets out the risk management objectlves which support the achievement of the Group’s .
commercial goals and the operation of business activities which seek to deliver those aims. The risk strategy
‘sets out which risks are to be acquired or incurred and how they will be managed by the organisation. This is -
summarised in the annual Risk and Compliance Plan that is approved by the Board in February of each year.

- The strateglc risk management objectives are to:

identify material risks arising in the day-to-day activities and operatlons of the Group;
quantify the risks attached to the execution of the Group’s business plans;

set an appropriate risk appetite with calibrated measures and tolerance levels;

optimise the risk/reward characteristics of business written;

set minimum standards in relation to the acquisition, incurrence and management of I'ISk
secure and organise the required level and capability of risk infrastructure and resources;
undertake remedial action where any weaknesses are ndentnﬁed and -

scan the external horizon for emerging risks.

. Risk appetite :

- The level of risk that the Group is willing to tolerate in operating the various elements of its business are defined
in a risk appetite statement, which is agreed by the Board and reviewed on a regular basis. This articulates
qualitative and quantitative measures of risk which are cascaded across various areas of the Group’s
operations, calibrated by reference to the Group’s absolute capacity for risk absorption, limit of appetite and
target thresholds. During 2019, the Group completed updates to its liquidity and interest rate risk i in the banking
. book appetite and commenced an annual rewew of the Group and divisional risk appetltes

The risk appetlte statement is not static and evolves to reflect and support the Group s business objectives,
the operating environment and risk outlook. Whilst the risk appetite statement provides an aggregated measure
of performance against risk appetite, it is not just a reporting tool. Just as importantly, it also provides a
framework which is used dynamically to inform strategic and operatlonal management decisions, as weII as :
supporting the busmess planning process. : ~

The risk appetite statement is reviewed periodically by the Risk Commlttee and agreed with the Board on an
annual basis. A dashboard with the status of each metric is monitored monthly. Executive Management and
the Board exercise their judgement as to the approprlate action required in relation to any threshold trlgger
‘breach, dependent on the scenario at the tlme

The risk appetvte statement identifies six groups of risk appetite objectlves which are funher subdlwded into
27 appetite dimensions as set out dlagrammatlcally overleaf. A suite of qualitative staterents and quantitative
- measures have been set for each dimension, with risk limits cahbrated by reference to absolute capacity;-
maximum risk tolerance and a threshold trigger level. :
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Approach to risk management (continued)

Risk Management Report
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Risk Management Framework

All of the Group’s business and support service activities, including those outsourced to third party providers
or originated via brokers and other business. intermediaries, are executed within the parameters of a single
comprehensive Risk Management Framework (RMF). This sets out minimum requirements and ensures
consistent standards and processes are set across the organisation. Risks are identified, measured, managed,
monitored, reported and controlled using the RMF. The design and effectiveness of the framework is overseen
and reviewed by the Risk Committee. '

Responsibility for risk management sits at all levels across the Group from the Board and Executive Committee
down through the Group’s divisions, central functions, and in turn to each divisional head and their business
managers and risk officers. . :

The Group’s RMF describes the various activities, techniques and tools which are mandated to support the
identification, measurement, control, management, monitoring, reporting and challenge of risk across the
Group. It is designed to provide an integrated, comprehensive, consistent and scalable structure which is
capable of being communicated to and clearly understood by all of the Group’s employees and is described in
the sections below.

The RMF also incorporates the organisational arrangements for managing risk with specific responsibilities
distributed to certain functions. This ensures that.there is clear accountability, responsibility and engagement
at appropriate levels within the organisation which can provide robust review and challenge as well as be
challenged. Operationally, the RMF is organised around the key risk categories (see page 41).

- Governance

All of the Group’s risk activities are subject to detailed and comprehensive governance arrangements‘which
set out how risk-based authority is delegated from the Board to Executive Management and the various risk
management committees and individuals. Risk governance and oversight is detailed further on page 28.
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Risk Management Report

Approach to risk management (continued)

Culture

The Group is led by an experienced Executive Management team with a combination of significant underwriting
expertise and institutional and regulatory banking experience at various major financial institutions and
specialist lenders. This heritage provides the platform for a set of values and behaviour where the customer is
at the heart of the decision-making process and business areas are held fully accountable for risk performance.
At the individual level, this process begins with the induction programme and job descriptions, is carried into
the setting of individual objectives and performance reviews and is ummately reflected in the compensation
and reward structure.

Risk governance and oversight

Risk governance describes the arch|tecture through which the Board aIIocates and delegates primary
accountability, responsibility and authority for risk management across the organisation.

Responsibility for risk oversight is delegated from the Board to the Risk Committee and Audit Committee. The
ultimate responsibility for risk remains with the Board.

Accountability, responsibility and authority for risk management is delegéted to the Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Risk Officer, who in turn allocate responsibility for oversight and certain approvals across a number of
management committees.

Authority and responsibility for material operational risk management, decision-making and risk assurance is
vested in the Chief Risk Officer and the risk function. Lesser levels of authority are cascaded to the senior
management within the support functions and business divisions. .

The Group’s key risk categories are detailed on page 41. Over5|ght of these key risk categones is illustrated
below:

G

Risk Committee Paudit Citt e

Risk . .
category 4 Firstline P ’ _Second line AThird line)

Enterprise Risk
Credit risk Management
Committee

Creditworthiness
risk

Liquidity and ) . ' Market and Asset and Liability

market risk . R liquidity risk Committee

Lo " ) Enterprise Risk
Operational risk (3 : e 0 Operational risk Management

Committee
Internal Audit

Conduct, legal and Enterprise Risk

compliance risk Compliance M(?::\?nei::ee;t
Strategic risk b Finance CE:ri(:;\)ittl:ze

systoms and ' ‘ Enterprise Risk

. C Operational risk’ Management
| change risk Committee

These bodies ahd senior officers are accountable and responsible for ensuring that the day-to-day risks are
appropriately managed within the agreed risk appetite and in accordance with the requirements of the RMF.

‘Individuals are encouraged to adopt an open and independent culture of challenge which is important in
ensuring risk issues are fully surfaced and debated with views and decisions recorded. Risk governance and
culture is reinforced by the provisions of the Senior Managers and Certification Regime.

Formal risk escalation and reporting requiréments are set out in risk policies, individual committee terms of
reference and the approved risk appetite thresholds and limits.
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Risk Management Report

Risk govérnance and oversight (continued)

Committee structure and risk responsibilities
The monitoring and controlling of risk is a fundamental part of the management process within the Group. The
Board oversees the management of the key risk categories across the organisation.

Three lines of defence model '
The Group’s RMF is underpinned by the ‘three lines of defence’ model which is summarised in the diagram
below:

Risk strategy

|
)
|
[

Risk appetite

\Gr up R ‘kL

Business Divisions : ' :
Led by the Chlef Risk Offlcer
Ceontral Functions Crednworthmess quuxdlty cmd Opergtibnal ‘ Pefored by
. . Market risk’, . risks . .
. M Deloitte] /DI -
~ e BRI 'g 5
Chief Chief Chief Human IC;Z::CI]:A:::I St}otegic Systems and g o 5
finance [fTechnology]} Operating Legal . ; . - FOCE T 3
Offico Office Office Resources| . com:?:;:nce .risk. .. change risk- E g)
L X : Q
u ~ X
1stline of defence 2nd line of defence 3rd line of defence P
a Owner of the risk management process ® Design, interpret and develop overall risk = Independent testing and
and regulatory compliance management framework, and monitor vearification of the Bank’s
1 & identifies, measures, manages, monitors business-as-usual adherence business model, policies,
and reports on risks & Overview and monitors top risks processes and business
i . line compliance
u Compliance; develop compliance policies, . .
lead requirements for regulatory changeand ™ Providesindependent
monitor horizon risks and regulatory issues assurance to the Board
and regulator that the risk
management process is
functioning as designed

The Group implemented an organisational change in 2019 to reflect the importance of technology and
operations to delivering the Group’s objectives.

" First line of defence

Responsibility for risk management resides in the frontline business divisions and central functions, and line
management is directly accountable for identifying and managing the risks that arise in their business or
functional area. They are required to establish effective controls in line with Group risk policy and act within
the risk appetite parameters set and approved by the Board. The first line of defence comprises each of the
three lending divisions. The first line of defence also includes the finance function led by the Chief Financial
Officer, the operations function led by the Chief Operating Officer, the technology function led by the Chief
Technology Officer, the human resources function led by the Group Human Resources Director and the legal
- function led by General Counsel and Company Secretary. Operational resiliency and outsourcing oversight is
performed by the Chief Operating Officer and the Chief Technology Officer. Whilst the human resources and
legal functions are not customer facing themselves, they provide support and back up to the customer facing
divisions and have insight into many operational factors that could ultimately impact on Group’s exposure to
liquidity, market, credit, regulatory, legal, conduct, compliance and operational risk.

Each division and functional area operates to set risk policies to ensure that activities remain within the Board’s
stated risk appetite for that area of the Group. The risk policies are approved by the appropriate committee in
accordance with thelr terms of reference and reviewed annually with any material changes requiring approval
at committee level.

The first line of‘ defence has its own operational process and procedures manuals to demonstrate and
document how it conforms to the approved policies and controls. Likewise, it develops quality control
. programmes to monitor and measure adherence to and effectiveness of procedures. All employees within a
customer facing unit are considered first line of defence. Each employee is aware of the risks to the Group of
their particular activity and the divisional and function heads are responsible for ensuring there is a ‘risk aware’
" culture within the first line of defence. For certain key policies, divisional employees complete regular online
training programmes to ensure knowledge is refreshed and current.
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Risk governance and oversight (continued)

Second line of defence

The second line of defence comprises the Group's central and independent risk management and compliance
function led by the Chief Risk Officer, who reports to the Chair of the Risk Committee and to the Chief Executive
Officer. The Chief Risk Officer is also provided with unfettered access to the Chairman of the Board. The
second line of defence also includes the General Counsel and Company Secretary who report to the Chief
Executive Officer.

The high-level risk structure is shown below:

[ )

: Board Risk : Chief

: Committee : Executive
y . Chair |

1 . ]

b e - T -——-

General
Chief Risk ) : Counsel and

Officer Company
l  Secretary

Conduct and Risk and L Non-
. - Liquidity and .
compliance portfolio ) - performing
: . market risk
risk analytics loans

Enterprise
risk

Legal
department

The second line of defence is necessarily and deliberately not customer facing and has no respon3|b|I|ty for
any business targets or performance. It is primarily responsible for: :
e the design and build of the various components of the Group’s RMF and embeddlng these, together with
the risk strategy and risk appetite across the organisation;
e independent monitoring of the Group’s activities against the Board's risk appetite and limits, and provision
of monthly analysis and reporting on the risk portfolio to the Executlve Commlttee and the Board,
issuing and maintaining the suite of Group risk policies;
undertaking physical reviews of risk management, controls and capablllty in the first line. units and
providing risk assurance reports to. the Executive- Committee andthe Board on all aspects of I'ISkA
performance and compliance with the RMF; :
. providing advice and support to the first line of defence in relatlon to risk management activities;
credit approvals between divisional authority and the thréshold for Credit Approval Committee; and
e undertaking stress testing exercises and working with finance and treasury on the production of the
Internal Capital Adequacy -Assessment Process (ICAAP), Internal Liquidity Adequacy Assessment.
Process (ILAAP) and the Recovery Plan and Resolution Pack (collectwely the RRP). :

Third line of defence ‘ ' '

" The third line of defence, internal audit (currently outsourced to Deloitte LLP), provides mdependent assurance
on the activities of the Group, effectiveness of the Group’s RMF and internal controls directly to the Board and
Audit Committee. Internal audit reports directly to the Chair of the Audit Committee as well as: the Chlef
Executlve Officer and is independent of the flrst and second lines of defence
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Risk Management Report

Risk governance and oversight (continued)

The third line of defence has access to the activities and records of both the first and second lines of defence.

It can inspect and review adherence to policy and controls in the first line, the monitoring of activity in the

second line and the setting of policy and controls in the second line. The third line of defence does not

independently establish policy or controls itself, outside of those necessary to implement its recommendations

with respect to the other two lines of defence. The third line may in some cases use as a starting point the

* reports and reviews compiled by the second line but is not restricted to them or necessarily influenced by their
findings.

The third line of defence’s scope of work is agreed with the Audit Committee to provide an independent
-assessment of the governance, risk management and internal control frameworks operated by the Group and
to note the extent to which the Group is operating within its risk appetite. It does this by reviewing aspects of
the control environment, key processes and specuf c risks and includes review of the operation of the second
line of defence. : :

The Group’s engagement of Deloitte LLP to carry out the functions of the third line of defence provides the
Group with access to specialist capabilities beyond its current scale and provides in_sight into best practice.

Risk policies and controls

The RMF is enacted through a comprehensive suite of control documents and risk policies, setting out the
minimum requirements and standards in relation to the acquisition and management of risk assets as well as
the control of risks embedded in the Group’s operations, activities and markets.

The Group’s high level control documents and risk policies are owned and managed by the Group risk function,
headed by the Chief Risk Officer and approved by the Board or, where delegated, the appropnate Risk
Committee. The suite of policies is grouped according to importance and key risk categories.

Group level rlsk policies are supplemented as required by divisional risk processes and procedures, where
more specific and tailored criteria are detailed. Divisional processes and procedures are required to be -
compliant with Group policy and dispensations or waivers are required where gaps are identified. These
process and procedure manuals provide employees at all levels with day-to-day direction and gwdance inthe -

- executlon of their duties.

The effectiveness of and compliance with the risk policy framework is evaluated on a continuous basis through
the monthly reporting requirements (including risk policy exceptions reporting). Additionally, a quarterly control
self-certification process supplemented by a program of audits, thematic risk assurance reviews and quallty
control testing is undertaken by each of the three lines of defence.

Asset class policies

The Group controls its lending activities through 18 asset class poI|C|es and a further 13 lending policies. These
have been arranged to operate on a Group wide basis rather than based upon divisional products. This is
considered to provide a more stable, consistent risk standard and control across the Group’s portfolio. of loan
assets. Asset classes can also be aligned more readily with risk-weightings, probability of default (PD), loss
given default (LGD) and expected credit loss (ECL) metrics which facilitates risk reporting, risk adjusted .
profitability analysis and modelling for stress testing and capital adequacy purposes. '

Asset class policies are structured on the basis of policy rules which must be adhered to and guidelines where
an element of controlled discretion is permitted. All planned exceptions to policy rules require approval at the
Group risk level and both planned and unplanned exceptions to policy rules are reported monthly to the
relevant risk management committee.
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Risk Management Report(
Top and emerging risks
The Groﬁp's top and emerging risks are identified through the process outlined in the Risk Management
Framework (see page 27) and are considered regularly by Management through the Enterprise Risk

Management Committee and subsequently by the Risk Committee.

Top risks
The Group sees eight themes as its top rlsks

Geopolitical risk

" Economic and
competitive environment

Global pandemic risk -

IERER

Tiiie
i~

considered further below:

Pace of regulatory change

Intermediary, outsourcing
and operational resiliency

Pace, scoI‘é of change
and people risk

E
’S

&,

Creditimpairment

-Information risk

- These themes, together with the Group s strategy to mitigate the risk and the dlrectlon of each theme are

Top risk Mitigation Change
Geopolitical risk ‘No change

‘The Group's financial position
continues to improve with
continued profitability and
adequate capital ratios.
However, increasing
geopolitical risk presents a risk
to the business, its financials -
and earnings volatility following
an unprecedented political
event. '

The UK has experienced a
number of political events
during 2019. Although the UK
left the European Union (EU)
on 31 January 2020, nothing
has materially changed. The
risk of a disorderly Brexit may
have reduced, but there
remains a risk arising from the -
future trading arrangements.

' These risks have the potential -
to have an impact on the Group
and the impact could be wide
reaching; affecting other risks
such as economic, regulatory,
business change, outsourcing,
people, credit risk impairment
and conduct risk. '

The Group monitors the enwronment

| and.its chosen marketson a regular

basis and continues to prioritise
return on tangible equity over
volume.

The Group operates in specialist
areas where Management and
employees have significant expertise
and a deep understanding of
customer needs, to drive a long-term
relationship with its customers -

-| through the cycle.

'I"he'Group u.ndertakes a "
comprehensive assessment of its

‘| risk appetite and stress tests its

lending and deposit portfolios to
ensure that it can meet its objectives
in severe but plausible economic

_conditions. .

| and in particular the reaction of

.economic outlook

The UK economic outlook is
expected to remain favourable
by historical standards but with
increasing risks to the downside
that may increase the potential
for volatility for the Group and
its customers.

Developmehts regarding the
UK'’s withdrawal from the EU,

households, businesses and
asset prices to them, remain a
significant influence on, and
source of uncer’tamty about the
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Top and emerging risks (continued)

Risk Management Report

Top risk

Mitigation

Change

Economic and competitive
environment

A reversal in UK economic

conditions, particularly in

England where the majority of

the Group’s operations are

based, could affect the Group’s

performance in a number of

ways. These are set out below:

¢ lower demand for the
Group’s products and
services;

¢ changes in funding costs
resulting from ongoing
political uncertainty
accompanied by a loss of
confidence in the market;

¢ rising competition
compressing Group margins
below sustainable levels;
and

¢ higher impairments through
increased defaults and/or
reductions in collateral
values.

The Group uses its expertise and
deep understanding of its customers’
needs.to drive long-term
relationships with its customers
through the cycle.

The Group monitors its chosen
markets on a regular basis and
during 2019 has decided to refocus
on being the specialist small and
medium enterprises (SME) lender of
choice and has launched its first
deposit account for SME's. The
Group has divested its Shawbrook

- | International Limited business and

completed the divestment of a
portfolio of unsecured personal loans
from its Consumer Lending business
in Q1 2020. The Group reviews
adjacent markets where it has
expertise and considers
opportunities for inorganic growth
that are consistent with its strategy.

. Thé Group operates in specialist

areas where Management and
employees have expertise and a -
deep understanding of customer
needs to deliver superior service. As
a result, loans to SMEs are subject
to bespoke underwriting based on
their ability to repay and sufficient
security. '

The Group undertakes a
comprehensive assessment of its
risk appetite to ensure that it can

-| meet its objectives in severe but
plausible economic conditions. The.

Group completes comprehensive .
stress testing of its lending and

'| deposit portfolios to test resilience to

severe but plausible economic
conditions.

_The Group also establishes a
_prudent balance sheet strategy with'

robust levels of capital and liquidity
and a prudent funding structure.

.avoided a recession in Q4 2019

- actions, both fiscal and

Risk increased

The UK economy has

continued to be resilient during -
2019 led by strong employment
and conditions that continue to
support affordability. However,
the UK economy has narrowly

and the Board expects there to
be a continued period of
uncertainty.

As at 31 December 2019, the
risk of a disorderly exit from the
EU has reduced but there
remains a risk arising from the
nature of any future relationship
with the EU. -

The outbreak of coronavirus
(Covid-19) has now been
labelled a global pandemic by
the World Health Organization.
If it continues to spread, it is -
likely to further intensify the
disruptive impact on the global -
and UK economy resulting in
falling.investment and
consumer spending and
deteriorating market '
sentiments..Government

monetary, may prove to be slow .
to take effect and/or uncertain
in their impact. '
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Top and emerging risks (continued)

Risk Management Report

Change

The outbreak of coronavirus
(Covid-19) has been labelled a
global pandemic by the World
Health Organization and is
creating disruption to the global
economy.

In the UK it has initially resulted
in market volatility and is
impacting investment through:

e |ost output because of
reduced movement and
dislocation in supply chains;

e lower productivity because
of travel restrictions, social
distancing, self-isolation

~ and sickness;

e impact on employment’
levels, particularly for self-
employed,; ' '

e reduced consumer
spending and business
investment;and”

o impact on other relevant

_macroeconomic variables
including residential and.

-commercial property prices,
interest rates and size of -
key markets.

Top risk Mitigation
Global pandemic risk New risk

The Group has taken a considered
approach to minimising and
managing the impact of a
coronavirus related global pandemic.

The Group has implemented its
Incident Management Plan and has
been successfully operating with the
majority of employees working from
home. The Group has complied with
all the latest government guidance,
best practice and has implemented
an operating structure to ensure that

the Group can deliver a sustainable -

service to its customers, whilst taking
care of the health of its employees
and families.

The Group has undertaken an
assessment of the risks associated

| with a Covid-19 pandemic scenario
"in a stress test to understand the

impacts on its key operating
divisions and third parties. =

| operational resilience and risk -

continuity planning working

The Group has assessed the
Covid-19 risk relative to the
Bank of England ‘Rates Down’
scenario, which is' used to
ensure the Bank’s viability
through the Group’s ICAAP.
Based on current information
available to the Group, the
Board believes that the severity
of the financial risks of Covid-19
are contained within, and are
not as severe as, the ‘Rates
Down’ scenario.

The potential impact of the
Covid-19 pandemic on the
economy and the Group’s

appetite is subject.to-
continuous monitoring through
the Group’s management
committees and business

group, with appropriate
escalation to the Board and
supervisory authorities.
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Top and emerging risks (continued)

Risk Management Report

Top risk

Mitigation

Change

Pace of requlatory change

The prudential and conduct
regulatory regimes are subject
to change and c¢ould lead to
increases in the level and
quality of capital that the Group
needs to hold to meet
regulatory requirements.

The Financial Policy Committee
(FPC) reduced the
countercyclical buffer from 1%
to 0% with effect from March
2020 as part of a number of
special measures in response
to the coronavirus pandemic
and announced that'it would not
expect to increase the
countercyclical buffer until
March 2022.

The Prudential Regulation -
Authority (PRA) and Financial
Conduct Authority (FCA) have
undertaken a number of ‘
thematic reviews during 2019.

The regulatory environment
continues to evolve and change. The
Group actively engages with
regulators, industry bodies and
advisors to actively engage in
consultation processes. The Group
actively reviews regulatory
publications to assess their
implications for the business and .
oversees the impact analysis
through its Regulatory Change -
Working Group.

The Group undertakes forward
capital planning and sensitivity
analysis using its ICAAP to ensure
that the Group has sufficient time to
respond to any changes in capital
requirements. The Group believes
that the financial risks of Covid-19
are contained within, and are not as’
severe as, the Bank of England .
prescribed ‘Rates Down’ scenario.

- standardised approach in

-| requirements over the period of

Risk increased

UK financial services
businesses remain subject to
significant scrutiny and the
current level of risk is elevated
when compared to last year.

The Group adopts the ,
standardised approach to credit
risk. The Basel Committee on
Banking Supervision

announced changes to the risk-
weightings under the

December 2017 that will lead to
an increase in capital

the strategic plan.

The Group was included in the
PRA thematic review of Fast
Growing Firms and has
invested in addressing material
observations by the. 31
December 2019.

The Group submitted its
Climate Change Plan in
October 2019 to the PRA and
has submitted its responses to
consultations on the retail
banking review and the SME
banking review. The Group also
submitted its plans to manage ..
the migration from London
Inter-Bank Offered Rate
(LIBOR) to the PRA in
December 2019.
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Top and emerging risks (continued)

Risk Management Report

and operational resiliency

The Group is a specialist
lending and savings bank for
SMEs and consumers. The
‘| specialist nature of some of its
lending through intermediaries
and brokers could mean that
some customers find
themselves with an increased
risk of an unfavourable _
outcome. For the Group this
| could also lead to increased
conduct related redress,
.. | additional fraud or credit risk

‘| impairments. '

The Group uses a number of

third parties to support the

delivery of its objectives. The

availability and resiliency of its

core customer facing systems

| play a key role in supporting the
| Group's reputation in its chosen
markets.

Top risk “Mitigation - Change
Intermediary, outsourcing No change

1 The Group works with carefully

selected intermediary and broker .
partners who take on the role of

| ‘advising SMEs and consumers. The
Group recognises that it is ultimately

accountable for the lending it
originates through its partners and
continually undertakes reviews of -
their performance.

The Group continually reviews its
risk management approach to
intermediaries, brokers and
outsource partners to reflect the
regulatory environment in which the

.Group operates.

)| party relationships through

- resiliency including the use of

| resiliency.

The Group has continued to
invest in its oversight of
intermediaries, brokers and
outsource partners during 2019.

The Group continued to invest
in its relationship with Target
Servicing Limited and expects
to further improve the Group’s
outsourcing risk profile. This
includes (but is not limited to)
work on financial crime, arrears
management, forbearance and
resiliency planning. The Group
continues to explore other third

which to deliver its objectives
and improve operational

Cloud technologies and
specialist risk providers.

The Group appointed a Head of
Operational Resiliency in 2019
reporting to the Chief Operating’
Officer to oversee the Group’s
approach to operational

Pace, scale of chang e and
people risk . -

The scale and pace of change
.| could create delivery

| challenges and could lead to
disruption of the Group’s plans -
and-in the delivery of its
objectlves

The Group is a diverse _
specialist lending and savings
bank and has a need to deliver
a significant number of projects
over the plan to deliver its

- | objectives. Failure to deliver the

required change may lead to a

* | disruption in the delivery of its

_ objectlves

The Group understands the need to
manage change without disrupting
the Group’s operating environment.
and impacting customer service. The
Group has further updated its
change prioritisation process in 2019
to prioritise change and has
increased its capability in agile
working to ensure that requirements
are delivered on time and within

' budget

‘and scale of change without

| in its leadership community

‘| management plans.

Risk increased

The Group continues to invest
in its change management
processes to increase the pace

impacting on the Group’s
operations and customer
service.

The Group continues to invest

through an ‘Inspire’ leadership
programme and has focused on
the actions arising from its
people engagement surveys
and regular reviews of the
succession and talent
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Top and emerging risks (continued)

Risk Management Report

Top risk

Mitigation

Change

Credit impairment

As at 31 December 2019, the
Group had customer loans

loans held for sale and net of
loss allowances) of £6.8 billion
and is exposed to credit
impairment if customers are
unable to repay loans and any
outstanding interest and fees.

In addition, the Group has
exposure to a small number of
counterparties with whom it
places surplus funding.

(including operating leases and

The Group recognises that it will
experience credit impairment in
connection with its lending activities,
but manages its exposure by:

¢ undertaking a prudent
assessment of through-the-cycle
losses in pricing, forecasting and
stress testing;

¢ maintaining consistent and
conservative loan to value ratios
and avoiding material weakening
of credit quality to drive volumes;

¢ lending predominantly on a

. secured basis against identifiable
and accessible assets;

e operating strong controls and
governance with effective
oversight by a centralised Group
credit team; and

e maintaining a prudent treasury

counterparty policy with surplus
funding placed with the Bank of
England and UK clearing banks.

- Risk increased

Underlying Group credit
impairment has remained low
by historical standards,
reflecting favourable market
conditions in the UK and the
.Group’s approach to lending.

The Group’s counterparty
exposure has remained broadly
unchanged with the majority of
surplus funding placed with the
Bank of England and balances

| with UK clearing banks.

The Group believes that the
potential for additional credit
impairment has increased with
the outlook for the UK economy
given recent forecasts and the
potential impact of the
coronavirus pandemic.

Information risk

The pace of technological
development is changing the
way in which SMEs and
consumers want to engage with
the Group, leading to a number
of risks. These are set out
below:

e increasing customer
demand could exceed the
Group’s ability to provide
highly reliable and widely
available systems and
services;

« "the evolving nature and
scale of criminal activity
could increase the likelihood
and severity of attacks on
the Group's systems; and

e franchise value and
customer trust could be
significantly eroded by a
sustained hack of the
Group’s systems leading to
a diversion of funds or the
theft of customer data.

The Group continually reviews its
control environment for information
security to reflect the evolving nature
of the threats to which the Group is
exposed.

The Group’s strategy for mitigating
information security risk is
comprehensive, including: a
documented cyber strategy, ongoing
threat assessments, regular
penetration testing, the wide
deployment of detective controls and

| a programme of education and

training.

The Group continues to invest in its
technology layer including the use of
Cloud computing resources to
improve resiliency and the

implementation of additional controls

to support the security of its core

systems. This includes investment in -

asset management and investment
in additional external resources to
support systems that are
approaching the end of their support.

Risk increased

The Group appointed a Chief
Information Security Officer in
2019 and has continued to

| invest in its capabilities to

reduce its exposure to a cyber-
attack and plans to adopt
1IS027001 to further refine its
risk appetite and controls with
respect to information security.
However, the risk of information
security breaches, threats from
cyber-crime and the impact of
new technology on the Group’s
businesses remain.
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Risk Management Report

Top and emerging risks (continued)

UK withdrawal from the EU

The UK left the EU on 31 January 2020. As the Group’s business model is primarily focused in the UK, the
Group has very limited direct exposure to the EU. However, the Group is exposed to secondary impacts,
particularly volatility in the UK economy and financial markets given the uncertain nature of both the
implementation period and the future relationship between the UK and the EU. The Group has considered a
number of potential outcomes, including ultimately leaving without a deal at the end of the transition period,
through its stress testing programme and in its preparations for alternative economic outcomes. The Group
continues to closely monitor and analyse political, economic and regulatory developments to ensure it remains
well positioned to respond to any potential shocks and minimise any disruption for customers and employees.
Brexnt is included as one of the Group’s emerging risks in the following section.

“Coronavirus (Covid- 19) assessment

The outbreak of coronavirus has been labelled a global pandemlc by the World Health Organization. The
Group has implemented its Incident Management Plan and has been successfully operating with the majority
of employees working from home. The Group has complied with all the latest government guidance, best
practice and has implemented an operating structure to ensure that the Group can deliver a sustainable service
to its customers, whilst taking care of the health of its employees and families. The Group has good coverage
of VPN and Citrix connections for its employees to access its core systems, with performance of these
connections monltored by the Chief Technology Officer and escalated as appropriate.

The Group’s key operating divisions have focussed on serving the needs of its existing customers and
welcomes the rapid actions taken by the Bank of England and the UK government to support SME'’s and
consumers. The key risks to the Consumer Lending division have been reduced following the placement of a
portfalio of loans as held for sale in December 2019, which has left the Group with a relatively small portfolio
of unsecured personal loans. The key residual risks to the Consumer Lending division relate to the solvency
of suppliers within the home improvement and holiday ownership sectors, where the division has Section 75
exposure. In the Property Finance division, short-term risks relate to exposure to short-term lending and the
refinance risk at the end of the loan agreement. The Property Finance division has significant exposure to buy-
to-let customers where the risks relate to property prices and unemployment. In Business Finance, the key
areas of emerging risk are exposure to the taxi, marine, aviation and leisure sectors within specialist asset
finance. -

The Group has assessed the Covid-19 risk relative to the Bank of England ‘Rates Down’ scenario, which is

" used to ensure the Bank’s viability through the Group’s ICAAP. Based on current information available to the

Group, the Board believes that the severity of the financial risks of Covid-19 are contained within, and are not

as severe as, the ‘Rates Down’ scenario. The Covid-19 scenarios take into consideration the following drivers

and implications relevant to a pandemic crisis:

e government guidance and fiscal policy response to the cnsus

e Bank of England monetary response to the crisis;

e PRA and FPC prudential response to the crisis (specifically guidance provided on 20 March 2020 to

' remind firms that forward looking information used in ECL estimates needs to be both reasonable and

- . supportable and that the PRA believes that there is very little of such information available as yet, but in

any event, the PRA expects firms to reflect the temporary nature of this shock and fully take into account
the significant economic support measures already announced by global fiscal and monetary authorities);

« lost output and productivity because of travel restrictions, social distancing, self-isolation and sickness;
impact on employment levels, particularly for self—employed and flexible worklng segments of the labour
force;

e - implication for consumer spendmg and busmess investment; and
impact on other relevant economic variables, including residential and commercial property prices, Bank
of England base rate, national output and lending volumes.

The Covid-19 scenarios are designed to be extreme, but plausible, based on the assumption that the impact
on the UK economy is immediate and quickly feeds through into a sharp. fall in output (GDP), rising
unemployment rates but from a low-base by historical standards, a short-term softening of residential and
- commercial property prices and a slowdown in demand for lending. The Treasury and Bank of England take
proactive fiscal and monetary stimulatory actions, but given the invasive nature of the pandemic, the UK
~ economy does not show signs of recovery until 2021.

The potential impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the economy and the Group’s operational resilience and
risk appetite is subject to continuous monitoring through the Group’s management committees and business
continuity plar_ming working group, with appropriate escalation to the Board and supervisory authorities.
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Top and emerging risks (continued)

Emerging risks
The Group has identified five emerging risks:

*"ﬁ'/:} .
L Brexit
*
L e .

Minimum requirements for own funds and
eligible liabilities funding requirements

&l

Financial crime

Risk Management Report

- Climate change

LIBOR transition

Lz
iﬂfﬁ’

- Each emerging risk, together with the Group’s strategy to mitigate the risk, is detailed on the following pages:

Emerging risk

Mitigation

Brexit

The UK left the EU on 31 January 2020. Although
the risk of a disorderly Brexit has reduced, there
remains the back stop of a disruptive Brexit
following the discussions on the future trading
relationship.

The Group does not have operations outside of the

the UK economy. Although the imminent risk of a
disorderly Brexit may have reduced there is a risk
that a disruptive Brexit may occur in the event that
the UK is not able to negotiate a suitable trading

relationship with the EU. In the event of a disruptive
| Brexit, the availability of skilled workers or ability to
export goods to the EU at competitive prices may
impact some of the Group’s customers.

UK so the key risk is considered to be a downturn in -

The Group has retained an alternative downside
scenario based on a disorderly no-deal Brexit. The
scenario is based on a significant reduction in
investment which helps to move the UK into a
recession, increasing unemployment. In the short-
term, the consumer price index remains elevated
before deflationary pressures on sterling and gross
domestic product start to reduce the consumer
price index, presenting an opportunity for the
Monetary Policy Committee to reduce interest rates.

The Group has considered the first order impacts
on its strategy arising from a fall in investment that
may lead to a reduction in demand for its lending
products and that may impact the Group’s ability to
grow in its SME markets. It has also considered the
impact of a fall in residential and commercial
property prices within its Property Finance division
and the impact of an increase in default in its
Consumer Lending division following an increase in
unemployment. The Group considers that the
current alternatives fall within its current stress
testing scenarios and has considered through its
ICAAP the impact on its key suppliers.

Minimum requirements for own funds and
eligible liabilities (MREL) funding requirements

MREL is an EU regulation that supports orderly
resolution and protects depositors and taxpayers in
the event of bank failure. The Group is currently not
.considered in scope however, over time the Group
may fall in scope for more complex resolution
strategies and going concern requirements.

The Group actively monitors its position in relation
to MREL and as part of its strategic decision-
making. The Group will engage with the PRA during
its strategic planning process to understand the
point that the Group may face additional MREL
requirements to ensure that the Group has plenty of
time to prepare.
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Top and'er_ﬁerging risks (continued)

Risk Management Report

Emerging risk

Mitigation

Financial crime

The risk of a downturn in the UK economy could
result in an increased risk of financial crime activity.

The Group is enhancing its expertise in the first line
of defence to ensure a continued focus on strategy
and regulatory compliance. In addition, the Group is
working with external parties to identify new tools to
support the automation of its customer due
diligence processes.

Climate change

On 15 April 2019 the PRA published Policy
Statement PS11/19 & Supervisory Statement
-883/19 both titled “Enhancing banks’ and insurers’
approaches to managing the financial risks from
climate change” requiring Shawbrook to form a
Climate Change Plan focused on:

o the embeddlng of the consuderanon of financial
risks from climate change in governance
arrangements; A

¢ the incorporation of financial risks from climate
change into the existing financial risk
management practice;

+ the use.of (long-term) scenario analysis to
inform strategy setting, risk assessment and risk
.identification; and

¢ the development of an approach to dlsclosure
on the financial risks from climate change.

The Group has apppointed the Chief Risk-Officer as
the responsible executive to oversee the '
embedding of climate related matters and has
moved to include climate change risk within its RISk
Management Framework. :

The Group submitted its Climate Change Plan to
the regulator on 10 October 2019 and is currently
working with UK Finance and other leading
suppliers of climate analysis in order to develop the
Group’s risk appetite.

LIBOR transition

The Group like other firms supervised in the UK are
required to transition away from LIBOR to
aiternative interest rate benchmarks ahead of the
end of 2021. The Group must make sure that its
customers are managed through the transition in
good time to manage good customer outcomes and .
that new contracts are linked to alternative rates in
good time.

The Group has appointed the Chief Financial ,
Officer as the responsible executive and a LIBOR
working group, reporting through to the Chief
Financial Officer, has been formed. This working
group manages the Group’s assessment of the
alternative rates for its lending divisions and the

transition plan for both new and existing customers

in advance of the end of 2021.
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Risk Management Report

Key risk categories

The key risk categories faced by the Group are set out in the table below Oversight of the Group’s key risk
categories is outlined on page 28

change risk

critical systems resulting |n them becoming unavailable durlng core
operational times.

Change risk is the risk that transition changes in the business will not
be supported by appropriate change capability. and be .improperly
implemented. It is also the risk that too many in-flight changes cause
disruption to business operations.

. T Further
Risk category ‘Definition ‘ details’
Creditworthiness | Creditworthiness risk is the risk that a borrowing client or treasury | See page 42
risk .counterparty fails to repay some or all of the capital or interest
(Audited)? advanced to them due to lack of willingness to pay (credit risk) and/or

lack of ability to pay (affordability).
The creditworthiness risk category also includes. credit concentration
risk, which is the risk of exposure to particular groups of customers,
sectors or geographies that, uncontrolled, may lead to additional
losses that the Shareholder or the market may not expect.
Liquidity risk Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its current and | See page 63
(Audited)? future financial obligations as they fall due, or is only able to do so at _—
excessive cost. . .
Market risk Market risk is the risk of financial Ioes through unhedged or | See page 67
(Audited)? mismatched asset and liability positions that are sensitive to changes
in interest rates or currencies.
Operational risk | Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed | See pege 7
: internal processes, people and system failures, or from external :
events including strategy and reputational risks.
Conduct, legal Conduct risk is the risk that the Group’s behaviour will result in poor | See page 71
and compliance | customer outcomes and that the Group s people fail to behave with
risk | integrity.
Legal and compliance risk is the risk of regulafory enforcement and
sanction, material financial loss, or loss to reputation the Group may
suffer as a result of its failure to identify and comply with applicable
laws, regulations, codes of conduct and standards of good practice.
Strategic risk Strategic risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its objectives | See page 72
through the inappropriaté selection or implementation of strategic
plans. This includes the ablllty to generate lending volumes within the
Group's risk appetite.
Systems and Systems risk is the risk that -new threats are introduced to the Group’s | See page 72

1 Except where indicated, disclosures relating to each of the key risk categories are at the Group level only. Where there is a material
difference between the Group and Company separate disclosure is provided as indicated within the dlsclosures

2 Disclosures relating to this key risk category are covered by the Independent Auditor’'s Report.
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Risk Management Report
Key risk categories (continued)

Creditworthiness risk
Audited: The following section is covered by the Independent Auditor’s Report.

Creditworthiness risk is managed by the Enterprise Risk Management Committee and the Asset and Liability
Committee.

The main components of creditworthiness risk are customer credit risk (from core lending activity) and treasury
credit risk (from treasury activity). The Group’s treasury credit risk exposure is limited to short-term deposits
placed with- leading UK banks and high quality covered bonds purchased for inclusion in the Group’s liquid
asset buffer. Treasury credit risk associated wrth any reverse repo or derivative transactions is mitigated by
high quality collateral.

(a). Credlt risk approval process

The Group operates a hierarchy of lending authorities based principally upon the size of the aggregated credit
risk exposure to counterparties, group of connected counterparties or, where applicable, a portfolio of lending
assets that are subject to a single transaction. In addition to maximum amounts of credit exposure, sole lending
mandates may stipulate sub-limits and/or further conditions and criteria.

Each division has a maximum authority level allocated, with exposures above these levels requiring approval-
from an approver in the second line of defence or the Credit Approval Committee. In each lending division, at
least one ‘signatory to the loan must be a segregated first line of defence credit approver who has no
responsibility for, or remuneration arrangements linked to, sales targets,  ongoing sales origination or
relationship responsibility with the borrower. The Board approved a change to the credit approval process in
December 2019 that will result in all credit approval authorities transferring out of the Business Finance and
_Property Finance divisions from 1 February 2020. The transfer of the remammg limited delegations inside the
Consumer Lending division wnll take place by 31 March 2020. ,

The maximum divisional mandate for Business Finance and commercial mortgages in Property Finance during
2019 was £1.25 million. The maximum divisional mandate during 2019 for residential mortgages in Property
Finance was £100,000 and for Consumer Lending was £75,000. Exposures beyond these limits up to £5 million
may be approved by an approver in the second line of defence and exposures up to the Group single name
concentration limit of £25 million must be approved by the Credit Approval Committee. The Group has a
nominal appetite for wholesale exposures above £25 million within the lending authority of the Credit Approval
Committee. In addition, where transactions involve financing portfolios of lending assets in excess of £15
million, or where an individual loan is required in excess of appetite, Board approval is also required.

Lending is advanced subject to the Group lending approval po'lic'y and specific credit criteria. When evaluating
the credit quality and covenant of the borrower, significant emphasis is placed on the nature of the underlying
collateral. This process also includes the review of the Board's appetite for concentration risk. '

‘The Group is a responsible Iender and consumer affordability has remained a key area of focus for the Group.
The Group’s ‘approach to affordability is set out in a Board approved responsible lending policy that is
embedded within each-lending division’s lending guides. .

(b) Credlt momtormg

Approval and ongoing monitoring control is exercised both within the d|V|S|ons and through oversught by the
Group’s credit risk function. This applies to both individual transactlons as well as at the portfolio level, by way
of monthly credit information reportlng, measurement against risk appetite limits and testmg via risk quality
assurance reviews. : .

The divisions operate collections and arrears management processes through the Chief Operatlng ‘Office
function. In 2019, the Group further invested in the development of new collections strategies for its Consumer
Lending division and residential mortgage portfolio within the Property Fmance division to ensure that the
Group is well posmoned for a more challenging environment.

Shawbrook Bank Limited Annual Report and Accounts 2019 ! ; 42



Risk Management Report
Key risk categories (continued)
Creditworthiness risk (continued)

(c) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with the Group’s accounting policy (Note 1.7(x) of the Financial Statements), nmpalrment of
financial assets is calculated using a forward looking expected credit loss (ECL) model. ECLs are an unbiased
probability-weighted estimate of credit losses determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes.

The Group calculates ECLs and records a loss allowance for all financial assets not held at fair value through
profit or loss, together with financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments.

Measurement of ECLs depends on the ‘stage’ the financial asset is allocated to based on changes in credit

risk occurring since initial recognition as described below:

e  Stage 1: when a financial asset is first recognlsed it is aSS|gned to Stage 1. If there is no significant
increase in credit risk from initial recognition the financial asset remains in Stage 1. Stage 1 also includes
financial assets where the credit risk has improved and the financial asset has been reclassified back
from Stage 2. For financial assets in Stage 1, a 12-month ECL is recognised.

o  Stage 2: when a financial asset shows a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognltlon (SICR)
it is moved to Stage 2. Stage 2 also includes financial assets where the credit risk has improved and the
financial asset has been reclassified back from Stage 3 For financial assets in Stage 2, alifetime ECL is-
recognised. :

e Stage 3: when there is objective evidence of impairment and the financial asset is considered to be in
default, or otherwise credlt-lmpalred iti is moved to Stage 3 For financial assets in Stage 3, a lifetime ECL
|s recognised. :

-In relation to the above:

o Lifetime ECL is defined as ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected behavroural
life of a financial instrument.

e 12-month ECL is defined as the portlon of lifetime ECL that will result if a default occurs in the 12 months
after the reportmg date welghted by the probability of that default oceurring.

For fmancral guarantee contracts the Group aSS|gns a stage using the definitions described above.

For loan commitments, where the loan commitment relates to the undrawn component of a facmty, it is
assigned to the same stage as the drawn component of the facility. For pipeline Ioans the loan commitment
is assigned to Stage 1.

The following sections set out further analysis of the Group’s loss allowance, details regarding the calculation
of ECLs and an assessment of the cntlcal accounting judgements and estimates associated with the .
_impairment of financial assets

An_alysrs of the Group s loss allowance ’

The Group calculates ECLs for its financial assets not held at fair value through profit or loss. This includes:
cash and balances at-central banks, loans and advances to banks, loans and advances to customers and
investment securities. The Group also calculates ECLs for its financial guarantee contracts and loan
commltments :

In the year en_ded 31 December 2019, the Group also has a portfolio of loans classified as held for sale (see
Note 23 of the Financial Statements). These loans are separately presented in the Group’s statement of
financial position as assets held for sale and are not included in the balance of loans and advances to
customers. The loans continue to be measured at amortised cost, with a loss aIIowance recognised.

Further analysis of the loss aIIowance in respect of the Group sfi nancral assets; financial guarantee contracts
and loan commitments are provrded in the following sections. .

Cash and balances at central banks, loans and advances to banks and investment securities

The loss allowances for cash and balances at.central banks, loans and advances to banks and mvestrnent
secuntles are immaterial, totalling less than £0.1 million in both reported years. :
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Risk Management Report
Key risk categories (continued)

Creditworthiness risk (continued)

Loans and advances to customers
The loss allowance for loans and advances to customers is £61.1 million (2018: £67.8 million).

The following tables provide an analysis of loans and advances to customers by reportable segment and the
year-end stage classification: ‘ :

Property Business Consumer

‘ Finance Finance Lending Total
As at 31 December 2019 v £m £m £m £m
Stage 1 , , 3,813.9 1,486.6 . 5473 5,847.8
Stage 2 538.3 134.7 43.6 716.6
Stage 3 ' , ~ 89.0 291 7.5 125.6
Gross carrying amount . : 4,441.2 16504 = 598.4 6,690.0
Stage 1 ‘ (3.7) (8.8) (8.1) (20.6)
Stage 2 , , (2.7) - (3.8) (7.7) (14.2)
Stage3 - (8.1) (12.9) (5.3) (26.3)
Loss allowance (14.5) (25.5) (21.1) (61.1)
Carrying amount! ' 4,426.7 1,624.9 577.3 6,628.9
Loss allowance coverage - ' . -
Stage 1 0.1% ~ 0.6% 1.5% 0.4%
Stage 2 ' ' 0.5% 2.8% 17.7% 2.0%
Stage 3 : s : 9.1% 44.3% 70.7% 20.9%

Total loss allowance coverage 0.3% 1.5% - 3.5% 0.9%

Property - Business  Consumer

. Finance Finance Lending Total
As at 31 December 2018 £m £m £m £m
. Stage 1 3,051.5 -~ 11797 690.8 4,922.0
Stage 2 - 607.8 188.5 75.3 871.6
Stage 3 ' ' - ' 60.6 54.0 6.6 121.2
Gross carrying amount 3,719.9 1,422.2 772.7 5,914.8
Stage 1 : (2.0) - (5.9) "~ (15.6) - (23.5)
Stage 2 - ' .. (5.5) (4.0) - (11.2) (20.7)
Stage 3 , - (6.2) (13.0) (4.4) (23.6)
Loss allowance - (13.7) (22.9) ©(31.2) (67.8)
Carrying amount’ : 3,706.2 1,399.3 741.5 5,847.0 .
Loss allowance coverage » ' .
-Stage 1 _ » 0.1% 05% . 23% . 0.5%
Stage 2 - - 0.9% 2.1% 14.9% 2.4%
Stage 3 . 102% @~ 24.1% 66.7% 19.5%
Total loss allowance coverage . 0 0.4% 1.6% - 4.0% 1.1%

1 Excludes fair value adjustments _for hedged risk.
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Key risk categories (continued)

Creditworthiness risk (continued)

Risk Management Report

The following tables provide an analysis of loans and advances to customers by type and the year-end stage

classification:
Finance Instaiment
Loan lease credit
receivables receivables receivables Total
As at 31 December 2019 £m £m £m £m
Stage 1 5,437.2 66.4 344.2 5,847.8
Stage 2 680.7 5.5 304 716.6
Stage 3 108.7 9.1 7.8 125.6
Gross carrying amount 6,226.6 -81.0 382.4 6,690.0
Stage 1 (16.8). (1.0) (2.8) (20.6)
Stage 2 - (121) -(0.3) (1.8) (14.2)
Stage 3 (18.5) (5.1) (2.7) (26.3)
Loss allowance (47.4) (6.4) (7.3) (61.1)
Carrying amount’ 6,179.2 74.6 375.1 6,628.9
Loss allowance coverag :
Stage 1 : 0.3% 1.5% 0.8% 0.4%
Stage 2 1.8% 5.5% 5.9% 2.0%
Stage 3 17.0% 56.0% 34.6% 20.9%
Total loss allowance coverage 0.8% "~ 7.9% 1.9% 0.9%
Finance instalment
Loan lease credit
receivables receivables receivables Total
As at 31 December 2018 £m £m £m £m
Stage 1 4,470.2 77.4 3744 49220
Stage 2 834.9 8.1 28.6 871.6
Stage 3 105.3 9.5 6.4 121.2
Gross carrying amount 54104 95.0 - 409.4 5,914.8
Stage 1° (20.5) (0.5) (2.5) (23.5)
Stage 2 (18.3) (1.1) (1.3) (20.7)
Stage 3 . (15.3) (5.6) (2.7) (23.6)
Loss allowance (54.1) (7.2) (6.5) (67.8)
Carrying amount’ 5,356.3 87.8 402.9 5,847.0
Loss allowance coverage .
Stage 1 ' 0.5% 0.6% 0.7% 0.5%
Stage 2 2.2% 13.6% 4.5% . 2.4%
Stage 3 14.5% 58.9% 42.2% - 19.5%
Total loss allowance coverage 1.0% 7.6% 1.6% 1.1%

The reduction in total loss allowance coverage from 1.1% as at 31 December 2018 to 0.9% as at 31 December

2019 is primarily due to:

e anincrease in lending in the Property Finance division which has a lower loss allowance coverage; and

¢ areduction in Consumer Lending which.has a higher loss allowance coverage. This is as a result of lower
loan originations as the division implemented its new credit strategy and the transfer of a portfolio of
unsecured personal loans to assets held for sale.

1 Excludes fair value adjustments for hedged risk.
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Risk Management Report
Key risk categories (continued)
Creditworthiness rlsk (continued)

The following table prowdes an analysis of movements during the year in the loss allowance assocuated with
loans and advances to customers

2019 ’ _ 2018

Stage 1 Stage2 Stage3 Total Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m - £m
As at 1 January 23.5 20.7 23.6 67.8 - 10.5 7.5 13.6 31.6
Impact of adoptmg ‘ i . ) .
IFRS 9 - ' 6.8 5.0 9.3 21.1
Restated balance ' ‘ _
as at 1 January 23.5 20.7 23.6 67.8 17.3 12.5 22..9 52.7
~ ECL charge for the
year ' :
Transfer to Stage 1 7.2 (6.3) (0.9). - 4.3 (3.8) (0.5) -
~ _Transferto Stage2 . (1.6) 1.9 (0.3) - (1.4) 3.2 (1.8) -
"_Transfer to Stage 3 - (2.1) (6. 0) 8.1 - (0.8) (2.7) 3.5 -
New financial assets , ' , - ‘ =
ariginated or 84 0.3 02 89 . 13.2 13 05 150
purchased S,
‘Financial assets that ' '
have been (0.6) 0.7)  (2.3) (3.6) 3.2) (1.8) (39 (8.9
~_derecognised - -
‘ S;f"?ges L (7.9) 6.0 140 121 (5.8) 11.4 111 187
Modifications without o ' ‘
" derecognition (07 02 46 4.1 (0.1) 0.6 2.9 3.4
_Write-offs - - -(189)  (18.9) - o1 (d1a)
Total ECL charge 27  (46) 45 26 . 62 8.2 07  15.1

for the year -

" Loss allowance
derecognised on -
disposal of
subsidiary
Loss allowance _ . . _ , A

_ transferred to assets (5.3) .(1.6) (1.6) (8.5) - - - -

03)  (03) (02) (0.8) - e

held for sale . S
Total movement in - o

' loss allowance (2.9) (6.5)‘. 27 (6.7) 6.2 8.2 0.7 15.1
As at 31 December . 206  14.2 26.3 61.1. 235 20.7 23.6 67.8

: : Tot'ail loss- aIIowance decreased by £6.7 million in the year ended 31 December 2019. In the same period the

~ "gross carrying amount of loans and advances to customers increased by £775.2 mllllon from £5,914.8 million

- 10 £6,690.0 m|II|on

Movements in the gross carrying amount of Ioans and advances to customers that contnbuted to the changes
- in the loss allowance during the year include:

- o Gross new lending of £5,529.4 million was extended. Th|s mcludes new orlglnatlons increases in Iendlng
: and drawdowns on revolving credit facilities. -
e A portfolio of property loans totalling £137.9 million was acqwred

Gross principle repayments of loan balances were £4 727.0 million. This includes repayments of revolving
. credit facilities.
~ e - The Group continued to operate a simultaneous charge-off and write-off policy during 2019. Loan-
balances of £29.5 million were written off with an associated £18.9 million reduction in the loss allowance.
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e Loans with a gross carrying amount of £28.6 million were derecognlsed on disposal of Shawbrook
International Limited with an associated £0.8 million reduction in the loss allowance.
e Loans with a gross carrying amount of £1 12 6 million and loss allowance of £8.5 million were transferred

to assets held for sale.

Movements in the gross carrying amount of loans between stages dunng the year ended 31 December 2019
are as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

. £m £m £m
Transfer to Stage 1 : ' . 384.0 (381.8) (2.2) .
Transfer to Stage 2 _ (472.2) 475.5 (3.3)
Transfer to Stage 3 (54.5) (32.8) 87.3. .

Assets held for sale

The loss allowance in respect of the portfollo of unsecured personal loans classified as held for sale is £8.5
million. These loans are separately presented in the Group’s statement of financial position as assets held for
sale and are not included in the loans and advances to customers balance. '

The following table provides an analysis of the loans classified as held for sale by year-end stage classification:

' o Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

As at 31 December 2019 £m £m £m £m

" Gross carrying amount 106.6 341 2.9 112.6
" Loss allowance - (5.3) ~ (1.6) (1.6) (8.5)
Carrying amount : 101.3 1.5 13 104.1
Total loss allowance coverage - ' 5.0% 516% - 55.2% 7.5%

Flnanc|al guarantee contracts

The loss allowance for financial guarantee contracts is £nil in both reported years because the contract is fully -
collateralised through a first fixed charge over a blocked deposit account. As such, the amount the Group
should have to pay should the guarantee be called upon is £nil.

Loan commitments » _
The loss allowance for loan commitments is £1.0 m'illio'n (2018: £1.0 million).

The following tables provide an analysns of loan commitments by reportable segment and the year-end stage
cIassnf cation:

Property Business Consumer

: X Finance Finance Lending Total
As at 31 December 2019 £m £m £m £m
. Stage 1 2137 341.8 30.4 585.9
Stage 2 ' : . - ' 56 -~ - 5.6
Gross loan commitments _ ‘ 213.7 " 3474 . 304 591.5
Stage1 I | . (10 - (1.0)
Loss allowance : - (1.0) - (1.0)
Total loan commitments - " 2137 3464 30.4 590.5

Loss allowance coveragé :
‘Stage 1 : : B - 0.3% - 0.2%
Total loss allowance coverage - 0.3% - 0.2%
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Cfeditworthiness risk (continued)

Property Business  Consumer

Finance Finance Lending Total
As at 31 December 2018 £m £m - £m £m
Stage 1 ) 145.6 3449 52.0 5425
Stage 2 ' - . 6.8 - 6.8
Gross loan commitments : 145.6 351.7 ‘ 52.0 549.3
Stage 1 - (1.0) - - (1.0)
Loss allowance - (1.0) - (1.0)
Total loan commitments : 145.6 350.7 520 - 548.3
Loss allowance coverage . ‘ : :
Stage 1 - 0.3% - 0.2%
Total loss allowance coverage : - - 0.3% - 0.2%

The following table provides an analysis of movements during the year in the loss allowance assocnated wuth
Ioan commltments

2019 2018

Stage 1 Total Stage 1 Total

£m £m £m - £m

As at 1 January ' : : 1.0 1.0 - -

Impact of adopting IFRS 9 ' - - 0.5 0.5

Restated balance as at 1 January ' , 1.0 1.0 0.5 - 0.5
Movements in loss allowance : - ,

New financial assets orlgmated or purchased 03 03 0.6 0.6

Changes in credit risk .(0.3) (0.3) -

Financial assets that have been derecogmsed - - (0.1) (0. 1)

Total movement in loss allowance . - - 0.5 ‘0.5

As at 31 December ' 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0

Calculation of expected credlt losses

ECLs are the discounted product of the probability of default (PD), exposure at default (EAD) and loss given
default (LGD). Each of these components are detailed further below. ECLs are determined by projecting the
PD, EAD and LGD for each future month for each exposure. The three components are multiplied together
and adjusted to reflect forward looking information. This calculates an ECL for each future month, which is
then discounted back to the reporting date and summed. The discount rate used in the ECL calculation is the
current effective interest rate or the original effective interest rate if appropriate.

Twelve- month ECL (Stage 1 assets) is calculated by muItlpIylng the 12 month PD by LGD and EAD. Llfetlme
ECL (Stage 2 and 3) is calculated by multlplylng the lifetime PD by LGD and EAD. .

Probability of default :
PD is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain
time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio. v

- In relation to loans and advances to customers, the PD is based on internal and external individual customer
information that is updated for each reporting period. The Group operates both a model-based PD for its high
volume portfolios such as Consumer Lending and residential mortgages within Property Finance and has
developed and implemented a Slotting approach for the low volume and high value obligors in Business
. Finance and large ticket commercial property loans. Both processes deliver a point-in-time measure of default.
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Creditworthiness risk (continued)

For the model-based portfolios, the measure of PD is based on information available to the Group from credit
reference agencies and includes information from a broad range of financial services firms and internal product
performance data. For the Slotted portfolios, the measure.of PD relates to attributes relating to financial
strength, political and legal environment, asset/transaction characteristics, strength of sponsor and security.

For each asset class, the Group has a proprietary approach to extrapolate its best estimate of the point-in-time
PD from 12 months to behavioural maturity to derive the lifetime PD. This uses economic response modeils
that have been developed specifically to forecast the sensitivity of PD to key macroeconomic variables.

Exposure at default :

EAD is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected changes in the
exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by
contract or otherwise, expected- drawdowns on committed facilities, and accrued interest from missed
payments.

EAD is designed to address increases in utilisation of committed limits and unpaid interest and fees that the
Group would ordinarily expect to observe to the point of default, or through to the point of realisation of the
collateral.

The Group determines EADs by modelllng the range of possible exposure outcomes at various points in time,
corresponding to the multiple scenarios.

Loss given default

LGD is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including
from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

In relation to loans and advances to customers, the Group segments its lending products into smaller
homogenous portfolios as detailed below. In all cases the LGD or its components are tested against recent
experience to ensure that they remain current.
o  Property Finance: the LGD is generally broken down into two parts. These include the Group’s estimate
‘ of the probability of possession given default, combined with the loss given possession. The Group has
continued to focus on the proportion of accounts that have not cured over an emergence period, rather
than the proportion of accounts that enter possession to be appropriately conservative. The LGD is based
on the Group’s estimate of a shortfall, based on the difference between the property value after the impact
of a forced sale discount and sale costs, and the loan balance with: the addition of unpaid interest and
~ fees and first charge claims with regards to first charge residential mortgages.
e Business Finance: the LGD is based on experience of losses on repossessed assets where the Group
' has collateral, or Management judgement in situations where the individual loans form part of a low default
. portfolio.
e Consumer Lending: the Group uses an estimate of the probability of charge-off, defined as six or more
payments in arrears, combined with an estimate of the expected write-off based on an established
cOntractuaI debt sale agreement or the sale of charge-off debt. There is no recovery portfolio.

Basis of calculatlon ,
Twelve-month ECLs and lifetime ECLs are calculated on an individual or collective basis dependlng on the

. nature of the underlying portfolio and financial instruments.

Asset classes where the Group calculates ECLs on an individual basis include: :

e Stage 3 assets where individual impairments are reviewed and approved by the divisional and Group
Impairment. Committees;

¢ large and unique Stage 1 and Stage 2 loans within the Business Finance and Property Finance d|V|S|ons
and

o treasury and interbank relationships (such as cash and balances at central banks, Ioans and advances to
banks and mvestment secuntles) : :
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Creditworthiness risk (continued)

Asset classes where the Group calculates ECLs on a collective basis include:

e Stage 1 and Stage 2 balances relating to the Group’s SME Lending;

e " Stage 1, Stage 2 and certain Stage 3 exposures within the Property Finance division; and
e allloans within the Consumer Lending division.

For ECLs calculated on a collective basis, exposures are grouped into smaller homogeneous portfolios based
on a combination of internal and external characteristics of the loans, as described below:

Property Finance: ‘ '

¢ Product asset class (residential lending and commercial/semi-commercial lending);
¢ loan-to-value ratios;

e internal master grading scale; and

e exposure value.

Business Finance:

e Business unit (i.e. asset finance, structured flnance corporate lending and development finance);
internal master grading scale;

exposure value; and

collateral type.

Consumer Lending:

e Product type (personal loans and home improvement/holiday ownership loans); .
¢ internal master grading scale; and

e exposure value.

Where loans are assessed on a collective basis, such as loans within the Consumer Lending division, recent
experience is used to assess the probability to charge-off given default and the loss given. charge. For
residential mortgages within the Property Finance division, recent experience of the probability of possession
given default and the loss given possession is used to support the ECL. For Business Finance and commercial -
Property Finance, an assessment is performed on a loan-by-loan basis, which is reviewed by the Group
- Impairment Committee where the impairment is in éxcess of £75,000. Where models are used, LGDs. are
calculated taking into account the valuations of available collateral and the experienced forced sale discounts
when collateral has been realised. These factors are applied to all the aged portfolios of debt at each statement
of financial position reporting date to derive the individual impairment requirement. These judgements are
reviewed at the Group Impairment Committee and the Audit Committee.

Post model adjustments

Limitations in the Group’s impairment models may be identified through the ongoing assessment and valldatlon
of the outputs from the models. In certain circumstances, Management make post-model adjustments to
ensure the loss allowance adequately reflects the  expected outcome. These adjustments are generally
modelled taking into account the particular attributes of the account which have not been adequately captured
by the models. All adjustments are monitored, reviewed and where apphcable mcorporated into future model
development.

In 2019, post model adjustments relate to individual ECL adjustments for specific cases reviewed by the Group
Impairment Committee and in the treatment of acquired portfolios that have not yet been mlgrated into the .
Group’s ECL scoring engine.

Critical judgements relating to the |mpa|rment of financial assets

The measurement of ECLs requires the Group to make a number of judgements. The judgements that are
considered to have the most significant effect on the amounts in the financial statements-are set out below.
- These judgements have an impact upon which stage the financial asset is held wnthln and therefore whether-
a 12-month or lifetime ECL is recognised in the financial statements : : '

The impairment of cash and balances at central banks, loans and advances to banks and investment securities

is immaterial. As such, the area where the .below judgements have the most significant effect specifically
relates to the impairment of loans and advances to customers.
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Creditworthiness risk (continued)

The Group reviews and updates the following key judgements bi-annually, in advance of the Interim Financial -
Report and the Annual Report and Accounts. All key judgements are reviewed and recommended to the Audit
Committee for approval prior to implementation.

Significant increase in credit risk assessment
If a financial asset shows a SICR, it is transferred to Stage 2 The assessment of whether there has been a-
SICR requires a high level ofjudgement

For the purposes of the SICR assessment, the Group applies a series of quantitative, qualitative and backstop

criteria: )

e Quantitative criteria: this considers the increase in an account’s remaining lifetime PD at the reporting
date compared to the expected residual lifetime PD when the account was originated. The Group
segments its credit portfolios into PD bands and has determined a relevant threshold for each PD band,
where a movement in excess of threshold is considered to be significant. These thresholds have been
determined separately for each portfolio based on historical evidence of delinquency.

. e Qualitative criteria: this includes the observation of specific events such as short-term forbearance,
payment cancellation, historical arrears or extension to customer terms (see following table for further
details).

e - Backstop criteria: IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ includes a rebuttable presumption that 30 days past due
is an indicator of a SICR. The Group considers 30 days past due to be an appropriate backstop measure
and does not rebut this presumption. :

As ageneral |nd|cator there is deemed to be a SICR if the folIowrng criteria are identified based on the Group S
quantitative modelling:

Property ' Commercial:
Finance e External mortgage payments in arrears from the credit reference agencies. The external
' “arrears information is statistically a lead indicator of financial dlfflcultles and potentlal
arrears on the loan book;
e for short-term loans with a modelled PD, PD > 0.38% and the absolute movement in
remaining lifetime PD is more than four times the estimate at origination;
e for term loans with a modelled PD, PD > 0.38% and the absolute movement in remaining
lifetime PD is more than two times the estimate at origination;
e for all portfolios with a slotted PD, PD > 0.38% and the absolute movement in remaining
lifetime PD is more than three times the estimate at origination; or
¢ loan account is forborne. ' '

Residential:

e  All exposures are graded under the modelled approach. Where the modelled PD>0.38%
and the absolute movement in remalnlng lifetime PD is more than 5.1 times the estimate
at origination;

e  where the customer has ever been six or more payments in arrears on any fixed term
account at the credit reference agency;

¢ where the customer has missed a mortgage payment in the last six months at the credit
reference agency; or

e loan account is forborne.

Business
Finance

Entry on to watch list;

loan account is forborne;

e for accounts with a modelled PD, where the absolute movement in the remalnrng Irfetlme
PD is more than 4.6 times the estimate at origination;

» for accounts with a slotted PD, where the absolute movement in the remalnlng Ilfetlme
PD is more than three times the estimate at origination; or - :

* loan account is forborne.
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Consumer ¢ Non-personal loans PD > 0.38% and the absolute movement in remaining lifetime PD is
Lending more than 3.7 times the estimate at origination;
» personal loans PD > 038% and the absolute movement in remaining lifetime PD is more
than 4.6 times the estimate at origination;
e county court judgements registered at the credit reference agencies of > £150 or > £1,000
in last 3-years; or
e loan account is forborne.

Stage 2 criteria are designed to be effective indicators of a significant deterioration in credit risk. As part of its
bi-annual review of key impairment judgements, the Group undertakes detailed analysis to confirm that the
Stage 2 criteria remain effective. This includes (but is not limited to):

o Criteria effectiveness: this includes the emergence to default for each Stage 2 criterion when compared
to Stage 1, Stage 2 outflow as a percentage of Stage 2, percentage of new defaults that were in Stage 2
inthe months prior to default, time in Stage 2 prior to default and percentage of the book in Stage 2 that
are not progressing to default or curing.

Stage 2 stabijlity: this incudes stability of inflows and outflows from Stage 2 and 3. :

e  Portfolio analysis: this includes the percentage of the portfolio that is in Stage 2 and not defaulted, the
percentage of the Stage 2 transfer driven by Stage 2 criterion other than the back stops and back-testing
of the defaulted accounts. ' :

For Iow credit risk exposures, the Group is-permitted to-assume, without further analysis, that the credit risk
~on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. The Group has opted not to apply this low credit risk exemption.

Loan commitments relating to the undrawn component of a facility are assigned to the same stage as the
drawn component of the facility. Therefore if the drawn component of the facility shows a SICR and is
transferred to Stage 2, the undrawn component will also be transferred. Loan commitments relating to pipeline
Ioans remain in Stage 1'and are not subject to the same ]udgements

The assessment of whether there has been a SICR incorporates fomiard looking information. The use of
~ forward Iookmg information is detailed on page 53.

Definition of default and credlt-|mpa|red assets '

When there is objective evidence of impairment and the financial asset is considered to be in default, or
otherwise credit-impaired, it is transferred to Stage 3. The Group s definition of default is fully aligned with the
definition of credlt-lmpalred . ‘

The Group applies a series of quantitative and qualitative criteria to determine if an account meets the definition

of default and should therefore be transferred to Stage 3. These criteria include:

"~ »  when the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, W|thout recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held); '
when the borrower is more than 90 days past due on any credit obllgatlon to the Group; and

- when a credit obligation to the Group has gone past maturity or there is doubt that the exit strategy for the
obligation is likely. :

Inputs into the assessment of whether a ﬁnanmal asset is in default and their signifi cance may vary over time
to reflect changes in circumstances. .

Approach to curing ‘ : ' :
The Group considers a financial asset to be cured and therefore reclassifies back to a lower stage, when none
of the assessed criteria that caused movement into the higher stage is currently present.

For Stage 3 loans with forbearance arrangements in place, the loan must first successfully compl'ete‘ its 12-
month curing period to be transferred to Stage 2. Following this, the loan must then successfully complete its
24-month forbearance probation period before the forbearance cIassification can be discontinued

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group implemented curing for forborne loans. In the year ended
31 December 2018, the application of curing of forborne loans had not been applied within the ECL calculation.
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Critical accounting estimates relatrng to the impairment of financial assets

The calculation of ECLs requires the Group to make a number of assumptions and estimates. The accuracy
of the ECL calculation would be impacted by movements in forward looking economic scenarios used or the
probability weightings applied to these scenarios and by unanticipated changes to model assumptions which
differ from actual outcomes. The key assumptions and estimates which, depending on a range of factors, could
~ result in a material-adjustment in the next financial year are set out in the following sections.

The impairment of cash and balances at central banks, loans and advances to banks and investment securities
is immaterial. As such, the area where the below assumptions and estimates could have the most significant
impact specifically relates to the impairment of loans and advances to customers.

Forward looking information

The Group incorporates forward looking information into the calculation of ECLs and the assessment of
whether there has been a SICR. The use of forward looking information involves significant judgement and
represents a key source of estimation uncertainty.

Forward looking economic scenarios used by the Group :
The Group uses three forward looking economic scenarios: a base case (central view), an alternative upside
scenario and an alternative downside scenario. The two alternative scenarlos are chosen to be plausible
alternative base cases and are-not stress testing scenarios.

The Group’s central view is informed by the HM Treasury Central forecast that is published quarterly and used
as part of the Group’s corporate planning activity. Intra-quarter, the Group considers survey-based data and
lead indicators to inform whether the central view continues to be appropriate. The Group focusses its view on
the next five years as part of the narrative to the scenario but has rate paths that extend out beyond the
planning period for the Group and up to 20 years

For the alternative scenarios, the Group is not large enough to have an internal economist and therefore works
with a third party on the narrative of the scenarios and the rate paths to ensure that they are internally
consistent using the UK Treasury model. The rate paths used in the scenarios are consistent with the core UK
macroeconomic factors that are published by the Bank of England as part of the annual stress testing exercise.

The probability weightings assigned to the Group’s three scenarios are a matter of judgement but are generally
set to ensure that there is an asymmetry in the ECL. The welghtlngs applled to each scenario |n both reported
years are as follows: :

e Base: 40%

o Upside: 20%

e Downside: 40%

The Group has regularly .considered Brexit within its economic scenarios and specifically the nature and
probability of the alternative downside scenario. The Group has maintained the nature of the alternative
downside view as a disorderly no-deal Brexit as a result of the delay in Brexit until 31. January 2020 and to
reflect the remaining risk arising from the nature of any future relatronshlp with the EU.

The Group'undertakes a review of its three scenarios and the weightings applied at least quarterly and more

frequently if required. The results of this review are recommended to the Audit Committee and Board prior to
any changes being implemented.
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The table below summarises the economic assumptions that have been used to determine the forward looking
ECLs as at 31 December 2019. This reflects the aforementioned weightings applied to the three scenarios.

B 2020 2021 2022 2023 |
GDP - % change year- Base: 1.2% Base: 1.8% Base: 1.6% Base: 1.7%
on-year = - Upside: 1.9% Upside: 2.7% Upside: 1.9% Upside: 1.5%

' Downside: (0.1%)  Downside: 0.8% _ Downside: 1.6% __ Downside: 2.1%
Bank Rate (%) Base: 0.85% Base: 1.08% Base: 1.25% Base: 1.44%

~ Upside: 1.02% Upside: 1.60% Upside: 2.01% Upside: 2.17%
Downside: 0.46% Downside: 0.20% Downside: 0.26% Downside: 0.64%

UK Unemployment (%) Base: 3.9% Base: 4.0% Base: 4.0% Base: 4.0%
Upside: 3.7% Upside: 3.4% Upside: 3.2% - Upside: 3.1%

. Downside: 4.3% Downside: 5.0%  Downside: 5.2%  Downside: 5.1%

Consumer Prices Index - Base: 1.9% Base: 2.0% Base: 2.0% ~Base: 2.0%
% change year-on-year Upside: 1.7% Upside: 1.9% Upside: 2.2% Upside: 2.1%
Downside: 1.3% Downside: 1.4%  Downside: 1.9%  Downside: 2.0%

UK Residential House - Base: 1.3% Base: 2.7% ‘Base: 2.8% Base: 2.3%
Price Index - % change . Upside: 3.0% Upside: 5.4% Upside: 5.1% .  Upside: 2.7%
year-on-year Downside (3.0%) Downside: (2.0%) Downside: 1.3%  Downside: 3.0%

Using forward looking information

The measurement of ECLs is required to reflect an unbiased probability weighted range of possible future
outcomes. In order to do this, the Group has developed a proprietary approach to assess the impact of the
changes in economic scenarios on the obligor level ECL. The Group has mapped each asset class to an
external long-run benchmark series that is believed to behave in a similar way to the Group’s portfolio over the
economic cycle. ”

The Group has developed econometric models to establish how much of the historical series can be explained
by movements in the UK macroeconomic factors. The models deliver an estimate of the impact of a unit
increase in default arising from a 1% increase in the underlying macroeconomic factors. The models are
developed in line with the Group’s model governance framework and are subject to review at least every six-
months. The models are tested across multiple sets of scenarios to ensure that they work in a range of
scenarios, the output of the scenarios is a series of scalars by asset class and a scenario that can be applied
to the underlying PDs to deliver a forward looking ECL.

The Group has developed a proprietary approach to extrapolating its 12-month PDs over the behavioural
maturity of the loans that the scalars can be applied to. The nature of the scenarios means that there will be
an impact on both the PD and the number of obligors moving from Stage 1 to Stage 2 in line with the SICR
criteria.

Sensitivity analysis :
The ECLs are sensitive to judgements and assumptions made regardlng the forward looking scenarios used
and the weightings applied. Sensitivity analysis is performed by Management to determine the impact on ECLs.

The table overleaf shows the loss allowance recognised in the statement of financial position for loans and
advances to customers based on the probability weighted multiple economic scenarios and the |mpact on this
loss allowance if each forward looking scenario were welghted at 100%.

" Probability Increasel(decrease) in Ioss allowance |f scenario
weighted loss weighted at 100%
: . allowance . Base Upside Downside
As at 31 December 2019 : £m £m £m £m
Property Finance 14.5 (3.7) (4.8) 6.1
Business Finance - 25.6 : (1.1) ' (2.2) 22
Consumer Lending 210 e (1.1) (1.8 2.0
Total 61.1 (5.9) (8.8) 10.3
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Inputs into ECL calculations and model assumptions

ECL calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice
of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Details of the ECL calculation are provided on page 48. The
assumptions applied involve judgement and represent a key source of estimation uncertainty.

Key assumptions and sensitivity analysis

The Group considers the key assumptions impacting the ECL calculation in respect of the Group’s loan and
advances to customers to be those set out below. Sensitivity analysis was performed to assess the impact of
changes in these key assumptions on calculated ECLs and is also set out below. '

Assumption Sensitivity analysis
PD ‘ e A 10% increase in the PD for each customer would increase the ECL by
c.£4.0 million (2018: ¢.£3.9 million).

LGD: Property Finance . :
o Property value s A 10-percentage point reduction in property prices would increase the ECL
in Property Finance by ¢.£5.9 million (2018: c.£6.1 million).

e Forced sale discount ¢ A 5% absolute increase in the forced sale discount would increase the ECL
: in Property Finance by c.£4.0 million (2018: c.£4.1 million).

LGD: Business Finance -
e Absolute LGD value e A 5% absolute increase in the LGD applied would-increase the ECL in
- |. Business Finance by c.£3.6 million (2018: ¢.£3.0 million).

LLGD: Consumer Lending | « A 10-percentage point increase in the loss given charge-off would increase
e Loss given charge-off ‘the ECL in Consumer Lending by ¢.£2.4 million (2018: c.£2.9 million).

(d) Credit risk grading

To assess the credit risk of the Group’s financial assets, financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments,
a credit grading system has been developed by the Group which maps to a common master grading scale.
The current risk grading framework consists of 25 grades on a master grading scale, reflecting varying degrees
of risk and defauit as set out in the table below. The responsibility for setting risk grades lies with the approval
point for the risk or committee as appropriate. Risk grades are subjéct to regular reviews by the Group risk
function. -

{ Grading Master grading scale PD range ]
Low risk 110 <=0.38%
Medium risk 11-15 - ' >0.38% to <= 1.76%
High risk 16-25 ' >1.76%

(e) Creditrisk exposure

Financial instruments subject to impairment '

The following tables contain an analysis of the Group s credit risk exposure from its financial instruments for
which a loss allowance is recognised.

The tables provide an analysis of the gross carrying amount of financial assets and the exposure to credit risk -
on loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts by credit risk grade and year-end stage classification.
The credit risk grades are based on the grades defined in the ‘credit risk grading’ section above. It should be
noted that the credit risk grading assessment is a point-in-time assessment whereas the stage classification is
determined based on the change in credit risk from initial recognition. As such, for non-credit impaired financial
assets, there is not a direct relationship between the credit risk assessment and stage classification.
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Creditworthiness risk (continued)

The information below also provides the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk. For financial assets this is
the gross carrying amount net of any loss allowance recognised. Where the loss allowance is less than £0.1
million, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the gross carrying amount and only this amount
is presented in the table. For financial guarantee contracts, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is
the 'maximum -amount the Group could have to- pay should the guarantee be called upon. For loan
commitments, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is the gross amount committed.

2019 _ 2018

Stage1 = Total Stage 1 Total

Cash and balances at central banks - - £m £m £m £m
Low risk : 1,064.6 1,064.6 .645.2 645.2 -

-_Gross carrying amount 1,064.6 1,064.6 645.2 645.2

2019 ‘ 2018

‘ Stage 1 Total Stage 1 Total

Loans and advances to banks ' £m £m £m £m

Low risk . . 59.1 59.1 50.6 50.6

Gross carrying amount ‘ . 59.1 591 . 50.6 50.6

Loans and ) 2019 ‘ 2018

.advances to -Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 Total Stage1 Stage2 Stage3  Total

customers: £m £m £m £m £m £m’ £m £m

_ Low risk - : 1,583.0 = 113 11 1,5954 1,906.5 26.2 7.7 19404

Medium risk 2,863.1 264.5 1.6 311292  1,910.4 464.5 = 33.3 24082

High risk . 1,401.7 440.8 1229 1,965.4 1,105.1 380.9 80.2 1,566.2

~ Gross carrying

amount 5,847.8 716.6 125.6 6,690.0 4,922.0 871.6 121.2 5,914.8

vLos's allowancé (20.6) (14.2) (26.3) (61.1) (23.5) (20.7)  (23.6) (67.8)

Carrying amount' 5,827.2 702.4 . 99.3 6,6289 . 48985  850.9 97.6 5,847.0

2019 2018

_ _ . Stage 1 Total Stage 1 Total
Investment securities : , £m . £m £m £m

_ Low risk o » 200.0 2000 139.9 139.9
- _Gross carrying amount ‘ ~ 200.0 200.0 139.9 139.9
2019 ' 2018

Stage 1 Total Stage 1 Total

Financial guarantee contracts : £m £m £m £m

- Low risk . . o 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5
Gross amount guaranteed : " 2.5 .2:5 2.5 2.5

In both reported years the Group has had one financial guarantee contract which is fully collateralised through
- afirst fixed charge over a blocked deposit account. As such, the amount the Group should have to pay should
the guarantee. be called upon (i.e. the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk) is £nil.

1 Excludes fair value adjustments for hedged risk.
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Creditworthiness risk (continued)

2019 2018

Stage 1 Stage 2 Total Stage1  Stage 2 Total

Loan commitments £m £m £m £m £m £m
Low risk 403.7 - 403.7 462.1 - 462.1
Medium risk . 84.3 - 84.3 70.5 Co- 70.5
High risk 97.9 5.6 103.5 9.9 6.8 16.7
Gross amount committed 585.9 - 5.6 591.5 542.5 6.8 549.3

Financial assets not subject to impairment
The following table provides an analysis of the Groups maximum exposure to credit risk from its financial .
assets not subject to impairment (i.e. those held at fair value through profit or loss).

2019 2018
. " £m £m
Derivative financial assets : 4.4 : 1.6

(f) Collateral held and other credit enhancements

As a method of mitigating credit risk, the Group holds collateral and other credit enhancements against certain
of its credit exposures. The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit
_ risk of the counterparty. :

The Group has internal policies on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation.
The Group's policies regarding obtaining collateral have not significantly changed during the reporting period
and there has been no significant change in the overall quality of the collateral held by the Group since the
prior period.

'Non-derivative financial assets v '
Collateral is generally not held against loans and advances to banks and investment securities. However, at
times, certain securities are held as part of reverse repurchase agreements.

For loans and advances to customers the main types of collateral obtained are:

e Loan receivables: includes amounts secured by a first or second charge over commercial and residential
property, debt receivables and other assets such as asset backed loans and invoice receivables. '

s Finance lease receivables and instalment credit receivables: secured on the underlying assets which can -
“be repossessed in the event of a default.,

‘The following table sets out the security profile of the Group s loans and advances to customers. The amounts
in the table represent gross carrying amounts: :

2019 2018
£m £m
~Secured on commercral and residential property -~~~ 4780.7 - 3,908.1
. Secured on debt recervables 618.5 517.3
~_Secured on other assets , 91.3 93.1
Total secured loan receivables - - 5,490.5 4,518.5
_Secured by finance leaseassets 8.0 950
Secured by mstalment credit assets 382.4 409.4
Total secured loans and advances to customers ‘ : 5,953.9 5,022.9
© Unsecured loan receivables 7361 8919
Gross loans and advances to customers ' 6,690.0 5,914.8
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Collateral held in relation to secured loans is capped, after taking into account the ﬁrst charge balance, at the-
amount outstanding on an individual loan basis.

Derivative financial assets

Credit risk derived from derivative transactions is mitigated by entering into master netting agreements and
holding collateral. Such collateral is subject to the standard industry Credit Support Annex and is paid or
received on a regular basis. As at 31 December 2019, net cash collateral posted is £11.0 million (2018: £4. 5
mlllron)

Credlt-lmpalred financial assets )
The Group closely monitors collateral held for financial assets considered to be credit-impaired (Stage 3), as
it becomes more likely that the Group will take possession of collateral to mitigate potential credit losses.

The Group’s financial assets that are credit-impaired and related collateral held in order to mitigate potential
losses are set out below: _

Gross Fair value
carrying Loss - Carrying of collateral
amount allowance amount held
As at 31 December 2019 £m £m £m- £m
‘Property Finance , .89.0 @1 89 - 809
Business Finance .29.1 ©(12.9) 16.2 16.2
Consumer Lending : ' 7.5 . (5.3) 2.2 -
Total credit-impaired loans and advances to ' :
customers P , ' 125.6 (26.3) 99.3 971
Gross : ‘ Fair value of
carrying Loss Carrying collateral
- amount  allowance amount held
As at 31 December 2018 £m £m £m ‘£m
Property Finance ' 60.6 6.2) 54.4 54.4
Business Finance . 4 540 . (130) 410 410
Consumer Lending o , 6.6 (4.4) 2.2 S
Total credit-impaired loans and advances to :
custormers P | 121.2 (23.6) 976 95.4

- The following table shows the distribution of loan-to-value ratios for the Group’s credit-impaired Property
Finance portfolio. Loan-to-value is calculated as the ratio of the current gross carrying amount of the loan to
the value of the collateral at origination.

Gross carrying amount

2019 2018

£m £m

Loan-to-value ratio . A . . : ‘

Less than 50% ) R X 13.3
50-70% , Co 288 23.6

. 71-90% ' : . - 333 . . 227
91-100% ‘ - | o 22 05

More than 100% ' - , 09 . 0.5

Total Property Finance credit-impaired assets ' : . 89.0 60.6
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(g) Repossessions B
During the year, the Group took possession of some properties held as security against loans. As at 31
December 2019, the Group held 17 repossessed properties with a carrying amount of £3.5 miillion (2018: 8
repossessed properties with carrying amount of £1.7 million). The Group’s policy is to pursue the realisation
of collateral in an orderly manner.

(h) Forbearance

. The Group maintains a forbearance policy for the servicing and management of customers who are in financial

difficulty and require some form of concession to be granted, even if this concession entails a loss for the

Group. A concession may be either of the following: A

e a modification of the previous terms and conditions of an agreement, which the borrower is considered
unable to comply with due to its financial difficulties, to allow for sufficient debt service ability, that would
not have been granted had the borrower not been in financial difficulties; or

e atotal orpartial refinancing of an agreement that would not have been granted had the borrower not been
in.financial difficulties. :

Forbearance in relation to an exposure can be temporary or permanent depending on the circumstances,
progress on financial rehabilitation and the detail of the concession(s) agreed.

The Group applies the European Banking Authority Technical Standards on forbearance and non-performing -

exposures as defined in Annex V of Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) 2015/227. Under these
standards loans are classified as’performing or non- performlng in accordance with the European Bankmg
Authonty rules.

The ‘European Banking Authority standards stipulate that a forbearance classification can be discontinued

when all of the following conditions have been met: - :

e the exposure is considered to be performing, including where it has been reclassified from the non-

: performing category, after an analysis of the financial condition of the debtor showed that it no longer met
the conditions to be considered as non-performing;

e a minimum two-year probat|on period has passed from the date the forborne exposure was consudered
to be performing;

e regular payments of more than an |nS|gn|f icant aggregate amount of principal or interest have been made

. during at least half of the probation period; and
e - none of the exposures to the debtor is more than 30 days past-due at the end of the probatlon perlod

In the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group included short-term repayment plans within forborne loans.

In the year ended 31 December 2019, the definition was amended to exclude short-term repayment plans.
Comparatlve information has not been restated and as a result information is not directly comparable.
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Creditworthiness risk (continued) | _

Forbearance by reportable segment A A
The following tables provide a summary of the Group’s forborne loans and advances to customers by

reportable segment:

Risk Management Report

Shawbrook Bank Lir\;\ited '

Annuél Report and Accounts 2019

Performing Non-performing
Modification . : Modification Total
toterms and Refinan- to terms and Refinan- forborne
As at 31 conditions cing Total conditions cing Total ‘loans |
December 2019 £m fm £m £m £m £m £m
Property 42 - a2 416 - M6 4538
Finance
Business 10.6 - 106 13.6 09 145 25.1
Finance
Consumer, 0.5 - 05 53 - 53 5.8
Lending .
Total ’ 15.3. - 153 60.5 0.9 61.4 76.7
‘ ) . Loss allowance on forborne
: : Gross-amount of forborne loans loans
As at 31. . Non- Non-
December - Performing ‘performing- Total Performing performing Total Coverage
2019 Number £m £m £m £m £m £m %
Property ‘ . . |
Finance 703» 42 | 416 ) 45.8 (4.1) (4.1.) 9.0
Business : ' :

Finance . 210 106 145 24 (02) “2) w4 175
Consumer can ; ‘
Lendin o 3,564 - 05 '5.3 5.8 (0.1) (3.4) (3.5) 60.3
Total - .. 4,577 15.3 614 76.7 (0.3) (11.7) (12.0) 15.6

Performing Non-performing

. Modification ' Modification Total

toterms and  Refinan- toterms and  Refinan- forborne
As at 31 conditions ‘cing Total conditions cing Total loans
December 2018 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Property : ) :
Finance 95 - . 95 40.1 - 401 49.6

. Business - :

. Finance 9.1 5.1 14.2 28.3 0.8 291 43.3
Consumer - A : '

Lending 2.9 - 29 10.1 - 101 | 13.0

Total 21.5 5.1 26.6 785 - 0.8 793 105.9 -
Gross amount of forborne loans Loss allowanceé on forborne loans

As at 31 : Non- » o Non- ' A ‘

December Performing performing  Total Performing ° performing  Total Coverage

,2018 Number - £m £m . £m ' fm £m £m %

~Property i~ \

Finance 1,011_ 9.5 40.1 . 49.6 (0.2) . 4.1) 4.3) 8.7

Business Cma ; o :

Finance 313 14.2 29.1- 433 (03) (3.8) @.1) 9.5

Consumer . , :

Lending " | 4,687 29 10.1 13.0 (0.3) (5.3) (5.6) 43.1

Total 6,011 26.6 . 79.3 1059 (0.8) (13.2) (14.0) 13.2
60




Key risk categories (continued)

Creditworthiness risk (continued)

Forbearance by year-end stage

Risk Management Report

The following tables provide a summary of the Group’s forborne loans and advances to customers by the year-

end stage classification:

Performing Non-performing
Modification Modification Total
toterms and Refinan- to terms and Refinan- forborne
As at 31 conditions cing Total conditions cing Total loans
December 2019 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Stage 1 0.7 - 0.7 0.2 - 0.2 0.9
Stage 2 14.6 - 146 7.5 0.2 7.7 22.3
Stage 3 - - - 52.8 0.7 53.5 53.5
Total 15.3 - 153 60.5 0.9 61.4 76.7
Gross amount of forborne loans Loss allowance on forborne loans
As at 31 Non- Non-
December ‘Performing performing Total Performing performing Total Coverage
2019 Number £m £m £m £m £m £m %
Stage 1 329 0.7 0.2 0.9 - - - -
Stage 2 433 14.6 7.7 223 (0.3) (0.4) (0.7) 3.1
Stage 3 3,815 - 53.5 535 - (11.3) (11.3) 211
Total 4,577 15.3 614 76.7 (0.3) (11.7) (12.0) 15.6
Performing Non-performing
Madification -Modification Total
toterms and  Refinan- toterms and  Refinan- forborne
As at 31 conditions cing Total conditions cing Total loans
December 2018 ~£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Stage 1 6.5 - 6.5 - 6.8 - 6.8 13.3
Stage 2 15.0 5.1 20.1 .40.5 : - 405 60.6
Stage 3 _ - - - 31.2 " 0.8 32.0 32.0
Total 21.5 5.1 26.6 78.5 0.8 79.3 105.9
Gross amount of forborne loans Loss allowance on forborne loans
As at 31 Non- ‘ Non-
December Performing performing Total Performing performing Total Coverage
2018 Number £m _£m £m £m £m £m %
Stage 1 1,097 6.5 6.8" 133 (0.1) (0.4)! - (0.5) 3.8
Stage 2 1,421 20.1 40.5 60.6 (0.7) (2.9) (3.6) 5.9
Stage 3 3,493 - 320 320 - (9.9) (9.9 309
Total 6,011 26.6 79.3 105.9 (0.8) .(13.2) (14.0) 13.2

' Loans that are classified as non-performing and Stage 1 are where the latest forbearance measure was extended more than a year
ago and the number of days past due at the current reporting period is more than zero but less than 30.

'~ Shawbrook Bank Limited
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Key risk categories (continued)

Creditworthiness risk (continued)

(i) Concentrations of credit risk
The Group monitors concentrations of credit risk from its loans and advances to customers by geographlc
location and by loan size.

Concentrations of credit risk by geographic location
An analysis of credit risk from the Group s loans and advances to customers by geographic location is shown
below:

Property Business Consumer

_ Finance Finance Lending Total
As at 31 December 2019 ° . £m £m £m £m
East Anglia ‘ 1349 771 .24.4 236.4
East Midlands 156.0 702 45.2 - 271.4
Greater London ' ' 1,7149 = 4191 67.7 2,201.7
Guernsey/Jerseyl/lsle of Man 34.5 21.5 ' 0.1 56.1
North East N ) ' 74.8 42.9 24.6 142.3 .
North West - : ' 3574 1919 67.5 616.5
Northern Ireland o 10.5- - - 1.6 121
Scotland ' ' 280.2 80.4 73.4 434.0
South East o . - 867.9 253.0 111.3 1,232.2
South West - : 318.8 150.3 - -47.6 516.7
Wales : ‘ 919 615 24.0 177.4
West Midlands . ‘ 179.0 171.2 56.7 406.9
Yorkshire/Humberside : 220.7 1113 . 543 386.3
Gross loans and advances to customers 4,441.2 1,650.4 598.4 6,690.0
Property Business Consumer_
. v Finance Finance Lending Total
As at 31 December 2018 £m £m £m £m
" East Anglia : ' 117.8 696 - 323 219.7
East Midlands : . 120.6 58.2 " 58.8 2376
Greater London = - ' 1,454.9 300.8 82.3 1,838.0
Guernsey/Jersey/lsle of Man . - 24.5 46.3 0.1 70.9
- North East - : ' .52.8 314 35.3 119.5
North West | ‘ ' By - 305.6 171.4 92.0 569.0
Northern Ireland ' 9.6 18 21 13.5
~Scotland L L ‘ ) 2221 932 89.4 404.7
~ South East - - 7474 2214 1411 1,109.9
South West 2636 113.3 61.3- 438.2
Wales - - ~ 80.0 950 - 313" 206.3
West Midlands =~ ~ N : , 141.6 151.4 74.9 - 3679
Yorkshire/Humberside o ‘ ' 179.4 - .68.4 71.8 319.6

Gross loans and advances to customers 3,719.9 1,422.2 7727 5,914.8
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Creditworthiness risk (continued)

Concentrations of credit risk by loan size
An analysis of credit risk from the Group’s loans and advances to customers by loan size is shown below

Property Business Consumer

_ - : Finance Finance Lending Total
As at 31 December 2019 £m £m £m . £m
0-£50k _ 258.6 101.9 598.0 958.5
£50k - £100k . 458.2 64.8 0.4 523.4
£100k - £250k ‘ 1,05681 121.7 - 1,798
£250k - £500k ' 990.5 125 - 1,103.0
£500k - £1.0 million ' 697.5 135.1 - 832.6
£1.0 million - £2.5 million ' 561.6 237.9 - 799.5
£2.5 million - £5.0 million S 249.4 242.2 - 491.6
£5.0 million - £10.0 million 1019 211.4 - 3133
£10.0 million - £25.0 million 654 4229 - 488.3
Gross loans and advances to customers e 4,441.2 1,650.4 598.4 6,690.0
Property Business  Consumer
Finance Finance Lending Total
As at 31 December 2018 £m £m £m £m
0 - £50k 215.3 140.5 772.5. 1,128.3
£50k - £100k _ 378.5 72.3 - 0.2 451.0
£100k - £250k ’ 883.5 120.4 - 1,003.9
£250k - £500k ' 797.2 1079 - 905.1
£500k - £1.0 million 609.3 . 135.6 - 744.9
£1.0 million - £2.5 million "463.8 200.2 : - 664.0
£2.5 million - £5.0 million ‘ : 208.7 156.1 .- 364.8
£5.0 million - £10.0 million o 108.4 157.3 - 265.7
£10.0 million - £25.0 million 55.2 331.9 - 387.1

Gross loans and advances to customers 3,719.9 1,422.2 772.7 5,914.8

Liquidity risk
Audited: The following sectfon is covered by the Independent Auditor's Report

The Group has developed comprehensnve funding and liquidity policies to ensure that it maintains sufficient
liquid assets to be able to meet all of its financial obligations and maintain public confidence.

The Group's treasury function is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group’s liquidity and
wholesale funding. The Board sets limits over the level, composition and maturity of liquidity and deposit
funding balances, reviewing these at least annually. Compliance with these limits is monitored daily by finance
and risk personnel independent of the treasury function. Additionally, a series of liquidity stress tests are
performed weekly by the finance function and are formally reported to the Asset and Liability Committee and -
the Board to ensure that the Group maintains adequate liquidity for business purposes even under stressed
condltlons

Stress testing is a major component of liquidity risk management and the Group has developed a range of
scenarios covering a range of market wide and firm specific factors. A comprehensive stress testing exercise
is conducted at least annually and the methodology is incorporated into the Group’s statement of financial
position risk management model to ensure that stress tests are run on a regular basis. The output of stress
testing is circulated to the Board and to the Asset and Liability Committee who use the results to decide whether
to amend the Group’s risk appetite and liquidity limits.

‘The Group reports its liquidity position against its liquidity coverage ratio (LCR), net stable funding ratio (NSFR)
and other key regulatory ratios for regulatory reporting purposes.
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‘Maturity analysis for financial assets and liabilities :
The table below segments the Group’s contractual undiscounted cash flows of its non-derivative financial

assets and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings. The Group’s assets and liabilities may be repaid or
otherwise mature earlier or later than implied by their contractual tenor.

Gross

nominal Less 3 o More
As at 31 Carrying inflow/ than 1 1-3 - months 1-2 25 than5
December amount (outflow) month months -1 year years years  years
2019 £m £m - £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial
assets i
Cash and ' '
balances at 1,064.6  1,064.6 1,052.1 - - . - 125
central banks : ' )
Loans and _ ,
advances to ’ 59.1 . 59.1 59.1 - ©o- - - -
banks : :
Loans and
advances to 6,637.7 6,743.3 307.8  265.7 889.2 7525 1,245.7 3,282.4
customers :
Investment .
soounition 200.0 200.3 0.3 - - 37.7 162.3 .
Assets held for . '
ol 104.1 552 552 - - . - -
Total financial g 065 81225 14745 2657 © 8892 7902 1,408.0 3,294.9
assets . ; )
Financial
liabilities _ . :
g”:)‘;‘r’]"‘(‘; due . (881.6) - (887.4) (42)  (7.4) (116.8) (488.8) . (270.2) .
g::gl?:’ (6,109.4) (6,231.2) (2,189.6) (519.7) (2,060.1) (722.8) (715.2) (23.8)
i?ﬁg;j:‘:“”“es (241.0)  (328.2) - () (2.2) (2.9) (8.6) (313.8)
Lease liabilites  (12.4) (13.4) (0.1) (0.3) (1.3) (19) - (56) (4.2)
Subordinated . o .
debt liabilty (96.4)  (146.4) - 07 (71 (7.7) (23.0) (107.9)
;:;?I'i:?::““'a' (7,340.8) (7,606.6) (2,193.9) (528.8) (2,187.5) (1,224.1) (1,022.6) (449.7)

At 31 December 2019, a deemed loan liability is recognised in the Company statement of financial position,
reflecting consideration received from a structured entity upon the securitisation of certain loans (see Note 15
of the Financial Statements). The gross .carrying amount of the deemed loan due to the structured entity as at
31 December 2019 is £286.2 million. The contractual undiscounted cash flows are split into maturity groupings
as follows: less than 1 year: £2.6 million; 1-2 years: £11.7 million; 2-5 years £17.5 million; more than 5 years
£254.4 million. .

There are no other material differences between the Group and Company and as such W|th the exceptlon of
the above, separate disclosures for the Company are not provided.
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Gross

Total nominal Less 3 More
As at 31 carrying inflow/ than 1 1-3  months - 1-2 2-5 thanb
December amount  (outflow) month  months 1 year years years years
2018 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial : :
assets
Cash and :
balances at 645.2 645.2 636.3 - - - - 8.9
central banks
Loans and v ‘
advances to 506 50.6 50.6 - - - - -
banks i e ' '
Loans and
advances to 5,845.9 5,944.1 2854 212.9 817.3 8140 11,2691 2,5454
customers _ , N S U,
Investment . . '
securities 139.9 140.2 | 0.2 - - , - | 140.0 -

Zg;:'tgna”da' 6,681.6  6,780.1 9725  212.9 817.3 . 8140 14091 25543

Financial
liabilities _
fc‘)";g‘:]'l‘(t:d“e (1,029.4)  (1,039.9) . (1.9) - - (2739) (764.1) -
Customer
deposits
Subordinated
debt liability
Total financial
liabilities

(4,977.9) (5,083.8) (1,507.3) (292.1) (1,800.2) (820.2) (598.4)  (65.6)

(76.1) (1208 ] - (@5 64)  (191)  (87.8)

(6.0834) (6244.5) (1,5092) (292.1) (1,807.7) (1,1005) (1,381.6) (153.4)

Liquidity buffer

The Group maintains a liquidity buffer which can be called upon to create sufficient liquidity in order to meet
cash and collateral outflows and PRA regulatory requirements.

The average monthly liquidity buffer throughout the year was £1,016.0 million (2018: £805.1 m|II|on)

Components of the Group s liquidity buffer as at 31 December.are as follows

2019 2018

: £m £m

'Cash and withdrawable central bank reserves ~ 1,051.8 636.1

Extremely high-quality covered bonds ' 93.6 - - 129.5
Central government assets ~ = ' 228 - -

‘Total liquidity buffer ' : , 1,168.2 765.6

All components of the Group’s liquidity buffer are LCR level 1 eligible.

Central government assets are off balance- sheet UK gilts acquired as part of a security swap See Note 28 of
the Financial Statements for further details. :

Liquidity coverage ratio and net stable funding ratio

A range of early warning indicators are monitored for early signs of liquidity risk. These include a range of
quantitative and quahtatnve measures that mcIude the close monltorlng of the LCR and NSFR.
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The Group’s LCR aims to monitor the resilience of the Group to a liquidity risk over a 30-day penod The
following table sets out the LCR as at 31 December:

| ' ' 2019 2018 |
Liquidity buffer (£Em) 11682 7656
Total net cash outflows (Em) 425.6 312.6
Liquidity coverage ratio (%) B 274.5 244.9

The Group’s NSFR aims to ensure that the Group has an acceptable amount of stable funding to support
assets over a one-year period of extended stress. Based on current interpretations of regulatory requirements
and guidance, the NSFR as at 31 December 2019 is 131.9% (2018: 128.5%). This is in excess of the minimum
level of 100% proposed by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision and European Commission”..

Assets available to support future funding
The Group’s assets can be used to support collateral requirements for central bank operattons or third party
‘repurchase transactions. Assets that have been-set aside for such purposes are classmed as encumbered
assets and cannot be used for other purposes.

All other assets are defined as unencumbered assets. These comprise assets that are readily available to

secure funding or meet collateral requirements (‘available as collateral’), and assets that are not subject to any

restrictions but are not readily available for use (‘other’).

. The table below sets out the availability of the Group’s assets to support future funding:

1,608.7

Encumbered Unencumbered
Pledged as Available as
- ‘ _ collateral = Other collateral Other
As at 31 December 2019 ‘ -£m £m
Cash and balances at central banks . - 12.5
_Loans and advances to banks L E Y -
Loans and advances tocustomers ~ 1,4240 -
Investment securities : - 100.0 -
Derivative financial assets ’ - -
Assets held for sale L - -
Non-financial assets o - -
Total assets - 1,535.0 - 12.5 5,401.7 1,268.0
Encumbered Unencumbered
Pledged as ' Available as
. collateral Other collateral Other Total
As at 31 December 2018 £m £m £m “£m £m
Cash and balances at central banks - 8.9 - - 636.3 645.2
Loans and advances to banks 5.3 - 453 . - 50.6
Loans and advances to customers 1,603.4 - 42425 - 58459
__Investment securities - - - 1399 139.9
~ Derivative financial assets - - - 16 1.6
Non-financial assets - - 34.1 101.8 135.9
" Total assets 8.9 4,321.9 879.6 6,819.1

' The NSFR will be implemented in the EU through the Capital Requirements Regulation 2 in June 2021. The timing of a binding NSFR

. in the UK remains subject to uncertainty and how and when it will be implemented depends in part on the terms and timings of the UK’s -
withdrawal from the EU. The Basel Committee on Banking Supervision issued its final recommendations for the implementation of the
NSFR in October 2016, proposing a minimum ratio of 100%. The European Commission also proposed a NSFR of at least 100% as
part of the Capital Requirements Regulation 2 in November 2016.

Shawbrook Bank Limited Annual Report and Accounts 2019 ) 66



Risk Management Report
Key risk categories (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

Encumbered assets pledged as collateral are:

e Loans and advances to banks totalling £11.0 million (2018 £5.3 million) which are pledged as collateral
against derivative contracts.

e Loans and advances to customers totalling £1,424.0 million (2018: £1,603.4 million), of which:
£974.2 million (2018: £1,402.7 million) are positioned with the Bank of England for use as collateral under
the Term Funding Scheme.
£163.6 million (2018: £200.7 million) are pledged as collateral against secured bank borrowings.
£286.2 million (2018: £nil) are pledged to securitisation programmes.

¢ Investment securities totalling £100.0 million (2018: £nil) which are positioned with the Bank of England
for use as collateral under the Term Funding Scheme.

_ Other encumbered assets (assets that cannot be used for secured funding due to legal or other reasons) are:
o Cash and balances at central banks totalling £12.5 million (2018: £8.9 million) which are mandatory
deposits with central banks. '

In the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has also entered into self-issuance of debt securities, in
"~ which Shawbrook Mortgage Funding 2019-1 plc issued notes that were retained by the Company (see Note
16 and Note 28 of the Financial -Statements for details). These debt securities are eliminated in full on
consolidation and are therefore not included in the above tables which reflect the Group’s asset encumbrance.
Certain of the notes retained by the Company were used as collateral as part of a secunty swap transacted
- for liquidity purposes

Market rlsk
Audlted The followmg section is covered by the Independent Auditor’'s Report.

The Group’s objective is to manage and control market risk exposures, maintaining a market profile consistent
~with the Group’s risk appetlte :

- The Group's treasury function is responsible for managing the Group'’s exposure to all aspects of market risk
within the operational limits set out in the Group's treasury policies. The Asset and Liability Committee
approves the Group’s treasury policies and receives regular reports on all aspects of market risk exposure,
including interest rate risk. All financial assets held by the Group are non-trading. :

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of, or net income arising from, assets and |IabI|ItIeS changes
as a result of movements in exchange rates. The Group has low levels of foreign exchange risk which is
managed by appropriate financial instruments including derivatives.

The table below sets out the Group’s exposure te foreign exchange risk:

Australian

: ] Euros US Dollars - Dollars

As at 31 December 2019 £m £m £m
Loans and advances to banks ' 44 6.0 04

- Loans and advances to customers . ' 12.6 17.3 -
Total exposure ' 17.0 23.3 0.4
Australian

) Euros US Dollars Dollars

'l As at 31 December 2018 £m £m £m
‘Loans and advances to banks ' 4.4 2.1 (0.1)
Loans and advances to customers : B 28.7 5.7 - 0.1
“Total exposure v _ 33.1 : 7.8 -

A The Group estimates that a 5% movement in exchange rates would have no greater impact on the Group’s
- profit before tax than an increase or decrease of £2. 0 million (2018: £2.0 million).
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Market risk (continued)

Basis risk

Basis risk is the risk of loss arising from changes in the relationship between interest rates which have similar
but not identical characteristics (for example, LIBOR and the Bank of England Bank Rate). This is monitored
closely and regularly reported to the Asset and Liability Committee. This risk is managed within established
risk limits by matching and, where appropriate and necessary, through the use of derivatives and via other
control procedures.

The Group's forecasts and plans take in to account the risk of interest rate changes and are prepared and
stressed accordingly, in line with PRA guidance.

Information regarding the Group’s transition from LIBOR to new benchmark interest rates in advance of 2021
can be found on page 70.

~ Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse movements in market interest rates. Interest rate risk
arises from the loan and savings products that the Group offers. This risk is managed through the use of
appropriate financial instruments, including derivatives, with established risk limits, reporting lines, mandates
and other control procedures. A

The following is a summary of the Group’s interest rate gap position. ltems are allocated to time bands by
reference to the earlier of the next contractual interest rate change and the maturity date.

3 months 6 months 1 year Non-

Within 3 but <6 but <1 but <56 >5 interest
. months months - year years years bearing Total
As at 31 December 2019 £fm - £m £m £m £m £m £m
- Assets - e e ..  totte wr———— ama— S —— - ‘
Cash and balances at S o
central banks 4 1,052.1 - - - - 125 1,064.6
Loans and advances to ’
banks 59.1 - - - - - 59.1
Loans and advances to :
customers _ 31842 2657 5309 256 1774 (614) 66T
‘Investment securities 200.0 ) - .- - - - 200.0
Derivative financial assets - - . - - 44 4.4
Assets held for sale - - - - - 104.1 104.1
Non-financial assets - 1.7 2.3 4.4 26.1 5.4 107.4 147.3
Total assets ’ 4,507 1 268.0 535.3 2,562.7 182.8 161.3 8,217.2
Equity and liabilities _ e - .
_Amounts due to banks (881.6) SRS - -~ _(881.6)
Customer deposits (2,747.9) (875.8) (1,092.6) (1,332.4) (20.0) (40.7) (6,109.4) '
Derivative financial liabilities - - - - .- (14.9) (14.9)
Debt securities in issue (241.0) . - - - - - (241.0)
Lease liabilities o - e - - (124)  (124)
_Subordinated debt liability - ... 96.4) - - (964)
Non-financial liabilities - - C . - - (103.3) (103.3). '
Equity _ - .- - - - (758.2) (758.2)

Total equity and liabilities  (3,870.5)  (875.8) (1,092.6) (1,428.8) (20.0) (929.5) (8,217.2)

Notional values of : _ : :

derivatives ’ 972.5 ~(60.0) 152.0 (1,019.8) (44.7) . . - v -
Interest rate sensitivity gap 1,609.1 (667.8) (405.3) 1141 1181 (768.2) -
Cumulative gap 1,609.1 941.3 536.0 6501 768.2 - -
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Market risk (continued)

3 months 6 months 1 year Non-

Within 3 but <6 but <1 but <5 >5 interest
months months year years years bearing Total

As at 31 December 2018 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Assets ’

Cash and balances at :

central banks 636.3 - - - - - 8.9 645.2
Loans and advances to

banks _ - %08 Tt %0f
Loans and advances to

customers__ o 29885 2448 5288 19949 1757 (868) S84S5
Investment securities 139.9 - - - - - 139.9
Derivative financial assets - - - - - 186 1.6
Non-financial assets 1.7 2.0 47 223 34 101.8 135.9
Total assets 3,817.0 246.8 5335 2,017.2 1791 255 6,819.1
Equity and liabilities
Amounts due tobanks _(1,027.5) -t - - _(19) (1,029.4)
Customer deposits (1,765.2) (813.5) (1,002.9) (1,382.3) (14.0) - . (49779)
'Derivative financial liabilities . - - : - - - (5.7) (5.7)
Subordinated debt liability - - - (76.1) - - (76.1)
Non-financial liabilities - - - - - (56.8) (56.6)
Equity A - - - - - (673.4)  (673.4)

Total equity and liabiliies  (2,792.7)  (813.5) (1,002.9) (1,458.4) (14.0) (737.6) (6,819.1)

Notional values of

dorivatuos - 4307 (10.0) 400 (4334) (27.3) - -

Interest rate sensitivity gap 1,455.0 (576.7) (429;4) 1254 137.8 (712.1) -
Cumulative gap 1,455.0 878.3 448.9 5743 7121 .- -

The Group considers a parallel 250 basis points (bps) movement in interest rates to be appropriate for scenario -
testing given the current economic outlook and industry expectations.

The Group estlmates that a +/- 250 bps movement in interest rates paid/received would |mpact the economic
value of equity as follows:

+250 bps: £12.9 million negative (2018: £10.9 million negative)

250 bps: £28 4 million positive (2018: £31.9 million posmve)

In addition, the effect of the same two interest rate shocks is applied to the statement of financial position at
year end, to determine how net interest income may change on an annualised basis for one year as follows:
+250 bps: £76.7 million positive (2018: £65.5 million positive)

-250 bps: £3.9 million positive (2018: £0.7 million positive)

In preparing the above sensitivity analyses, the Group makes certain assumptions consistent with expected
and contractual repricing behaviour as well as behavioural repayment profiles, under the two interest
scenarios, of the underlyung statement of financial position items. The results also include the impact of hedge
transactions.
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Market risk (continued)

Interest rate benchmark reform

The Group is closely monitoring the market and the output from the various industry working groups managing
the transition to new benchmark interest rates. This includes announcements made by LIBOR regulators,
including the FCA, regarding the transition away from sterling LIBOR to Sterling Overnight Index Average
(SONIA). The FCA has made clear that, at the end of 2021, it will no longer seek to persuade, or compel,
banks to submit to LIBOR.

As detailed in Note 1.6(c) of the Financial Statements, the Group is exposed to the sterling LIBOR interest
benchmark within its hedge accounting relationships, which is subject to interest rate benchmark reform. The
hedged items include fixed rate sterling mortgage lending and -consumer loans and fixed rate deposits from
customers. The hedging instruments for these are also exposed to sterling LIBOR. In order to mitigate LIBOR
exposure, since. March 2019, the Group has designated hedglng relationships against SONIA and has
transacted hedging instruments referencing SONIA.

In response to the announcements, the Group has set up a LIBOR transition programme which comprises the
following work streams: risk management, tax, treasury, legal, finance and systems. The programme is under
the governance of the Chief Financial Officer who reports to the Board. The aim of the programme is to
understand where LIBOR exposures are within the business and prepare and deliver on an action plan to
enable a smooth transition to alternative benchmark rates. The Group aims to have its transition and fall back
plans in place by the end of 2020.

None of the Group’s current sterling LIBOR linked contracts include adequate and robust fall back provisions
for a cessation of the referenced benchmark interest rate. Different working groups in the industry are working
on fall back language for different instruments and different LIBORs. The Group is monitoring developments
closely and will look to implement these when appropriate.

" For the Group’s derivatives, the International Swaps and Derivatives Association’s fall back clauses were made
available at the end of 2019 and the Group will begin discussion with its banks with the aim to implement this
language into its International Swaps and Derivatives Association agreements in early 2020 for derivatives in
the banking book.

In respect of floating rate mortgage lending, wholesale finance, funds finance, block discounting, growth capital
~ and development finance products, the Group’s response is focused on treating customers fairly and considers
several aspects of transition, including the reduction of clients’ exposures to legacy LIBOR contracts by
amending or replacing existing contracts-to include robust fall back provisions or by replacing LIBOR with
relevant alternative benchmark interest rates. A critical aspect of this response IS also the development of new
products linked to relevant alternative benchmark interest rates. : .

"The Group has developed a detailed communication plan with a focus on communicating with customers in a

.way that is clear, fair and not misleading. Implementation of this plan will commence in 2020 and will include
explanation of what will happen to contracts that mature beyond the end of 2021 and the effect of LIBOR
replacement on the customer. Communications will be undertaken in good time to ensure that all customers
have time to consider the options available before the end of 2021. Initial communications will focus on raising

- awareness and engagement will increase with detailed discussions with all clients taking place well in advance
of the end of 2021. The Group’s response also includes a rigorous training programme to ensure that relevant
client-facing staff have adequate knowledge and competence to understand the implications of LIBOR
replacement and can respond to customers appropnately

.Note_1.6(c) of the FlnanC|aI Statements prowdes information regarding amendments made to IFRS 9, IAS 39
and IFRS 7 to address the issues affecting financial reporting in the period leading up to interest rate
benchmark reform. The following table provides details of the hedging instruments and hedged items in scope
of these amendments by hedge type. The terms of the hedged items listed match those of the corresponding
hedging instruments. All of the hedge accounting relationships are fair value-hedges. In total, existing exposure
to LIBOR linked hedge accounted derivatives, and corresponding hedge items have a nominal amount of .
£2,202.3 million. The assets and derivatives have the same matunty and nominal amount as hedging is
undertaken on a proportional baS|s
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Market risk (continued)

Nominal
Maturing amount
Instrument type , in -_£m__Hedged item
Pay 3-month sterling LIBOR, receive 2020 167.0 Sterling fixed rate mortgage lending
sterling fixed interest rate swaps 2021 93.6 assets and consumer loan assets of
2022 143.9 the same maturity and nominal of the
2023 338.7 swaps
2024 41.4
2025 3.0
2026 5.9
2027 5.6
A 2028 13.2°
Re_cglve 3-mqnth sterling LIBOR, pay 2020 240.0 Sterling fixed rate customer deposits
sterling fixed interest rate swaps
Put option with a floor of 0.75% 2020 100.0 Sterling 3-month sterling LIBOR
2021 50.0 mortgage lending assets with an
2022 350.0 embedded floor of 0.75%
2023 350.0
2024 200.0
2025 - 100.0

The Group will continue to apply the amendments made to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 until the uncertainty
arising from the interest rate benchmark reforms with respect to the timing and amount of the underlying cash
flows the Group is exposed to ends. The Group has assumed that this uncertainty will not end until the Group’s
contracts that reference LIBOR are amended to specify the date the interest rate benchmark will be replaced
and the relevant spread adjustments to an alternative benchmark rate calculated. This will in part be dependent
on the introduction of fall back clauses which have yet to be added to the Group’s contracts.

Operational risk

. The Risk Committee received regular reports across the spectrum of operational risks and information security.
These reports cover incidents that have arisen to allow the Committee to assess Management’s response and
proposed remedial actions. Although a number of incidents were raised during the course of 2019, none of
these were material in nature and the Risk Committee was satisfied that the action taken was appropriate and
that the control of operational incidents continued to improve. The operational risk reports were further
developed throughout 2019 to include more focus on forward looking risks which permits a more strategic
discussion at Risk Committee level.

‘Conduct, legal and compiiance risk

The Group continually reviews its risk management approach to reflect the regulatory and legal environment
_in which the Gr_oup operates.

The Group has no appetite for knowingly behaving inappropriately resulting in unfair outcomes for its
customers. During 2019, the Chief Compliance Officer commenced a programme to provide face-to-face
- conduct risk training for all staff. This aims to improve general levels of understanding regarding the importance
of effectively managing conduct risk and supports the Group’s agenda to professionalise the business. Further
- progress has been made in refining the Group’s conduct risk appetite measures, covering the conduct risks
-arising in product design, sales, after-sales service, data privacy, financial crime and culture, which are
expected to be implemented in early 2020. The Group also invested in its first line of defence financial crime

capability and has agreed as a priority to commence the automation of standard customer due diligence
- processes in 2020. The Group established its ‘Vulnerable Customer Network’ in the year, which aims to share
good practice across the business divisions and wherever possible learn from external agencies which have
significant expertise in dealing with specific aspects of vulnerability.

Data privacy has been integrated within the Gfoup’s Risk Management Framework as a conduct and
compliance risk and 2019 also saw the continued development of the Group’s Privacy Framework.
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Strategic risk

Strategic risk focusses on large, long-term risks that could become a material issue for the delivery of the
Group’s goals and objectives.- Management of strategic risk is primarily the responsibility of Executive
Management. The management of strategic risk is intrinsically linked to the corporate planning and stress
testing processes and is further supported by the regular provision of consolidated business performance and
risk reporting to the Executive Committee and the Board. The Board received and approved a number of
reports during 2019 including the strategy update. It has also been engaged actively in the formatlon of the
Group’s ICAAP, ILAAP and RRP which are critical tools to managmg strategic risk.

Systems and change risk

Customer expectations for service availability are rising with the rapid pace of new technologies leading to a
significantly lower tolerance for service disruption. The Group recognises that in order to continue to be
recognised for very high levels of customer satisfaction it needs to continually monitor systems risk and ensure
~ that change is delivered with minimum disruption to customers. During 2019, the Group reviewed its
operational resilience and appointed a new Chief Operating Officer and Head of Operational Resiliency to
oversee the Group’s operational resiliency requirements and management information.

Capital risk and management

Capital risk is the risk that the Group has msuff cient capital to cover regulatory requirements and/or to support
its own growth plans

The Group’s objective in managing Group capital is to maintain appropriate levels of capital to support the
Group’s business strategy and meet reguilatory requirements.

Policies and processes for managing the Group’s capital
The Group’s approach to capital management is driven by strategic and orgamsauonal requirements, while
also taking into account the regulatory and commercial enwronments in which it operates. ,

The Group's principal objectives when managing capital are to:

e address the expectation of the Shareholders and optimise business actlvmes to ensure return on capital
.targets are achieved though efficient capital management;

e ensure that the Group and Company hold sufficient risk capital. Risk capltal caters for unexpected losses

: that may arise, protects Shareholders and depositors and thereby supports the sustalnablllty of the Group
and Company through the business cycles; and

e comply with capital supervisory requirements and related regulations.

The PRA supervises the Group on a consolidated basis and receives information on the capital adequacy of,
and sets capital requirements for, the Group as a‘whole. The Company is regulated by the PRA and the FCA. .
The aim of the capital adequacy regime is to promote safety and soundness in the financial system and embed
the requirements of Pillar 3 on market discipline. Under Pillar 2, the Group completes an annual self-
assessment of risks known as the ICAAP. The ICAAP is reviewed by the PRA which culminates in the PRA
setting a Total Capital Requirement on the level of capital the Group and its regulated subsidiaries are required
to hold. Pillar 3 requires firms to publish a set of disclosures which allow market participants to assess
information on that firm’s capital, risk exposures and risk assessment process The Group’s Pillar 3 dlsclosures
can be found on the Group’s websute

The Group maintains an adequate capital base with the aim of supporting the development of the business
and to ensure it meets the Total Capital Requirement at all times. As a result, the Group maintains capital
adequacy ratios above minimum regulatory requirements. The Group’s individual regulated entities complied
with all of the externally imposed capital requirements to which they are subject for the year ended 2019.

Regulation

Capital Requirements Directive IV (CRD 1V) requures the Group to hold Common Equity Tier 1 capital to
account for capital conservation, countercyclical and systemic risk buffers. A capital conservation buffer of
0.625% was introduced on 1 January 2016 and increased each year to 2019 in line with regulatlons As at 31
December 2019 the capital conservation buffer is set at 2.500% (2018: 1.875%). )
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Capital risk and management (continued)

CRD |V also introduced a new leverage ratio requirement. The leverage calculation determines a ratio based
on the relationship between Tier 1 capital and total consolidated exposure, being the sum of on-balance sheet
exposures, derivative exposures, securities financing transaction exposures and off-balance sheet exposures.
This leverage ratio is a risk-based measure that is deS|gned to act as a supplement to risk-based capital
requirements.

Minimum requirements for own funds and eligible liabilities (MREL) are applicable from 1 January 2016 and
will be phased in fully by 1 January 2020. Prior to 31 December 2019, MREL will be equal to an institution’s
minimum regulatory capital requirements. The Bank of England has provided MREL guidance to the Group,
as well as guidance on the transitional arrangements until 1 January 2020. :

The regulatory minimum for the Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio and Total Tier 1 capital ratio is 4.5% and
6.0%, respectively. The Group maintains ratios well in excess of these regulatory minimums. _

The minimum requifement for the leverage ratio is 3.0%. The Group is not required to comply with the PRA
leverage ratio framework until its retail deposits exceed the £50 b|II|on threshold; however, the Group maintains
a prudent risk appetite for Ieverage

The Total Capltal Requwement of the Group in both reported years is 10. 27% of risk-weighted assets.

IFRS 9 transitional arrangements

The Group has elected to use a transitional approach when recognlsmg the impact of adopting IFRS 9
‘Financial Instruments’. The transitional approach involves phasing in the full impact using transitional factors
published in Regulation (EU) 2017/2395. This permits the Group to add back to their capital base a proportion
of the impact that IFRS 9 has upon their loss-allowances during the first five years of use. The proportion that
the Group may add back in 2019 is 85% (2018: 95%). This add back is referred to throughout the capital risk
disclosures as the transmonal adjustment for IFRS 9. ' _ <

Capltal rlsk disclosures

Capital resources ‘
The following table shows the regulatory capltal resources managed by the Group and Company:

Group. Company Group Company
2019 2019 2018 2018
. : , £m £m £m £m
Share capital ' - 1755 175.5 175.5 175.5
Share premium account : 810 810 - 810 81.0
Capital redemption reserve v ' - 17.2 17.2 16.4 16.4
Merger reserve ' ' 16 16 - 1.6 1.6 -
Retained earnings - 3579 3436 2739 2608
Intangible assets . ' ) (60.9) ~ (46.6) (60.7) (46.4)
Transitional adjustment for IFRS9 = 221 221 25.7 25.5
Common Equity Tier 1 capital . -594.4 594.4 513.4. 514.4
Capital securities - | | | 1250 125.0 1250 125.0
. Additional Tier 1 capital ' , 125.0 125.0 125.0 125.0
* Total Tier 1 capital o : 719.4 - 719.4 6384 6394
'Subordlnated debt I|ab|I|ty _ | ) ‘ 94.9 A 94.9 .75.0 75.0
Tier 2 capltal : ' 94.9 949 75.0 ] 75.0
Total regilatory capital - 8143 814.3 713.4 714.4

1 For the purpose of regulatory capital calculations, capitalised interest of £1.5 million is excluded for both Group and Company (2018:
£1.1 million). Accrued interest is payable bi-annually and is therefore excluded from capital reserves.
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Regulatory capital reconciles to total equity per the statement of financial position as follows:

Group Company Group Company

2019 2019 2018 2018

£m £m £m £m

Total regulatory capital 814.3 814.3 713.4 714.4
Subordinated debt liability’ . (94.9) (94.9) (75.0) (75.0)

- Intangible assets 609 466 60.7 46.4
Transitional adjustment for IFRS 9 (22.1) (22 1) (25.7) . (25.5)
Total equity 758.2 743.9 - 6734 660.3

The following table éhows the movement in Total Tier 1 capital during the year:

Group Company Group . Company
2019 2019 2018 2018
£m £m £m £m
Total Tier 1 capital as at 1 January" N 638.4 6394 555.6 . 556.4
Impact of adopting IFRS 9 : ' - - (16.0) (15 7)
Restated balance as at 1 January 638.4 639.4 - 539.6 540.7
Movement in Common Equity Tier 1 capital
Increase/(decrease) in capital redemption reserve 0.8 08 (0.3) (0.3)
Movement in retained earnings: o o ' o .
~ Profit for the year2 _ 93.8 926 84.5 85.1
Share-based payments A - - - -
Coupon paid on capital securities? (9.8) (9.8) . (9.8) (9.8)
Increase in intangible assets (0.2) (0.2) (1.3) (1.8)
fl[:)sgrzase)/mcrease in transitional adjustment for (3.6) (3.4) 257 " 255
Tota_\l movement in Common Equity Tier 1 © 81.0 800 98.8 087
capital . |
Total Tier 1 capital as at 31 December 719.4 719.4 638.4 639.4
Risk-weighted assets
Group Company . Group Company
2019 2019 2018 2018
£m £m £m £m
credit riSk - . » .y . . B T —————————
Property Finance 2,097.0 - 2,097.0 1,660.7 1,660.7
Business Finance . - o ) 1,749.2 1,749.2 1,464.3 1,476.2
Consumer Lending ’ ‘ 517.4 517.4 560.2 . 560.2
Other N : 155.5 155.4 1344 -~ 1338
Total credit risk ' ' 4,519.1 4,519.0 38196 . 3,830.9
Operational risk , 451.6 449.7 - 3838 ° 383.8
Credit valuation adjustment 3.8 . .38 3.4 3.4
Total risk-weighted assets : 4,974.5 4,972.5 4,206.8 - 4,218.1

1 For the purpose of regulatory capital calculations, capitalised interest of £1.5 million is excluded for both Group and Company (2018
£1.1 million). Accrued interest is payable bi-annually and is therefore excluded from capital reserves.

2 Comparatives for the year ended 31 December 2018 have been restated to reflect amendments to IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes'. See Note
1.6(b) of the Financial Statements for details. .
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Capital ratios
Group Company Group Company
2019 2019 2018 2018
‘ % % . % %
Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio 11.9 -12.0 12.2 12.2
Total Tier 1 capital ratio 145 14.5 ' 15.2 15.2
Total capital ratio 16.4 16.4 17.0 16.9
Leverage
Group Company Group Company
2019 2019 2018 2018
£m £m £m £m
Total Tier 1 capital ' 719.4 719.4 638.4 639.4
Exposure measure ,
Total statutory assets (excluding derivatives) 8,212.8 8,244.9 6,817.5 6,804.0
Off-balance sheet items 150.8 150.8 197.7 197.6
Exposure value for derivatives 128 115 63 6.3
Transitional adjustment for IFRS 9 221 221 25.7 25.5
Other regulatory adjustments ' (60.9) (46.6) (60.7) (46.4)
Total exposures ' 8,337.6 8,382.7 . 6,986.5 6,987.0
_Leverage ratio 8.6% 8.6% 9.1% 9.2%

 Off-balance sheet items comprise pipeline and committed facilities balances which have a credit conversion
factor of medium risk attached to them.

Exposure' values associated with derivatives haVe been reported in compliance with CRD IV rules. The
derivative measure is calculated as the replacement cost for the current exposure plus an add-on for future
exposure and is not reduced for any collateral received or grossed up for collateral provided.

Other regulatory adjustments comprise asset amounts deducted in determining Tier 1 capital.

IFRS 9 transitional arrangements impact analysis

As detailed on page 73, the Group has elected to use a transitional approach when recognising the impact of
adopting IFRS 9. To illustrate the impact of using this transitional approach, the following tables provide an
overview of the Group's reported capital metrics (including transitional adjustments), compared to the capital
metrics if IFRS 9 transitional arrangements had not been applied (i.e. full adoption):
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Capital risk and management (continued)

Risk Management Report

" Shawbrook Bank Limited

2019 2018
Including Transitional Including  Transitional
transitional adjustments transitional  adjustments
Group adjustments not applied adjustments not applied
Capital resources
Common Equity Tier 1 capital (Em) 594.4 572.3 513.4 487.7
Total Tier 1 capital (Em) 7194 - 697.3 638.4 612.7
Total regulatory capital (Em) - 814.3 792.2 713.4 687.7
Risk-weighted assets : .
Total risk-weighted assets (Em) 4,974.5 4,955.5 4,206.8 4,189.5
Capital ratios : ] : :
"Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio (%) 119 11.5 12.2 11.6
Total Tier 1 Capital Ratio (%) 14.5 14.1 15.2 14.6
Total capital ratio (%) ' 16.4 16.0 17.0 16.4
Leverage .
Leverage ratio total exposures (Em) 8,337.6. 8,315.5 6,986.5 6,960.8
Leverage ratio (%) ’ 8.6 8.4 9.1 88
, 2019 2018
Including Transitional Including Transitional
transitional - adjustments transitional  adjustments
‘| Company adjustments  notapplied adjustments not applied
‘Capital resources ' B : ' ‘
. Common Equity Tier 1 capital (Em) - 594.4 572.3 514 .4 488.9
Total Tier 1 capital (Em) 719.4 697.3 639.4 613.9
Total regulatory capital (Em) 8143 792.2 7144 688.9
Risk-weighi_ed assets :
Total risk-weighted assets (Em) 4,972.5 4,953.5 4,218.1 4,202.9
Capital ratios 3
Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio (%). 12.0 11.6 12.2 11.6
Total Tier 1 Capital Ratio (%) 14.5 141" 15.2 14.6
Total capital ratio (%) ’ 16.4 16.0 16.9 16.4
Leverage
. Leverage ratio total exposures (£m) 8,382.7 8,360.6 6,987.0 6,961.5
Leverage ratio (%) - - 8.6 8.3 9.2 8.8
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Risk Management Report

ICAAP, ILAAP and stress testing

The ICAAP, ILAAP and associated stress testing. exercises represent important elements of the Group’s
ongoing risk management processes. The results of the risk assessment contained in these documents is
embedded in the strategic planning process and risk appetite to ensure that sufficient capital and liquidity are
available to support the Group's growth plans as well as cover its regulatory requirements at all times and
under varying circumstances.

The ICAAP and ILAAP are reviewed at least annually, and more often in the event of a material change in
capital or liquidity. Ongoing stress testing and scenario analysis outputs are used to inform the formal
“assessments and determination’ of required buffers, the strategy and planning for capital and liquidity
management as well as the setting of risk appetite limits. '

The Board and Executive Management have engaged in a number of exercises which have considered and
developed stress test scenarios. The analysis enables Management to evaluate the Group’s capital and
funding resilience in the face of severe but plausible risk shocks. In addition to the UK Annual Cyclical Scenario

- prescribed by the Regulator, the stress tests have included a range of Group wide, multi-risk category stress
tests, generic and idiosyncratic financial shocks as well as operational risk scenario analyses. Stress testing -
is an integral part of the adequacy assessment processes for liquidity and capital, and the setting of tolerances
under the annual review of Group risk appetite.

" The Group also performed reverse stress tests to help Executive Management understand the full continuum
of adverse impact and therefore the level of stress at which the Group would breach its individual capital and
liquidity guidance requirements as set by the Regulator under the ICAAP and ILAAP processes.

'Recovery Plan and Resolution Pack

.The Group has prepared a RRP in accordance with PRA Supervisory Statements SS9/17 and SS19/13 The
plan represents the Group’s ‘Living Will’ and examines in detail:
» the consequences of severe levels of stress (i.e. beyond those in the ICAAP) |mpact|ng the Group at a
future date;
e the state of preparedness and contlngency plan to respond to and manage through such a set of
. circumstances; and
e the optlons avarlable to Executive Management to wrthstand and recover from such an environment.

The plan is prepared annually, or more frequently in. the event of a material change in the Group’s status, .
capital or liquidity position. The Board of Directors and Executive Management are fully engaged in consuderlng
~ the scenarios and options avallable for remedial actions to be undertaken. . .

The Board considers that the Group’s business model, its supportive owners and the diversified nature of its
business markets provides it with the flexibility to consider selective business or portfolio disposals, loan book
-run off, equity raising ora combination of these actions. The Group would mvoke the RRP in the event they
are required. :

Group viability statement.

The Directors have assessed the outlook for the Group over a longer period than the 12 months required by
the going concern statement in line with good governance practice and reporting.

- The Board aime to build a sustainable lending and savings bank for SMEs and eonsumers over the medium

"to long-term. The Board monitors a five-year strategic plan that provides a robust planning tool against which
strategic decisions are made. Whilst the Board has no reason to believe that the Group will not be viable for a

“five-year period, given the inherent uncertainty involved, the Board concluded that a three-year period is an
appropriate length of time to perform a viability assessment with a greater level of certainty.
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Risk Management Report

Group viability statement (continued)

The assessment included the following:

the Board considered updates to the strategy and five-year plan at various times during 2019 and
approved the strategic update in November 2019 that outlined the business plans and financial projections .
from 31 December 2019 to 31 December 2024,

the Board considered the quantity and quality of capital resources avarlable to support the delivery of the
Group’s objectives, including consideration of the effects of a changing regulatory landscape on the Total
Capital Requirement, Pillar 2B and the CRD |V combined buffer requirements, together with the effect of
the Group’s capital contingency plan to restore the capital position in scenarios of capital headwinds;

the Board considered the Group’s current and forecast liquidity and funding plan supporting the strategic |

_Objectives;
- the Board reviewed and evaluated the top and emerging risks for the business. This included a review of
the cyber intelligence threat and the annual information risk assessment, together with the technology

roadmap for improvements in the technology control environment in 2020; and

the Board reviewed and approved the ICAAP and ILAAP. The Group is not large enough to participate in
the annual Bank of England concurrent stress testing programme but has, as part of its ICAAP, performed .
a variety of equivalent stress tests and reverse stress tests of its business. The stress tests were derived

. through discussions with Executive Management and the Board, after considering the Group’s top risks.

The Group also considered its funding and liquidity adequacy in-the context of the reverse stress testing.
The risks associated with the UK leaving the EU have been considered and the Board believe these risks

were captured within its stress testing scenarios. The stress tests enable the Group to assess the impact™

of a number of severe but plausible scenarios on its business model. In the case of reverse stress testing,
the Board is able to assess scenarios and circumstances that would render its business model unviable, -
thereby identifying business vuinerabilities and ensunng the development of early warning mdrcators and

. potentral mltlgatlng actlons

The Board also reviewed and evaluated the possible impacts of Covid-19.in Q1 2020 against the original
~ financial and business plans over the 2020-2023 period and this included the following actions:

the Board considered the Group’s operational resilience in relation to the government’s mandated social
distancing rules and noted that the Group has been operating successfully since March 2020, with the
majority of employees working from home and the Group’s material outsourced suppliers providing their
critical services successfully under current conditions. The Board belreve that this can operate for an
extended period; :
the existing financial plans were stress tested by assessung the Group's customer and sector exposure to
highlight any sectors at risk of impairment but also including the unprecedented fiscal and monetary
response from the government and the Bank of England to support the UK economy and provide both

;. capital and impairment relief from payment holidays;

the risk that there could be an increased likelihood of an extended period of disruption in the debt fmancual
markets preventing the Group from ralsmg additional hybrid debt capital over the plan period was

~ assessed; and . .
' the Board assessed the financial implications of the risks associated wrth Covid-19, mcludmg the expected

effect of Management actions taken in response, against the most severe but plausible scenario used in
the Board's assessment of the ICAAP approved in 2020. This scenario was the ‘Rates Down'! scenario

- specified by the Bank of England for use in preparing ICAAP stress tests. Having regard for the severe

financial outcomes from this scenario and the reverse stress tests also conducted, the Board concluded
that both capital and liquidity remained within present regulatory requirements over the period. It is not
the Board'’s view that the ‘Rates Down’ scenario is the likely economic outcome of the current Covid-19
pandemic, particularly.having regard for the significant government and Barik of. England support for the
economy, but provides a helpful baseline for the Board's consideration of the viability of the business over -

" the period under rewew

‘Based on the results of these assessments the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group will

be able to contmue in operatlon and meet its liabilities as they faII due overa period of-at Ieast three years. -

1 The Bank of England publishes annual stress test scenanos with the ‘Rates Down’ scenario (an extension of the Annual:Cyclical .
Scenario) being the most severe for the Group's forecast capital position. This scenario.shows a peak-to-trough fall in UK GDP of 4.7%,
unemployment peaking at 9.2%, UK residential property prlce falls of 33% and Bank of England Base Rate falling to 0% for the duratlon
of the stress. . . .
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to the memberé of Shawbrook Bank Ltd

1. Our opinion is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements-of
Shawbrook Bank Ltd {“the Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2019 which comprise the
Consolidated statement of profit and loss and
other comprehensive income, Consolidated and
Company statement of financial position,
Consolidated statement in changes in equity,
Consolidated and Company statement of cash
flows, and the related notes, including the
accounting policies in note 1.

In our opinion:

— the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of the Group’s and the
parent Company's affairs as at 31 December
2019 and the Group's profit for the year
then ended;

— the Group financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with )
International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the European Union (IFRSs as
adopted by the EU);

— the Company financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the EU and as applied
in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006; and

— the financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with requirements of the
Companies Act 2006.

- Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing {UK) {“ISAs
(UK)”) and applicable law. Our responsibitities are
described below. We believe that the audit
evidence we have abtained is a sufficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion. Our audit opinion
is consistent with our report to the audit
committee. ’

Annual Report and Accounts 2019

We were first appointed as auditor by the directors
in June 2011. The period of total uninterrupted
engagement is for the nine financial years ended 31
December 2019. We have fulfilled our ethical
responsibilities under, and we remain independent
of the Group in accordance with, UK ethical
requirements including the FRC Ethicat Standard as
applied to public interest entities. No non-audit
services prohibited by that standard were provided.

Overview

Materiality: £5.0m (2018: £4.5m)
group financial .
statements as a 4.5% (2018: 4.5%) of
whole profit before tax
Coverage 100% (2018:100%) of Group
profit before tax
Key audit matters vs 2018
Eventdriven Going Concern NEW
‘Recurring risks  Uncertainty due to <>
Britain leaving the
European Union
ExpectedCredit Loss v
provisioning .
Eifective interestrate <>
accounting
Provisions related to <>
. conductmatters
Valuationof goodwill = ¥
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Financial Statements

2. Key audit matters: including our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that; in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified
by us, including. those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and
directing the efforts of the engagemeént team. We summarise below the key audit matters, in arriving at our audit.opinion
above, together with our key audit procedures to address those matters and, as required for public interést entities; our
results from those procedures. These matters were addressed, and our results are based on procedures undertaken, in the
context of, and solely for the purpose of, our audit of the-financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and consequently are incidental to that opinion, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Shawbrook Bank Limited

Refer to page 22 (Director’s report) and page 77 (viability statement)

Risk vs 2018: NEW

The risk

Our response

Disclosure qualit

The financial statements explain how the Board has:
formed a judgement that it is appropriate to adopt the
going concern hasis of preparation for the Group and
parent Company. : '

That judgement is based on an evaluation of the
inherent risks to the Group’s and Company’s business
model and how those risks might affect the Group's
and Company’s financial resources or ability to continue
operations over a period of at least a year from the date
of approval of the financial statements.

The risk most likely to adversely affect the Group's and
Company's available financial resources over this period
was insufficient regulatory capital to meet minimum
regulatory capital levels over the course of the next 12
months.

There are also less predictable but realistic impacts,
such as the impact of Coronavirus COVID-19, which
could result in a rapid increase in the level of
impairment in loans and advances to customers.

The risk for our audit was whether or not those risks

Our procedures included:

Our Covid-19 knowledge: We considered the directors’
assessmerit of Covid-19 related sources of risk for the Company's
business and financial resources compared with our own
understanding of the risks. We considered the directors’ plans to
take action to mitigate therisks;

Sensitivity analysis: We considered sensitivities over the level of
available financial resources indicated by-the Company’s financial
forecasts taking account of severe plausible downside effects that
could arise from theseé risks individually and collectively. We
challenged the assumptions underpinning the stress testing
undertaken by the Directors of the identitied critical factors in their
financial forecasts.

Evaluating Directors’ intent: We evaluated the achievability of
the actions the Directors consider they would take to improve the
position should the risks materialise.

Assessing transparency: We assessed the completeness and
accuracy of the matters covered in the going concern disclosure,
including those in the strategic report, by comparing the overall
picture against our understanding of the risks.

were such that they amounted to a material uncertainty Qur results:
that may have cast significant doubt about the ability to  We found the going concern disclosure without any material

continue as a going concern. Had they been such, then
that fact would have been required to have been
disclosed.

uncertainty to'be acceptable (2018: acceptable)

Annual Report and Accounts 2019
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The impact of uncentainties due to Britain exiting the European Union on our audit

Refer to page 39 (Risk Management Report)

Risk vs 2018: <4»

The risk QOur response

Unprecedented levels of uncertainty We developed a standardised firm-widé approach to the consideratior
.of the uncertainties arising from Brexit in planning and performing our

All audits assess and challenge the reasonablenessof  audits. Our procedures included:

estimates, in particular as described in Expected credit

loss provisioning, Effective interest rate accountingand .~ Qur Brexit knowledge: We considered the directors’
Valuation of goodwiill - Business Finance below, and assessment of Brexit-related ‘sources of risk for the Group and
related disclosures and the appropriateness of the parent Company's business and financial resources compared

going concern basis of preparation of the financial
staterments (see above). All of these depend on .
assessments of the future ecohornic envirgnment and
the Group and parent Company's future prospects and
performance. ’

with-our own understanding ot the risks. We considered the
directors’ plans to take action to mitigate the fisks:

— Sensitivity analysis: When addressing Expected credit 0ss
provisioning and Valuation of goodwill - Business Finance, we
compared the directors’ analysis'to our dssessment.of the full
range of reasonably possible scenarios resulting from Brexit
uncertainty.

Brexit is onie of the most significaint ecoriomic events
for the UK and its ettects are subject to unprecedented
levels-of uncertainty of consequences with the full

" range of possible eff n. . ; L
9 possible & ects unknow' — Assessing transparency: As well as assessing individual

disclosures as part of our procedures on Expected credit l0ss
provisioning, Effective interest rate accounting and Valuation.of
goodwill - Business Finance, we considered all of the Brexit
related disclosures together, including those i the strategic
report, comparing the overall picture against our understanding ot
the risks. .

Our results: .

As reported under. Expected credit loss provisioning, Effective interest.
rate accounting and, Valuation of goodwill - Business Finance; we
found the resulting estimates and related disclosures of credit
impairment provisioning, effective intérest rate accounting and
valuation of goodwill and disclosures in relation to going concern to be
acceptable. However,.no audit should be expected to predict the
unknowable factors or all possible future implications for-a company
and this is particularly the case in relation to Brexit.
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Expected Credit Loss provisioning

Financial Statements

£61.1 million; 2018: £67.8 million

Refer to pages 42-63 (Risk managerent report), pages 114-115 (accounting policies) and page 124 (financial disclosures)

Risk vs 2018: ¥ This risk was considered higher in 2018, as that was the first year of application of IFRS 9.

The risk

Our response

Subjective estimate

The estimation of expected credit losses (“ECL"} on
financial assets involves significant judgement and
estimates. The key areas where we identified greater
levels of management judgement and theretore
increased levels of audit focus in the Group's
estimation of ECLs are:

Economic scenarios - IFRS 9 requires the Group to
measure ECLs on an unbiased forward-looking basis
reflecting a range of future economic conditions.
Significant management judgement is applied-in
determining the economic scenarios used and the
probability weightings applied to them.

Significant Increase in Credit Risk — For each portfolio
the criteria selected to identify a significant iricrease in
credit risk of loans, and as such the stage loans are
allocated to, is a key area of judgement within the
Group's ECL calculation as these criteria determine
whether a 12 month or lifetime provision is recorded.

Mode! estimations - Inherently judgemental modelling
is. used to estimate ECLs, particularly in determining
Probabilities of Default “PD") and Loss Given Default
("LLGD"), and to a lesser extent Exposures at Default.
("EAD"). These models utilise both the Group's
historical data and external data inputs.

Post-model adjustments - Adjustments to the model-
driven ECL results are raised by management to
address known impairment model limitations or
emerging trends. They represent approximately 3.4%
of the ECL. Management judgement is involved in
estimating these amounts especially in relation to
development finance loans.

The effect of these matters is that, as part of our risk
assessment, we determined that ECL provisioning has
a high degree of estimation uncertainty, with a potential
range of reasonable outcomes greater than our
materiality for the financial statenients as a whole, and
possibly many times that amount. The risk
management report (pages 54-55) discloses the
sensitivity estimated by the Group.

Disclosure quality

The disclosures regarding the Group's application of
IFRS 9 are key to explaining the key judgements and
material inputs to the IFRS 9 ECL results.

Our procedures included:

Controls testing: We performed end to end process walk-
throughs to identify the key systems, applications and
controls used in the ECL processes. We tested the relevant
general IT and applications controls over key systems used in
the ECL process.

Test of details: For a sample of loans and advances we
conducted credit file reviews to assess the appropriateness
of the stage allocation and associated ECL estimate.
Historical comparisons: We critically assessed the Group's
assumptions in respect of significant increase in credit risk;
likely recoverable collateral value, including timing of
recovery; and the probability of possession given default by
comparing them to the Group’s historical experience. For the
Group’s probability of default models we assessed the

- reasonableness of the model predictions by comparing them

against actual results.

Benchmarking assumptions: We compared the Group's key
assumptions on significant increase in credit risk; likely
recoverable collateral value, including timing of recovery;
probability of possession given default; and the probability
weightings attached to each economic scenario to
comparable peer group organisations.

Our sector experience: We challenged the Group s key
assumptions on significant increase in credit risk; the
definition of default; likely recoverable collateral value,

including timing of recovery; probability of default; probability )

of possession given default based on our knowledge of the
Group and experience of the industry in which it operates.
We involved our own economic specialists to assist us in
assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s methodology
for determining the economic scenarios used and the
probability weightings applied to them.

Sensitivity analysis: We performed sensitivity analysis over
the Group's key assumptions on significant increase in credit

- risk; likely recoverable collateral value, including timing ot

recovery; probability of possession given default; and the

_probability weightings attached to each economic scenario.

Independent evaluation: We have critically challenged and
evaluated management’s assumptions underpinning the post
model adjustments; '
Assessing transparency: We evaluated whether the:
disclosures appropriately retlect and address the uncertainty
which exists when determining the expected credit losses.
As a part of this, we assessed the sensitivity analysis that is

disclosed. In addition, we challenged whether the disclosure

of the key judgements and assumptions made was
sufticiently clear.

Our results:

We found the Group's estimate and related disclosures of the
provision for expected credit loss to be acceptable (2018 result:
acceptable). '

Shawbrook Bank Limited
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Effective interest rate accounting

Financial Statements

£396.9 miillion; 2018: £351.1 million

Refer to pagées 101 and 116 (accounting policy) and page 121 (financial disclosures).

Risk'vs 2018 4w

The risk

Our response

Subjéective estimate .
Interest and related fee income on originated and
acquired loans are recognised in line with the etfective
interest rate method, which spreads the income over

" the expected lives of the loans.

- The directors ‘apply judgement in deciding and
assessing the expected repayment profiles used to
determine the EIR period. The most critical element of
judgement in this area i$ the estimation of the future
redemption profiles of the loans. This is informed by
product mix and past customer behawour of when
loans are repaid.

The effect of these matters is that, as part of our risk
" assessment, we determined that EIR income has a
high degree of estimation uncertainty; with a potential
range of reasonable outcomes greater than our
materiality for the financial statements as a whole, and
possibly many times that amount. The-tinancial -
.statements (note 1.9(a)} disclose the sensitivity

Our procedures included:

Our sector experience: We assessed the key assumptions
behind the expected lives and profiles of -significant loan

products against our own knowledge of industry experience

and trends, including benchmarking with comparable lendeis.

Historical comparison: We assessed the reasonableness of -
the model's expected repayment profiles-assumptions

against historical experience of loan lives based on customer
behaviour, product mix and recént performance.

Sensitivity analysis: We assessed the models for their
sensitivities to changes in the key assumptions by

‘considering different profiles to help us assess the

reasonableness of the assumptions used and identify areas of
potential additional focus; and

Assessing transparency: We assessed the adequacy. of the
Group's disclosures about the degree of estimation mvolved

“in arriving-at the interest income recognlsed

Our results:
_ We found the amount of EIR income recognised in the year to be
acceptable. (2018: acceptable}

estimated by the Group.
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Provision relating to conduct matters

Financial Statements

£7.3 million; 2018: £10.6 million

Refer to pages 118 f{accounting policy) and pages 139 and 15 1 (financial disclosures).

Risk'vs 2018: 4»

The risk

Our response

Omitted exposure

Certain of the Group’s lending activities give rise to
ongoing exposure under Section 75 of the Consumer
Credit Act; should products be mis-sold by suppliers
who subsequently become insolvent, the Group is
liable for customer remediation. Whether there is a
liability is inherently uncertain.

Subjective estimate
Due to the uncertainties that can arise in measunng
potential obligations, the directors apply judgement in

. estimating the value of any associated provisions.
In particular, the Group continues to receive an inflow
of customer complaints relating to its financing of solar
lending products where the original supplier is no
longer solvent.

During the year, the number of products reaching the
six year complaints time bar increased, reducing the
number of forecast future complaints and consequently
the associated provision. Nevertheless, there remains
significant.estimation uncertainty around the year end
provision.

The keéy elements of judgement are the estimation of
future customer complaints rate, the uphold rate of
complaints received and the estimated redress cost per
upheld complaint. These judgements are informed by
the Group's past.complaint and claim experience. Given
the limited historical information, there is a risk that the
actual experience may ditfer from the Group s
expectation.

The effect of these matters is that, as part of our risk
assessment, we determined that the provision related
to conduct mattérs has a high degree of estimation
uncertainty, with a potential range of reasonable
outcomes greater than our materiality for the financial
statements as a whole. The financial statements (note
1.9(c) disclose the sensitivity estimatéd by the Group.

Our procedures included:

— Our sector experience: We compared common industry
issues with those areas provided for by the Group to
determine whether these issues were relevant to the
business and to consider completeness ot the provisions
assessed by the directors.

— Independent evaluation: We critically challenged and
evaluated management’s assumptions in estimating the
expected exposure. This in¢luded independent estimation of
the expected future customer complaint rates, claims uphold
rates and redress per upheld complaint.

— Historical comparison: We assessed the reasonableness of
the key assumptions against historical experience of
custormer complaint levels, complaint uphold rates and
redress paid.

— Sensitivity analysis: We assessed and challenged the
reasonableness of the model's key assumptions, by
performing stress tests on the number of expected future
complaints, the uphold level of complaints and the redress
paid per complaint.

— Assessing transparency: We considered the adequacy of
the Group's disclosures in detailing significant conduct related
matters and potential liabilities.

Our results:
We found the resulting estimate of the conduct provisions recognlsed
and the contingént liabilities disclosures made to be acceptable (2018:
acceptable).

Shawbrook Bank Limited Annual Report and Accounts 2019
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Valuation of goodwill - Business Finance

£34.7 million; 2018: £34.7 million
Refer to pages 107 and 117 (accounting policy) and page 135 (financial disclosures).

Risk vs 2018: ¥ Risk of impairment of the goodwill balance reduces as the Business Finance division continues to grow,
providing additional headroom.

The risk Our response

Forecast-based valuation Our procedures included:

Of the total goodwill balance of £43.7 million, £34.7 — Our sector experience: Assessing the appropriateness of

million relates to Business Finance, being the area of' assumptions used based on market trends and events, in

most. significant judgement in light of. the size of the particular those rélating to forecast revenue growth as the

balance and, whilst improving, weaker than forecast key driver of net operating incone, discount rate and -

financial performance.in the year. incremental capital requirements in Business Finance.

The carrying value of goodwill is tested for impairment — Benchmarking assumptions: Comparing the Group's

on the occurrence of an impairment trigger or . assumptions to external comparable data in relation to key

otherwise annually. . : inputs such as projected economic growth and discount rate.
" The estimated recoverable amount is subjective due to — Sensitivity analysis: Pérforming breakeven. analysis on the

the inhérent uncertainty involved in forecasting future - assumptions noted above using our data analytic capabilities.

cash tlows and growth'in the division, and in selecting . )
an appropriate discount rate. : . — Assessing transparency: Assessing whether the Group's
’ disclosures about the sensitivity of the outcome of the
The effect of these matters is that, as part of our risk impairment assessment to changes in key assumptions
assessment, we determined that the valuation of reflected the risks inherent in the valuation of goodwill.
goodwill has a high degree of estimation uncertainty, : :
with a potential range of reasonable outcomes greater 0}" results:
than our materiality for the financial statements as a We found the resulting estimate of the carrying value of goodwill to
. whole. The financial statements (note 1.9(b)) disclose *  be acceptable (2018: acceptable)
the sensitivity ‘estimated by the Group. ’
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3. Our application of materiality and an overview of
the scope of our audit

Materiality for the Group financial statements as a whole
was set at £5.0m (2018: £4.5m), determined with
reference to a benchmark of Group profit.before tax, of
which it represents 4.5% (2018: 4.6% Group profit
before tax, normalised to exclude one off insurance
recoveries).

Materiality for the parent Company financial statements
as a whole was set at £56.0m (2018: £4.5m), determined
with reference to a benchmark ot company profit before-
tax, of which it represents 4.5% (2018: 4.6%).

We agreed to report to the-Audit Committee any
corrected or uncorrected identified misstatements
exceeding £0.256m, in addition to other identified
misstatements that warranted reporting on qualitative
grounds.

Team structure

The Group team performed the audit of the Group as if it
was a single aggregated set of financial information. The
audit was performed using the materiality level set out
above. .

We have nothing to report on going concern
The Directors have prepared the financial statements on
the going concern basis as they do notintend to
liquidate the Company or the Group or'to cease their
operations, and as they have concluded that the
* Company's and the Group's financial position means
that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there
are no material uncertainties that could have cast
significant doubt over their ability to continue as a going
‘concern for at least a year from the date of approval of
the tinancial statements (" the going concern period”).
Our responsibility is to conclude on the appropriateness
of the Directors’ conclusions and, had there been a
material uncertainty related to going concern, to make
_reference to that in this audit report. However, as we
- cannot predict all future events or conditions and as
subsequent events may resultin outcomes that are
inconsistent.with judgements that were reasonable at
the time they were made, the absence of reference to a
material uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a
guarantee that the group or the company will contiriue in
operation. ’
We identified going concern as a key audit matter (see
section 2 of this report). Based on the work described in
our response to that key audit matter, we are required
to report to you if we have anything material to add or
draw attention to in relation to the directors’ statement
in Note 1 to the financial statements on the use of the
going concern basis o6f accounting with no material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt over the
Group and Company’s use of that basis for a period of at
least twelve months from the date of approval of the
financial statements.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Financial Statements

Profit before tax
£122.6m (2018: £110.3m)

Group Materiality
£5.0m (2018: £4.5m)

£5.0m
Whole financial
statements materiality
(2018: £4.5m)

aProfit bafore tax.

@ Group matsriality
£0.25m

Misstatements reported to
the audit committee (2018:
£0.20m)

We have nothing to report on other information in

the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information
in the Annual Report. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover those reports and we do
not express -an audit opinion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether, based on our financial
statements audit work, the information therein is
materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial
statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on
that work we have not identified material
misstatements in the other information.

Strategic report and directors’ report
Based solely on our work on the other information:

— we have not identified material misstatements in
the. strategic report and the directors’ report;

— in our opinion the information given in those
reports for the financial year is consistent with the
finahcial staterments; and - .

— in our opinion those reports have been prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

We have nothing to report on the other matters
on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to

report to you if, in our opinion

— adequate accounting records have not been kept

" by the parent Company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us; or

— the parent Company financial statements are not
in agreement with the accounting records and
returns; or

— certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration
specified by law are not made; or

— we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit.

— We have nothing to report in these respects.
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7. Respective responsibilities
Directors' responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on
page 23, the Directors are responsible for: the
preparation of the financial statements including being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such
internal control as they determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; assessing the Group and parent
Company's ability to continue asa going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern; and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the
Group or the parent Company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or other irregularities (see below), or error, and
10 issue our opinion in an auditor’s report.

Reasonable assurance is & high level of assurance,
but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud, other irregularities or error and
are considered material if, individually of in aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the
financial statements. ’

A fuller description of our responsibilities.is provided
on the FRC's website at
www. frc org. uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

Irregularities — ability to detect

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could
reasonably be expected to have a material effect on
the financial statements from our general commercial
and sector experience through discussion with the
directors and other management (as required by
auditing standards), and from inspection of the
group’s regulatory and legal correspondence and
discussed with the directors and other management
the policies and procedures regarding compliance
with laws and regulations. We communicated
identified laws and regulations throughout our team
and remained alert to any indications of non-
compliance throughout the audit. The potential effect
of these laws and regulations on the financial
statements varies considerably.

Firstly. the Group is subject to laws and regulations
that directly affect the financial statements including
financial reporting legislation (including related
companies legislation), distributable profits legislation
and taxation legislation and we assessed the extent of
compliance with these laws and regulations as part of
our procedures on the related financial statement
itemns. .

hine

Financial Statements

Secondly, the Group is subject to many other laws
and regulations where the consequences of non-
compliance could have a material effect on amounts
or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance
through the imposition of fines or litigation or the loss
of the Group’s license to operate. We identified the
following areas as those most likely to have such an
effect: specific areas of regulatory capital and liquidity,
conduct, money laundering and financial crime and
certain aspects of the company legislation recognising
the financial and regulated nature of the Group's
activities. Auditing standards limit the required audit
procedures to identify non-compliance with these
laws and regulations to enquiry of the directors and
other management and inspection of regulatory and
legal correspondence, if any. Through these
procedures, we became aware of actual or suspected
non-compliance and considered the effect as part of
our procedures on the related financial statement
items. Further detail in respect of conduct related
matters is set out in the key audit matter disclosures
in section 2 of this report.

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is
an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected
some material misstatements in the financial
statements, even though we have properly planned
and performed our audit in accordance with auditing
standards. For example, the further removed non-
compliance with laws and regulations (irregularities) is
from the events and transactions reflected in the
financial statements, the less likely the inherently
limited procedures required by auditing standards
would identify it. Inaddition, as with any audit, there
remained a higher risk of non-detection of
irregularities, as these may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal controls. We are not responsible
for preventing non-compliance and cannot be
expected to detect non-compliance with all taws and
regulations.

. The purpose of our audit work and to whom we

owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company's
members, as a body. in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company's members those matters we are réquired
to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other.than the Company and the Company’s
members, as.a body, for ouraudit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Simon Ryder (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for.and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor

" Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square
London
E14 5GL
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Consolidated statement of profit and loss and other comprehens:ve income

for the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
Note £m £m
Interest income calculated using the effective interest rate 3 406.0 356.0
method .
Other interest and similar income 3 (0.3) 0.8
Interest expense and similar charges 4 (113.1) (87.2)
Net interest income 292.6 269.6
Operating lease rental income 10.3 10.0
Depreciation of operating leases 18 (8.6) (7.6)
Other operating lease income/(expense) 0.2 (0.6)
Net income from operating leases 1.9 1.8
Fee and commission income 5 9.7 10.7
Fee and commission expense (8.7) (9.7)
Net fee and commission income 1.0 1.0
Net gains/(losses) on financial instruments mandatorily at fair . o )
) 1 17 23 (0.4)
value through profit or loss : :
Other operating (expense)/income’ (2.6) 09
Net operating income 295.2 . 272.9
Administrative expenses' 6 (138.4) (128.8)
Impairment losses on financial assets? 11
- Impairment losses on financial assets (excludlng (29.9) (36.2)
insurance recovery)
- Insurance recovery - 13.0
(29.9) (23.2) |
Provisions for liabilities and charges 27 (4.5) (10.1)

Total operating expenses (172.8) - (162.1)
Share of results of associate 21 {0.1) (0.5)

' Gain on disposal of subsidiary 12 0.3 -
Profit before tax 122.6 110.3
Tax® 13 (28.8)_ (258)
Profit after tax, being total comprehensive income, 93.8 845

attributable to owners®

The notes on pages 94 to 152 are an integral part of these.ﬁnancial statements.

-

Comparatives for the year ended 31 December 2018 have been restated to reclass £0.9 million of foreign exchange losses on derivative

financial instruments, from administrative expenses to net gains/(losses) on financial instruments mandatorily at fair value through profit
or loss, to ensure compliance with the accounting policy set out in Note 1.3. Other foreign exchange gains of £0.9 million have been
‘reclassified from administrative expenses to other operating expense/(income). The net impact to administrative expenses is £nil and
net operating income and total operating expenses are unchanged as a result of this reclass.

2 During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group received £13.0 million from the Group's insurance claim in respect of a controls
breach identified in the Business Finance division in 2016. To allow for meaningful comparison between the reported years, subtotals

have been provided to present the insurance recovery separately.

3 Comparatives for the year ended 31 December 2018 have been restated to reflect amendments to IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes'. See Note

1.6(b) for details.
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Consolidated and Company statement of fmanc:al position
as at 31 December 2019

Group Company Group Company
) 2019 2019 2018 2018
Note £m £m ) £m £m
Assets :
Cash and balances at central banks : 1,064.6 1,064.6 645.2 645.2
Loans and advances to banks 591 52.3 50.6 50.1
Loans and advances to customers 14 6,637.7 6,637.7 5,845.9 5,805.7
~_Investment securities - 16 .200.0 245.9 1399 1399
Derivative financial assets 17 44 31 1.6 1.6
Property, plant and equipment! 18 57.2 . 57.2 39.1 38.1
Intangible assets 19 609  46.6 60.7 46.4
Deferred tax assets o 20 14.9- 14.9 18.0 18.0
Investment in associate . 21 5.4 54 55 55
Other assets ' o 22 8.9 16.2 12.6 55.1
Assets held for sale 23 104.1 104.1 - _ -
Total assets : 8,217.2 8,248.0 6,819.1 6,805.6
Liabilities
_Amounts due to banks 25 881.6 881.6 1,029.4 1,029.4
Customer deposits 26 6,109.4 6,109.4 49779 4,977.9
Provisions for liabilities and charges 27 83 8.3 11.6 11.6
Derivative financial liabilities 17 14.9 14.9 57 87
Debt securities in issue . 28 . 241.0 - - -
Current tax liabilities _ - 1.0 1.0 3.9 3.9
Lease liabilities' ) 4 29 124 12.4 - -
Other liabilities ’ 30 94.0 939 41.1 40.7
Subordinated debt liability : 31 96.4 96.4 761 761
Deemed loan due to structured entity ‘ 15 - . 286.2 - -
Total liabilities - 7,459.0 7,504.1 6,145.7 6,145.3
Equity _ »
Share capital : _ .32 " 175.5 175.5 1755 _ 1755
Share premium account ' 81.0 - 81.0 810 810
Capital securities , 33 125.0 125.0 125.0 125.0
Merger reserve ' 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6
- Capital redemption reserve - 17.2 17.2 16.4 16.4
Retained earnings 357.9 3436 273.9 260.8
Total equity . ' 758.2 743.9 673.4 660.3
Total equity and liabilities 8,217.2 8,2480 - 6,819.1 6,805.6

The notes on pages 94 to 152 are an integral part of these financial statements.

. These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 16 Apnl 2020 and were S|gned on |ts
-behalf by: _

lan Cowie : Dylan Minto
" Chief Executive Officer - Chief Financial Officer

" Registered number: 00388466

1 Adoption of IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ on 1 January 2019 resulted in the recognltlon of right-of-use assets included in property plant and
equipment and lease liabilities. See Note 1.6(a) for details.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equlty
for the year ended 31 December 2019

Financial Statements

2018

Share Capital
Share premium Capital Merger redemption Retained Total
Year ended 31 capital account securities reserve reserve earnings equity
December 2019 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
As at 1 January 2019 175.5 81.0 125.0 1.6 16.4 2739 673.4
Profit for the year - - - - - 93.8 93.8
Coupon paid on ) . } ) )
capital securities ) (9.8) (9.8)
Share-based '
payments N - - - 0.8 - 0.8
oy 31 December 4755 81.0 125.0 16 172 3579  758.2
Share Capital
Share  premium Capital Merger redemption Retained Total
Year ended 31 capital account  securities reserve reserve earnings  equity
December 2018 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
As at 1 January 2018 175.5 81.0 125.0 1.6 16.7 215.2 615.0
_Impact of adoptlng ) )
" IFRS 9 - - - (16.0) (16.0)
" Restated balance as ' )
at 1 January 2018 175.5 81.0 125.0 1.6 16.7 199.2 599.0
Profit for the year" - - - - - 84.5 84.5
Coupon paid on . }
capital securities’ ] } ] (9.:8) (9.8)
Share-based
payments - - - - (0.3) - (0.3)
As at 31 December 175.5 81.0 125.0 16 164 2739 6734

The notes on pages 94 to 152 are an integral part of these financial statements.

1 Comparatives for the year ended 31 December 2018 have been restated to reflect amendments to IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes'. See Note

1.6(b) for details.
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Financial Statements

Company statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Share Capital
: Share premium Capital Merger redemption Retained Total
Year ended 31 _ capital account securities reserve reserve earnings equity
December 2019 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
As at 1 January 2019 175.5 81.0 125.0 1.6 16.4 260.8 660.3
Profit for the year - - - - - - 92.6 92.6
Coupon paid on : - . . )
capital securities T ' : (9.8) _ (9.8)
Share-based o ) S . 0.8 ) 0.8
payments . : i
P at31December 4755 1.0 1250 ° 16 172 3436 7439
Share - = ' Capital
o Share  premium Capital Merger ~ redemption Retained - Total
Yearended31 . = capital account  securities reserve = reserve earnings  equity
December 2018 - - £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
As at 1 January 2018 175.5 81.0 125.0 1.6 16.7  201.2 601.0
Impact of adopting - ' ) :
IFRS 9 . - } - - (87 (s7)
Restated balance as ‘ - ' '
at 1 January 2018 175.5 81.0 125.0 1.6 16.7 185.5 585.3
" Profit for the year' - - - - .- 85.1 ._85.1
“Coupon paid on ' ) : N ‘
_capital securities’ B - o ) ) (9.8) (98)
Share-based S : N : : :
payments - - - - (0.3) - (0‘.3)
fo & 31 December - 4755 81.0 125.0 16 164 2608  660.3

The notes on pages 94 to 152 are an integral part-of these financial statemehts. 4

! Comparativés for the year ended 31 December 2018 have been restated to reflect amendments to-IA_S 12 ‘Income Taxes’. See Note
1.6(b) for details. , o S S
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Consolidated and Company statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Financial Statements

Group Company Group Company
2019 2019 2018 2018
: Note £m £m £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities' o
Profit before tax 122.6 121.4 110.3 1109
Adjustments for non-cash items and :
other adjustments included in the - 34 24.1 23.5 -33.3 32.7
statement of profit and loss . o .
Increase in operating assets 34 (943.4) (948.5) (1,050.5) (1,087.1)
Increase in operating liabilities 34 1,190.9 1,191.2 590.0 626.2
Tax paid (28.6) (28.6) (26.4) (26.4)
Net cash generated from/(used by) 365.6 359.0 (343.3) (3'43 7)
operating activities ) ) ) )
Cash flows from investing activities o _
Purchase of investment securities’ (60.0) (105.9) (139.7) (139.7)
Purchase of property, plant and 3. 4-) (3.3) (3.6) (3 4)
equipment ) ) o
Purchase and development of intangible :
assets (.9 0 88 _}9;??-,
Purchase of shares in associate - - (6.0)  (6.0)
Disposal of subsidiary, net of cash 28.4 28.4 ) )
disposed i} i}
Net cash used by investing activities (43.0) (88.8) -(159.1) (158.9)
Cash flows from financing activities'
gﬁﬁrsease)/mcrease in amounts due to (147.8) (147.8) 422 1 422.1
Issue of debt securities 250.0 - - -
Redemption of debt securities (8.2) - - -
Costs arising on issue of debt securities (1.7) - - -
Payment of lease liabilities (0.8) (0.8) . - -
Issue of subordinated debt - 20.0 20.0
Increase in deemed loan due to . 286.2 - ) )
structured entity :
Coupon paid to holders of capital ’
Secu"riﬁeg pital (9.8) (9.8) - (9.8). (9.8)
Net cash generated from/(used by) 101.7 147.8 412.3 412.3
financing activities ) ) ) -
Net mcreasel(decrease) in cash and 424.3 418.0 (90 -1) (90.3)
cash equivalents e o ) )
Cash and cash equivalentsas at 1 686.9 686 4 777.0 776.7
January ) ) ) '
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 34 1,111.2 1,104.4 686.9 686.4

December

The notes on pages 94 to 152 are an integral part of these financial statements.

' Presentation of interest on subordinated debt has been amended to include as a cash flow from operating activities rather than a cash
flow from financing activities. This is to ensure there is consistent classification, whereby all interest that enters into the determination
of profit or loss is classified within cash flows from operating activities. Comparatives for the year ended 31 December 2018 have been
restated to reflect this presentation.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

1.1. Reporting entity

Shawbrook Bank Limited (the Company) is domrcrled in the UK. The registered office is Lutea House, Warley
Hill Business Park, The Drive, Great Warley, Brentwood, Essex, CM13 3BE. The consolidated financial
statements of Shawbrook Bank Limited, for the year ended 31 December 2019, comprise the results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the Group). The ultimate parent company is detailed in Note 36.

The principal activities of the Group are lending and savings.

1.2. Basis. of accounting and measurement

Both the consolidated and Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with international
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and as
adopted by the European Union, including interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee and
those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. No individual statement
of profit-and loss or related notes are presented for the Company as permltted by section 408 (4) of the
Companies Act 2006.

As detailed in the Directors’ Report; the Directors believe that it remains appropriate to prepare the financial
statements on a going concern basis. In making this assessment, the Directors have considered a wide range
of information relating to present and future conditions, including the current state of the balance sheet, future
projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources and the longer-term strategy of the business. The
.Group’s capital and liquidity plans have been stress tested under a range of stressed scenarios and have been
reviewed by the Directors. S

The impact of Covid-19 has also been assessed and stress tested against the 2020 financial and business
plans. Whilst the Covid-19 impacts are not yet fully known and will depend on many factors including the length
" of the enforced closure of certain businesses and social facilities, the social distancing measures and the
success and continuity of the government and Bank of England measures put in place to support the economy
and businesses, the Group has assessed its capital and liquidity over the going concern period. The Directors
assessed the financial implications of the risks associated with Covid-19, including the expected effect of
Management actions taken in response, against the most severe but plausible scenario used in the Board’s
assessment of the ICAAP approved in 2020. This scenario was the ‘Rates Down’ scenario specified by the
Bank of England for use in preparing ICAAP stress tests. Having regard for the severe financial outcomes from
this scenario and the reverse stress tests also conducted, the Board concluded that both capital and liquidity
forecasts remained within present regulatory requwements including use of capital buffers, over the goung .
concern period.

After making enquiries, the Directors believe that the Group has sufficient resou'rces to continue its activities
for the 12 months from the reporting date and the Group has sufficient capital to enable it to continue to meet its
regulatory capital requirements as set out by the Prudential Regulation Authority. '

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except as required in the valuation of
certain financial instruments (i.e. derivative financial instruments) which are carried at fair value.

1.3. Functional and presentation currency

Both the consolidated and Company financial statements are presented in pounds sterling, which is the
functional currency of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest
million, except where othervvise |nd|cated

“Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the spot exchange rate at the date
of the transaction

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency
using the spot exchange rate at the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
restatement and settlement of such transactions are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. '

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured on a historical cost basis and denominated in foreign.
currencies are translated into the functional currency using the spot exchange rate at the date of the
transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair.value and denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the functional currency at the spot exchange rate at the date of valuation. Where
these assets and liabilities are held at fair value through profit or loss, exchange differences are reported as
- part of the fair value gain or loss. :
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1.4. Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
The Group's subsidiaries are detailed in Note 37.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by-the Group, including special purpose vehicles established in relation to
the Group's securitisation (see Note 1.7(h)). Control is achieved when the Group has power over the entity, is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and- has the-ability to use its
power over the entity to affect its returns. The Group reassesses whether or not it controls the entity if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. .

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group ‘and are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases. Accounting policies are applied consistently across the
Group. Intragroup transactions and balances are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group’s interests in associates are detailed in Note 21. Associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting as detailed in Note 1.7(n).

1.5. Presentation of risk and capital management disclosures _

The disclosures required under IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ concerning the nature and extent
of risks relating to financial instruments and under IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ concerning
objectives, policies and processes for managing capital have been included within the Risk Management
Report. Where information in the Risk Management Report is marked as ‘audited’ it is covered by the
Independent Audltor s Report.

.1.6. Adoption of new and revised standards and interpretations
On 1 January 2019, the Group adopted the requirements of IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ and the amendments to IAS 12
‘Income Taxes’. The Group has also elected to early adopt ‘Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’: Amendments
to IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’, IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ and IFRS 7
‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’. Details of these new and revised standards adopted are provided below.

A number of other new and revised standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, and
endorsed for use in the European Union, also came into effect on 1 January 2019, but they do not have a_
material effect on the Group’s financial statements and are not further disclosed. The Group has not early
adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

(a) IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ ‘ ' ' '

On 1 January 2019, the Group,adopted the requirements of IFRS 16. The new standard replaces IAS 17
‘Leases’ and related interpretations. The standard applies to all leasing arrangements and sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentatlon and disclosure of leases for-both lessor and lessee
accounting. :

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach (with practical expedients). As
such, the standard is applied as of 1 January 2019, with the cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained earnings. Comparative information for 2018 is-not restated and continues to
be measured and presented under the reqwrements of IAS 17.

The key changes and impacts are outlined below:

(i) Definition of a lease o
Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contalns a Iease if the contract conveys a nght to control the use of an
|dent|f|ed asset for a period of tlme in exchange for conS|deratlon :

Transition

On transition to IFRS 16 the Group elected to appIy the practical expedient set out in IFRS 16, which means
an entity is not required to reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at the date of initial application.
As such, the Group only applies the new requirements of IFRS 16 to contracts previously identified as leases
‘under IAS 17 and to contracts entered into or changed on or after 1 January 2019 that meet the definition of a
lease under IFRS 16. Contracts that were not prewously identified as leases under IAS 17 were not
reassessed.
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1.6. Adoption of new and revised standards and interpretations (continued)

(ii) Lessor accounting
Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is largely unchanged from IAS 17. Lessors continue to classify leases as
either operating or finance leases using similar principles as set out in IAS 17.

Transition
On adoption of IFRS 16, the accounting policies applied by the Group for leases in which it acts as a lessor,
as detailed in Note 1.7(s), were unchanged and there were no other impacts.

(iii) Lessee accounting

~ Previously under IAS 17, the Group classified each of its leases at inception date as either a finance lease or
an operating lease. A lease was classified as a finance lease if it transferred substantially all of the risks and

rewards of ownership of the leased asset to the Group; otherwise it was classified as an operating lease. '

Finance leases were capitalised at the commencement of the Iease at the inception date fair value of the -
leased asset or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Capitalised assets were

" accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies detailed in Note 1.7(l). Lease payments were
- .. apportioned between finance charges and a reduction of the lease Irablllty to achieve a constant rate of interest

on the remaining balance of the liability.

In an’ operating lease, the Ieased asset was not capitalised and the lease payments were charged to
administrative expenses in the statement of profit and loss ona straight-line basis over the lease term. Any
prepaid or accrued lease payments were recognised in other assets or other liabilities, respectively, in the -
statement of fi nancral position.

Upon adoptlon of IFRS 16, the Group introduced a single lessee accounting model for all leases, except for
“short-term leases and leases of low value items. All leases are now recognised on the statement of financial
position, whereby a right-of-use asset is recognised to represent the right to use the underlying asset and a
. lease Iiability is recognised to represent the obligation to.make lease payments.

" New accounting pollcles 4
A summary of the significant new accounting polrc:es applied by the Group upon adoption of IFRS 16 for leases
in WhICh it acts as a lessee is as follows: .

Right-of-use assets
The Group recognises a rrght—of—use asset at the Iease commencement date. The rlght-of-use asset is
" measured at cost, less any .accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and is adjusted for any

~  ‘remeasurement of the lease liability. The cost of the right-of-use asset includes the amount of the lease liability

~recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and Iease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. :

nght-of-use assets are presented in the nght-of—use Ieasehold property category wrthln property, plant and
equment in the statement of f nancial position. -

» nght-of-use assets are deprecuated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated useful life and
the lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment and are adjusted for certain remeasurements of
the lease liability. Depreciation and impairment losses are charged to admlnlstratlve expenses in the statement

o of profit and Ioss

.. Lease I|ab|I|t|es ,
At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a Iease Irabrlrty measured at the present value of the -
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid-under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an administrative expense
" in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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1.6. 'Adoption of new and revised standards and interpretations (continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease.
commencement date, unless the interest rate implicit in the lease is readily determinable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.
See Note 1.7(w) for details. Lease liabilities are remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments, or a change in the assessment to purchase the
underlying asset. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to’
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset. If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced
to zero, the adjustment is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Lease liabilities are presented as a line item on the face of the statement of financial position.

Short-term leases and-leases of low value assets '
The Group applies the recognition exemption to any short-term leases (i.e. those leases that have a lease term
of twelve months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). The Group also
applies the recognition exemption to leases that are considered of low value. For these leases, no right-of-use
asset is recognised and lease payments continue to be charged to admlnrstratlve expenses in the statement
of profit and Ioss on a straight-line basis over the lease term ~

Lease term ,
The Group determines the lease term as the non- cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by
an option to terminate the lease if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

- Transition

Leases previously cIassrfled as finance leases

At the date of transition, 1 January 2019, the Group had no lease contracts that had prevrously been classified
as finance leases in which it acts as the lessee. 4

Leases previously classified as operating leases :
At the date of transition, 1 January 2019, the Group had a number of lease contracts for propemes that had

previously been classified as operating leases in which it acts as the lessee. For such leases, upon transition
the Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, except for short-term leases (see practical
expedients below). Lease liabilities were recognised at the present value of the remaining lease payments
discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. Right-of-use assets were
recognised at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted for any related prepaid and accrued-lease
payments previously recognised. ' ~

The Group elected to apply the following practical expedients set out in IFRS 16, whereby it:

* used a single discount rate for portfolios of leases with reasonably similar characteristics;

e relied on its previous assessment of whether Ieases were onerous immediately before the date of |n|t|al
application;

e applied the short-term lease exemption to leases with a remaining lease term of Iess than 12 months at

. the date of initial application;

e excluded initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of lnltlal appllcatton
and

e . used hindsight in determlnlng the Iease term where the contract contalns optlons to extend or termlnate
the Iease

‘ Impacts on transrtlon
The effects of adopting IFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019 for the Group and the Company were as follows
.o Right-of-use assets of £10.3 million for the Group and £10.1 million for the Company were recognised
- and are presented in a new right-of-use Ieasehold property category within property, plant and equipment
in the statement of financial position. -
e Lease liabilities of £10.9 million for the Group and £10.7 million for the. Company were recognlsed and-
are presented in a new line item in the statement of finaricial position.
¢ In both the Group and the Company, accruals of £0.6 million included within other llabllltles related to
contracts previously classified as operating leases were derecognised: -
¢ The net effect of these adjustments had no impact on opening retained earnings.
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The lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019 can be reconciled to the operating lease commitments
as at 31 December 2018 as follows:

Group Company

£m £m
Operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 ' 13.7 13.3
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019 2.09% 2.09%
Discounted operating lease commitments as at 1 January 2019 -12.9 12.5
Less: Commitments relating to short-term leases (0.4) (0.4)
Less: VAT' , -~ (1.5) (1.3)
Less: Other adjustments ' (0.1) (0.1)
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 10.9 10.7

Impacts for the period

There was no net impact arising from the adoption of IFRS 16 on the profit for the year ended 31 December
2019. As aresult of adopting IFRS 16, depreciation increased by £1.5 million and interest expense increased |
by £0.2 million. This was fully offset by a decrease in administrative expenses of £1.7 million.

Further disclosures relating to leases are set out in Note 29.

(b) Amendments to IAS 12 ‘Income taxes’: ‘Income Tax Consequences of Payments on Instruments
Classified as Equity’ ' ,
On 1 January 2019, the Group adopted the amendments to IAS 12, which were issued as part of the annual
improvement cycle. The amendments clarify that an entity should recognise the tax consequences of dividends
where the transactions or events that generated the distributable profits are recognised.

The amendments impact the recognition of income tax relief on distributions on the Group's capital securities
which are included in equity. Previously, the Group recognised the income tax relief directly in equity. Following
adoption, the income tax relief is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, as this is where the transactions
and events that generated the drstnbutable prof its are recognised.

Transition and impacts

The amendments are accounted for retrospectrve|y As such, comparatives for the year ended 31 December
2018 have been restated to reduce the tax charge and increase profit after tax by £2.5 million. This reduced
the tax charge in both the Group and the Company from £28.3 million to £25.8 million. As a result, profit after
tax for the Group increased from £82.0 million to £84.5 million and for the Company increased from £82.6
million to £85.1 million.

In the year ended 31 December 2019, tax relief of £2.5 million is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
Prior to adopting the amendment to IAS 12, this tax relief would have been recognised directly in equity.

(c) ‘Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’: Amendments to IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’, IAS 39
‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ and IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments:
Disclosures’

In September 2019, amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 were published. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020, with early application permitted. The Group has
elected to early adopt the amendments for the year ended 31 December 2019. - :

1 Operating lease commitments reported under IAS 17 ‘Leases’ in 2018 included VAT. The Group does not include VAT in the lease
liability recognised under IFRS 16 ‘Leases’. This resulted in a £1.5 million difference.
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1.6. Adoption of new and revised standards and interpretations (continued)

The amendments conclude phase one of the International Accounting Standards Board’s work to address
issues affecting financial reporting in the period leading up to interest rate benchmark reform. Specifically, the
amendments provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting to continue during the period of
uncertainty before the replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark with an alternative nearly risk-free
interest rate. The amendments are mandatory and apply to all hedging relationships directly affected by
uncertainties related to interest rate benchmark reform.

Transition and |mpacts
- The reliefs provided by the amendments that are relevant to the Group are set out beIow together with the
v |mpact on the Group s accounting: : )

‘Separately identifiable risk components’ relief: :
This relief means that as long as a non-contractually specrf ied mterest rate risk component meets the

separately identifiable requirement at inception of the hedge accounting relationship, hedge accounting should

be continued. This is applicable to the Group as follows:

e The Group has sterling denominated fixed rate advances in the form of commercial and residential
mortgages, consumer lending products and fixed rate deposits from customers which it fair value hedges:
using sterling London Inter-Bank Offered Rate (LIBOR) to sterling fixed interest rate swaps in portfolio fair
value hedge relationships. The amendments permit continuation of hedge accounting even if in the future
the hedged benchmark interest rate, sterling LIBOR, may no longer be separately identifiable. However,
this relief does not extend to the requirement that the designated interest rate risk component must
continue to be reliably measurable. If the risk component is no longer reliably measurable, the hedging
relationships will be discontinued.

e The Group has sterling denominated floating rate mortgage lending products that are referenced to three-
month LIBOR, but with a minimum reference rate of 0.75%. These are hedged with sold interest rate
options in a portfolio fair value hedge relationship. The amendments permit continuation of hedge
accounting even if inthe future the sterling LIBOR may no longer be separately identifiable.

Prospective effectiveness’ relief:
This relief means that when evaluating whether the hedging relationship is expected to be highly effective, the

Group can assume that the benchmark interest rate is not altered as a result of interest rate benchmark reform
and can perform the prospective hedge effectiveness assessment based on the existing interest rate
" benchmark on which the hedges are desrgnated

Retrospective effectiveness’ relief:
This relief means that when evaluating whether the actual result of a hedging relationship is outside the range

of 80-125%, if the hedging relationship is subject to interest rate benchmark reforms, the Group will not
_ discontinue hedge accounting solely because the actual effectiveness falls outside of the 80-125% range.

- Further details regarding interest rate benchmark reform can be found in the market risk section of the Risk

Management Report on page 70.

1.7. Slgmflcant accounting poIrcnes
. With the exception of changes to the Group’s accounting policies resulting from new and revised accountmg
standards adopted in the year, as detailed in Note 1.6, the Group has consistently applied the following
“accounting policies to all periods presented in the financial statements.

' (a) Operating segments
See disclosures at Note 2

" Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal reports and components of the Group which are
regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker to allocate resources to segments and to assess
their performance. For this purpose, the Group Executive Committee has been determined to be the Chief
Operating Decision Maker for the Group. -

The Group determines operating segments according to similar economic characteristics and the nature of its

products and services. No operating segments are aggregated to form the Group’s reportable operating
segments.
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1.7. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Substantially all of the Group’s activities are in the United Kingdom. Consequently, segmental analysis on
geographical lines is not required.

(b) Interest income and expense
See disclosures at Note 3 and Note 4

Financial instruments measured at amortised cost
Interest income and expense are recognised in the statement of profit and loss for all interest bearing financial
instruments measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

The effective interest rate method calculates the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
allocates the interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, or the amortised cost of a financial liability.

In relation to the above, amortised cost is the amount at which the financial instrument is measured on initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest rate method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial
assets, adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost
-of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

With the exception of credit-impaired financial assets, when calculating the effective interest rate for financial
instruments, the Group estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument
but does not consider the loss allowance recognised on financial assets. The calculation includes all fees paid
or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and all other premiums or discounts. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial instrument.

In calculating interest income and expense, the calculated effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset, or to the amortised cost of the financial liability, respectively.

For financial assets that become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition (i.e. a ‘Stage 3’ asset, as
detailed on page 43 of the Risk Management Report), interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, the calculation
of interest income reverts to the gross basis. '

Derivative financial instruments

The Group recognises net interest income/expense on derivative financial instruments forming part of hedging
relationships and economic hedging relationships based on the underlying hedged items. For derivative
financial instruments. hedging assets, the net interest income/expense is recognised in interest income. For
" derivative financial instruments hedging liabilities, the net interest income/expense is recognised in interest
expense.

(c) Fee and commission income
See disclosures at Note 5

Fee and commission income includes amounts from contracts with customers that are not included in the
effective interest rate calculation detailed in Note 1.7(b). These amounts are recognised when performance
obligations attached to the fee or commission have been satisfied. The income streams included in fee and
commission income all have a single performance obligation attached to them. Where income is earned from
the provision of a service, such as an account maintenance fee, the performance obligation is deemed to have
been satisfied when the service is delivered. Where income is earned upon the execution of a significant act,
such as fees for executing a CHAPS payment, the performance obligation is deemed to have been satisfied
when the act is completed.
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1.7. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Administrative expenses
See disclosures at Note 6

Administrative expenses are recognised on an accruals basis. The Group’s significant accounting policies
relating to payroll costs are detailed below. Accounting policies for expenses relating to property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets are set out in Note 1.7(I) and Note 1.7(m), respectively. '

Payroll costs
Salaries and social security costs are recognised over the period in which the employees provide the service
to which the payments relate.

Cash bonus awards are recognised to the extent that the Group has a present obligation to its employees that
can be measured reliably and are recognised over the period that employees are required to provide services.

The Group operates a long-term incentive plan for a set of individuals. Thesé benefits are recognised at the
present value of the obligation at the reporting date, reflecting the Group’s best estimate of the effect of the
associated performance conditions. Costs are recognised over the period until which the Group considers all
vesting conditions to have been reasonably achieved, which takes into account the period that employees are
required to provide services.

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes for eligible employees and does not operate any -
defined benefit pension schemes. Under the defined contribution pension arrangements, the Group pays fixed
contributions into employees’ personal pension plans, with no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The Group’s contributions to such arrangements are recognlsed as an expense
when they fall due.

Employee share-based payments Wthh form part of payroll costs are detalled in Note 1. 7(e)

(e) Employee share-based payments ‘
See d/sclosures at Note 9

- The Group operates equity-settled share-based payment schemes in respect of services received from certain .
employees, as detailed below. The Group does not operate any cash-settled share-based payment schemes.

Equity-settled share-based payment schemes
The grant date fair value of a share-based payment transactlon is recognised as a payroll costin admlnlstratlve

expenses in the statement of profit and loss, with a correspondmg increase in retained earnings in equity, on

a straight-line basis over the period that the employees become unconditionally entitled to the awards (the
vesting period). In the absence of market prlces the grant date fair value is estlmated using an approprlate
valuation technigue.

The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the related service
and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an
expense is based on the number of awards that meet the related service and non- market performance
conditions at the vesting date. : » ‘

For share—based ‘payment awards with market performance conditions or non-vesting conditions, the grant.
date fair value of the award is' measured to reflect such condmons and there is no true- up for differences
between expected and actual outcomes :

" Tax on the amount recognised as an expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Tax benefits

that exceed the tax effected cumulative remuneratlon expenses are consndered to relate to an equity item and
are recognised directly in equity. .
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() Tax
See disclosures at Note 13 and Note 20

Tax compriées current tax and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax ,

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided in full using the liability method on temporary differences between the carrying
- amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes.

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement df the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can
be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no
tonger probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

(g) Loans and advances
See disclosures at Note 14

Both Ioa'ns énd advances to banks and loans and advances to customers are classified as financial assets
measured at amortised cost. See Note 1.7(w) for details.

Loans and advances to customers includes assets acquired in exchange for loans, instalment credit and
finance lease receivables as part of an orderly realisation. The difference between the gross receivable and
the present value of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance income.

Certain loans and advances to customers are used as collateral against bank borrowings and amounts drawn
under the Bank of England’s Term Funding Scheme. Certain loans and advances to banks are also used as
collateral against derivative contracts. In both instances, the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards associated with these assets and as such, the derecognition criteria outlined in Note 1.7(w) are
- not met and the assets continue to be recognised in their entirety in the statement of financial position.

Certain loans and advances to customers are also plédged to securitisation programmes. See Note 1.7(h) for
details. | .

(h) Securitisation transactions and debt securities in issue
See disclosures at Note 15 and Note 28

The Group has securitised certain loans included within loans and advances to.customers, by transferring the
beneficial interest in such loans to a bankruptcy remote special purpose vehicle (SPV). In accordance with the .
criteria set out in Note 1.4, the Group has assessed that it controls the SPV and as such, the SPV is treated
as a subsidiary and is fully consolidated.

The terms of the securitisation are such that the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards associated
with the underlying transferred loans. As such, the criteria for derecognising financial assets, as detailed in
- Note 1.7(w), are not met. Accordingly, the transfer of loans to the SPV are not treated as sales and the loans
continue to be recognised in their entirety in loans and advances to customers in the statement of financial
position. : , .

In the Company statement of financial position, a deemed loan liability is recognised reflecting consideration
received from the SPV upon transfer of the loans. This is eliminated in full on consolidation.
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1.7. Significant accounting policies (continued)

The securitisation involves the simultaneous issue of mortgage backed debt securities by the SPV to investors.
Issued debt securities are classified on initial recognition as either financial liabilities or equity instruments, in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements. The contractual arrangements are such that
the Group has an obligation to deliver the cash flows generated from the underlying securitised loans to the
debt security holder. Accordingly, the debt securities are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost. See Note 1.7(w) for details. Issued debt securities are presented as debt securities in issue in the
consolidated statement of financial position. :

Certain debt securities issued by the SPV are retained by the Company. In the Company statement of financial
position, these debt securities are included in investment securities. These debt securities are eliminated in
full on consolidation. Certain of these internally held debt securities-are used as collateral in repurchase
agreements or similar transactions. See Note 1.7(aa) for details.

(i) Investment securities
See disclosures at Note 16

Investment securities are cIassrfled as financial assets measured at amortised cost See Note 1.7(w) for
detalls :

' ‘Certaln investment securities are used as collateral against bank borrowings or in repurchase agreements.
The Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards associated with these assets and as such,
the derecognition criteria outlined in Note 1.7(w) are not met and the assets continue to be recognised in their
entlrety in the statement of financial posmon :

' (j) Derivative financial instruments
See disclosures at Note 17

Derivatives are mandatorily classified as fair value through profit or loss. See Note 1.7(w) for details.
Derivatives are classified as financial assets where their fair value is positive and financial liabilities where their
fair value is negative. Where there is the legal right and mtentlon to settle net, then the derivative is classn" ed
as a net asset or net liability, as approprlate

To calculate falr values, the Group typrcally uses discounted cash flow models using yield curves that are
based on observable market data. For collateralised positions, the Group uses discount curves based on
overnight indexed swap rates. For non-collateralised positions, the Group uses discount curves based on term
LIBOR for derivatives referencing LIBOR and Sterling Overnight Index Average rate (SONIA) for derivatives
referencing SONIA.

~ For measuring derivatives that might ch.an'ge the classification from being an asset to a Iiability or.vice versa,
- fair values do not take into consideration either the credit valuation adjustment or the debit valuation adjustment
as the Group's portfolio is fully collateralised and it is deemed to be immaterial.

Where derivatives are not designated as part of an accounting hedge relationship, gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value are recognised in net gains/(losses) on financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss in the statement of profit and loss. Where derivatives are designated within an accounting hedge
relationship, the treatment of the changes in fair value are as described in Note 1.7(k).

The Group enters into master netting and. margining agreements with all derivative counterparties: In general,
under master netting agreements the amounts owed by each counterparty that are due on a single day in
respect of all transactions outstanding under the agreement are aggregated into a single net amount payable

- by one party to the other. In certain circumstances, for example when a credit event such as a default occurs,
all outstanding transactions under thé agreement are aggregated into a single net amount payable by -one
party to the other and the agreements termlnated :

4 Under margining agreements where the Group has a net asset position valued at current market values, in

respect of its derivatives with a counterparty, then that counterparty will place collateral, usually cash, with the’
. Group in order to cover the position. Similarly, the. Group will place collateral usually- cash, with the
‘ counterparty where it has a net liability position.

" Since October 2019, the Group has cleared |ts standardised over-the-counter derivatives.
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1.7. Significant accounting policies (continued) '

(k) Hedge accounting
See disclosures at Note 17 -

The Group applies the exemption under IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ to continue to apply the hedge
accounting rules set out in IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’. However, the Group
does provide the additional and more detailed hedge accounting disclosures introduced by IFRS 9's
consequential amendments to IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’.

In the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has early adopted ‘Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’: .
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7. This provides temporary reliefs designed to allow hedge
accounting to continue during the period of uncertainty arising from interest rate benchmark reforms. Further
details are provided in Note 1.6(c) and should be read in conjunction with the beIow accounting policy.

Hedge accounting is permltted when documentatlon eligibility and testing criteria are met As such, at the
inception of the hedge reIatlonshrp, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship (the -
link between the hedging instrument and the hedged item) to which it wishes to apply hedge accounting and
the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Group also documents the method
that will be used to assess the effectiveness of the hedging relationship (currently the doIIar-offset method).

The Group makes an assessment, both at inception and on a monthly basis, as to whether the denvatlves
used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s
- fair value. The hedge is deemed to be hlghly effective where the actual results of the hedge are within a range

of 80-125%.

The Group designates certain derivatives as fair value hedges, as detailed below The Group does not '
designate any derivatives as cash flow hedges or net investment hedges.

"Fair value hedges

The Group applies fair value hedge accounting for portfolio hedges of interest rate risk. The hedged items are
portfolios that are identified as part of the risk management process. These comprise either fixed rate assets
only, or fixed rate liabilities only, in-respect of a benchmark interest rate. Historically the benchmark interest
rate was mamly three-month sterllng LIBOR. From March 2019 this changed to SONIA.

Each portfolio is grouped into repricing time periods based on expected repricing dates, by scheduling cash
flows into the periods in which they are expected to occur. Interest rate swaps are used-as the hedging
instruments to manage this interest rate risk to swap the fixed rate interest flows to floating.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as fair value hedges and changes in the fair value of
the hedged asset or liability attributable to the hedged risk are recognised in net gains/(losses) on financial
instruments at fair value through. profit or loss in the statement of profit and loss. The hedging gain or loss on
‘the hedged items are included in interest income in the statement of profit and loss.

" Ifthe hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively.
The cumulative fair value adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item is amortised to.the statement
of profit and Ioss over the rema|n|ng period to matunty :

() Property, plant and equrpment and deprecratlon
See dis¢losures at Note 18

" Property, plant and equment is dlvrded into four asset categories: Ieasehold property; fixtures, fittings and
equipment; assets on. operating Ieases and right-of-use leasehold property

Leasehold property and fixtures, flttmgs and equipment
- Assets are measured at cost less accumulated depreC|at|on and any accumulated |mpa|rment losses.

Cost includes the orlglnal purchase price of the asset and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to the location and condition necessary for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure is only capitalised when
it improves the expected future economic benefits of the asset. Ongoing repairs and marntenance are
. expensed to administrative expenses in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)
1.7. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of the asset less its estimated reS|duaI value on a straight line
basis over its estimated useful life, as follows:

e Leasehold property: Life of the lease

e  Fixtures and fittings: 10 years

o . Office equipment: 3 - 5 years

Depreciation is recognised in administrative expenses in the statement of profit and loss. The depreciation
method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Assets are reviewed for indicators of impairment at each reporting date. If indicators are present, an impairment
review is performed. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the greater of the value in use and fair value less costs to sell. Where impairment is
required, the amount is recognised in administrative expenses in the statement of profit and loss.

Gains and losses on dispcsals are determined by comparing the net disposal proceeds with the carrying
} amount of the asset and are included in administrative expenses-in the statement of profit and loss.

Assets on operating leases
This asset category holds assets that are leased to customers under operatlng lease agreements whereby the
Group acts as the lessor. The accounting pohcnes relating to such assets are set out in Note 1.7(s).

Right-of-use leasehold property
This is a new asset category created upon adoption of IFRS 16-‘Leases’ on 1 January 2019. This asset -
category holds assets leased by the Group in which the Group acts as the lessee. The accounting policies
relating to such assets are set out in Note 1.6(a.iii).

(m) Intangible assets and amortisation
See disclosures at Note 19

Computer software

Externally acquired computer software is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes the original purchase prlce of the asset and any directly
attributable costs of preparmg the asset for its intended use :

Internally developed computer software is recognised as an asset only when the Group is able to demonstrate
that the expenditure can be reliably measured, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible,
future economic benefits are probable and the Group has the intention and ability to complete development
and subsequently use or sell the asset. If these conditions are not met, expenditure is recognised in
administrative expenses in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Internally developed computer software is measured at capitalised’ cost less accumulated  amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Capitalised costs include all costs directly attributable in prepanng the
asset so that it is capable of operating in its intended manner.

Subsequent expenditure on computer software is capitalised only when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expendlture is recognised in administrative
expenses in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Computer software is amortised on a straight line basis over its estimated useful life of between three and
seven years. Amortisation is recognised in administrative expenses in the statement of profit and loss. The
amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are revnewed at each reportlng date and adjusted if .
appropriate. .

Computer software is reviewed for indicators of impairment at each reporting date. If indicators are present,
an impairment review is performed. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the greater of the value in use and fair value less costs to sell.
Where impairment is required, the amount is recognised in administrative expenses in the statement of profit
and loss. .

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the net disposal proceeds with the cari-ying
~ amount of the asset and are included in administrative expenses in the statement of profit and loss.
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1.7. Significant accounting policies {continued)

Goodwill
Goodwill may arise on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents the excess of the aggregate of the fair
value of consideration transferred and the fair value of any non-controlling interest over the fair value of
identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment
Iosses

Goodwill is not amortised but is tested annually for impairment and additionally whenever there is an indication
that impairment may exist. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to cash generating units
(CGUs). A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. An impairment loss is recognised if the
carrying amount of a CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the greater of the CGUs
value in use and fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on estimated future cash flows less a
residual value, discounted at a risk-adjusted discount rate appropriate to the CGU. Where impairment is
required, the amount is recognised in administrative expenses in the statement of profit and loss and cannot
subsequently be reversed. : '

(n)} Investment in associates
See disclosures at Note 21

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is heither a subsidiary
undertaking nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The resultsAand assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in the cpnsolidated and Company financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Investments are initially measured at cost, which includes
transaction costs, and are presented as investment in associates in the statement of financial position.

. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group and Company includes its share of the post-acquisition profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. Dividends receivable from associates are recognised
asa reductlon in the carrying amount of the investment.

Where the share of losses in-an associate equal or exceed its interest in the associate, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Investments in associates are reviewed for indicators of impairment at each reporting date. If indicators are -
present, an impairment review is performed. Where the carrying amount is not recoverable the mvestment is
written down immediately to the estimated recoverable amount. '

The equity method of accounting continues to be used until the date on which significant influence ceases.

(o) Assets and disposal groups held for sale
See disclosures at Note 23

The Group classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. The criteria for held for
sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset or disposal group is
available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the plan to seli the
asset or disposal group and the sale expected to be completed within’ one year from the date of the
classification. .

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are generally measured at the lower of their-
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell with any adjustments recognised in the statement of profit and

loss. An exception to this is financial assets within the scope of IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’, for example

loans, which continue to be measured in accordance with this standard. Accordingly, financial instruments held

for sale continue to be accounted for in accordance with the accountlng policies set out in Note 1.7(w).

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented as separate line items in the statement of financial
position and are not net off. Prior periods are not restated. '
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)
| 1.7. Significant accounting policies (continued)

- (p) Amounts due to banks
See d/sclosures at Note 25

Amounts due to banks are cIassnf ed as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. See Note 1. 7(w) for
details.

Amounts due to banks may include liabilities recognlsed as part of repurchase agreements. See Note 1.7(aa)
for details.

(q) Customer deposits
See disclosures at Note 26 o

- Customer deposits are classiﬁed as financial Iiab_ilities measured at amortised cost. See Note 1.7(w) for details.

(r) Prowsuons for liabilities and charges

. See disclosures at Note 27

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation arising as a-result of a past event, it is probable
(more likely than not) that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
. can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions for Iewes are recognised when the conditions that
trigger the payment of the levy are met. :

Provisions for |Iab||ItIeS and charges includes fi nancnal guarantee contracts and the loss aIIowance for loan
commitments. See Note 1.7(z) for details.

(s) Leases :
See d/sclosures at Note 29

‘As deta|led in Note 1. 6(a) on1 January 2019, the Group adopted the requirements of IFRS 16 Leases which
" sets out the requirements for both lessor and lessee accountlng and replaces the previous reqwrements set .
outin IAS 17 ‘Leases’. :

Lessor accountmg ‘
Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 i is largely unchanged from IAS 17. As such the accountlng policies applied
in relation to lease agreements in which the Group acts as a lessor, as detailed below, are consistent.in both
reported years.

Group acting as a lessor — finance leases '
Lease agreements in which the Group transfers substantially all the rlsks and rewards of ownership of the
underlying asset to the lessee are classified as finance leases. -

" A finance lease receivable equal to the net mvestment in the lease (representing the future lease payments
less profit and costs allocated to future periods) is recognlsed and is presented within loans' and advances to
'customers in the statement of fmancnal position.

) 'Lease payments are apportioned between _interest income,in'the statement of profit and loss and a reduction
- of the finance lease receivable to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the receivable.

Group actmq asa lessor — operating leases -
Lease agreements in which the Group does not transfer substantlally all the nsks and rewards of ownership
of the underlymg asset to the lessee are classified as operatlng Ieases ' :

. The Ieased asset is mcluded in property, plant and equnpment in the statement of financial position in the
assets on operatlng leases category. The asset is recognised at the lower of its fair value less costs to seII and
the carrylng amount of the lease (net of impa|rment aIIowance) at the date of exchange

. Deprecuatlon is calculated to write off the cost of the asset less its estimated reS|duaI value on a straight line

" basis over the life of the lease. Deprecnahon is charged to depreolation of operatmg leases in the statement of
proflt and Ioss . ,
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1.-7. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Assets are reviewed for indicators of impairment at each reporting date. If indicators are present, an impairment .
review is performed. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the greater of the value in use and fair value less costs to sell. Where impairment is
required, the amount is recognrsed in other operating lease income/(expense) in the statement of profit and
loss.

Operating lease rental income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Where an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required
to-be made by the lessee in compensation is charged to other operating lease income/(expense) in the
statement of profit and loss in the period in which the termination is made.

Where an agreement is classified as an operating lease at inception, but is subsequently reclassified as a
finance lease following a change to the agreement or an extension beyond the prlmary term, then the
agreement |s accounted for as a finance lease.

Lessee accounting
Lessee accounting has changed significantly as a result of IFRS 16 adoption. The accountmg polrmes applred‘
by the Group pre- and post-IFRS 16 adoption are set out in Note 1.6(a.iii). . :

(t) Subordinated debt Ilabilrty
See disclosures at Note 31

The subordinated debt liability is cIassrfled asa flnancral I|ab|I|ty measured at amortised cost. See Note 1 7(w)
for detanls : .

Interest costs recognised on the subordinated debt liability are capltallsed |n accordance with the agreed terms.
and are incorporated into the total debt payable _

(w) Capltal securltles
See disclosures at Note 33

Capital instruments-are classified on initial recognition as either financial liabilities or equity instruments in .
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements. The characteristics associated with
redemption and interest payments of the capital securities mean the Group does not have a present obligation
to deliver cash, another financial asset or a variable number of equity instruments. Accordingly, the capital
securities are classified as equity instruments. The capital securities are measured at the fair value of the - -
proceeds from the issuance less any costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the issuance (net
- of applicable tax).

Distributions to holders of the capital securities are recognised when they become irrevocable and are

deducted from retained earnings in equity. As detailed in Note 1.6(b), in accordance with the.amendments to

 IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes’, income tax relief on dlstrrbutlons to holders of the capital securities are recognlsed in
the statement of profit or loss. oo :

(v) Cash rows
See disc/osqres at Note 34

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and balances at
central banks (less mandatory deposits with central banks which are not available for use in day-to-day

operations and-are non-interest bearing), loans and advances to banks and short-term highly liquid debt

securities with less than three months to maturity from the date of acqmsrtion Loans and advances to banks '
comprlse cash balances and call deposits.
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1.7. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(w) Financial instruments
See disclosures at Note 35

Recognition
Financial instruments are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets : )

There are three principal classification categories for financial assets: amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

To classify financial assets the Group performs two assessments, to evaluate the business model in which

financial assets are managed and their cash flow characteristics:

e The ‘business model assessment: this assessment determines whether the Group's objective is to
generate cash flows from collecting contractual cash flows (hold-to-collect), or by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets (hold-to-collect-and-sell). The assessment is performed
at a portfolio level and is based on expected scenarios. If cash flows are realised in a manner that is
different from the original expectation, the classification of the remaining assets in that portfolio is not

~changed but such information is used when assessing new financial assets going forward.

o The ‘SPPI test’: this assessment determines whether the contractual cash flows of the financial asset are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding (SPPI) (i.e. whether the
contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement). For the purposes of the SPPI
test, principal is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition. Interest is defined as
consideration for the time value of money and credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding
and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a
reasonable profit margin. The SPPI test is performed at an instrument level based on the contractual
-terms of the instrument at initial recognition. Derivative financial instruments and equity instruments will
always ‘fail’ the SPPI test.

Based on the two assessments, financial assets are classified as follows:
" o Amortised cost: a financial asset is classified as amortised cost when it is held in a hold-to-collect business
v model and its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI.
e FVOCI: afinancial asset is classified as FVOC! when it is held in a hold-to-collect-and-sell business model
and its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI.
e FVTPL: financial assets that do not meet the criteria to be classified as amortised cost or FVOCI are
classified as FVTPL.

On initial reéognition, the Group  may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as FVTPL, if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

With the exception of derivatives which are mandatorily classified as FVTPL, the Group's financial assets are
all classified as amortised cost. To determine the applicable business model, amongst other information
assessed, the Group considers sales in prior periods, expected sales in future periods and the reasons for
such sales. Whilst there may be occasional sales of certain financial assets (e.g. investment securities), such
sales are not expected to be more than infrequent and the financial assets are assessed to be in a hold-to-
collect business model. In performing the SPPI test, terms that could change the contractual cash flows so
that they are not SPPI are considered, such as: contingent and leverage features, non-recourse arrangements
and features that could modify the time value of money. No such features have been identified and contractual
cash flows are assessed to be consistent with a basic lending arrangement.

: The Group has not designated any financial assets as FVOCI or FVTPL.
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1.7. Significant accounting policies {(continued)

Equity instruments are normally classified as FVTPL. However, on initial recognition of an equity instrument
that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in the
statement of other comprehensive income. This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. The
Group has no equity instruments for which such an election has been made.

Derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is a financial asset are never separated. Instead, the hybrid
financial instrument as a whole is assessed for classification.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets are reclassified only under the rare circumstances that the
Group changes its business model for managing financial assets. Where this is the case, the Group reclassifies
all affected financial assets in accordance with the new business model. The reclassification is applied

prospectively from the first day of the first reporting period following the change in business model. ‘

Financial assets classified as amortised cost are initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct
transaction costs. Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method (see
Note 1.7(b)). Amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses (see Note 1.7(x)). Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets classified as FVTPL are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently remeasured at
fair value. Net gains and losses, mcludmg any interest or dividend income, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

Financial liabilities
Financial instruments are classified as a financial liability when the substance of the contractual arrangements
result in the Group having a present obligation to deliver cash, another financial asset or a variable number of
equity |nstruments

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as amortised cost or FVTPL. Financial liabilities are
measured at FVTPL when they meet the definition of held for trading, or when they are designated as such to
eliminate or ‘significantly reduce an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. For classification
purposes, derivatives are deemed to be held for trading and are therefore classified as FVTPL. Financial

: I|ab|I|t|es not classified as FVTPL are classmed as amortised cost.

The Group’s financial |labI|ItIeS are all classified as amortised cost, with the exception of derivatives which are
mandatorily classified at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities classified as amortised cost are initially measured at fair value minus incremental direct
transaction costs. Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method (see
Note 1.7(b)). Interest expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities classified as FVTPL are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition
Derecognition is the point at which the Group ceases to recognise a financial asset or financial liability on its
‘statement of financial position. '

- Financial assets ‘

The Group derecognises a financial asset (or a part of a financial asset) when:

e the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset have expired;

e the Group transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards

"-of ownership of the financial asset are transferred; or

.« the Group transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which the Group neither transfers nor retains

. substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the asset. If the Group
retains control of the asset it continues to recognise the transferred asset only to the extent of its
continuing involvement and derecognises the remainder.
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On derecognition of a financial asset the difference between the carrying amount (or the carrying amount
allocated to the portion being derecognised) and the sum of the consideration received (including any new
asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities .
The Group derecognises a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) when its contractual obligations. -
- are extinguished (i.e. discharged, cancelled, or expired).

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount (or the carrying amount
~ allocated to the portion being derecognised) and the sum of the consideration paid (including any new asset
obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Modifications

- Financial assets '

The Group sometimes renegotiates or othervwse mOdIerS the contractual cash flow of a financial asset. When
thls happens, the Group assesses whether or not the new terms are substantially different to the original terms.

The Group does this by consudermg among others, the followmg factors:

o ifthe borrower is in financial’ difficulty, whether the modification merely reduces the contractual cash flows
to amounts the borrower is expected to be able to pay;

whether any substantial new terms are introduced that substantially affects the risk profi ile of the loan;
significant extension of the loan term when the borrower is not in financial diffi culty,

significant change in the interest rate; and

insertion of collateral, other security or credit enhancements that srgnlflcantly affect the credit risk
assomated with the loan.

If the terms and cash flows of the modified asset are deemed to be substantially dlfferent the contractual rights
to cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. This meets the derecognition criteria
outlined above and as such the original financial asset is derecognised and a ‘new’ financial asset is recognised
at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the derecognised financial asset and the new
" financial asset with modified terms is recognised in the statement of proflt and Ioss

If the cash rows of the modified asset are not deemed to be substantlally different, the financial asset is not
derecognised-and the Group recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset based on the revised
cash flows of the financial asset and recognises any associated gain or Ioss in the statement of profit and loss.

The new gross carrylng amount is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the orlglnal effectlve
interest rate. . ,

Financial liabilities ‘

The Group derecognises a ﬁnancral liability when there is deemed to be a substantial ‘modification of the terms.
Where this is the case, the contractual obligations from the original financial liability are deemed to have been
extinguished. This meets the derecognition criteria outlined above and as such the original financial liability is
derecognised and a ‘new’ financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The
difference between the carrying amount of the derecognised financial Ilablhty and the new-financial I|ab|I|ty with
modified terms is recognised in the statement of profit and Ioss

When a financial liability measured at amortised cost is modified without this resulting in derecognition, a gain

or loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The gain or loss is calculated as the difference between
the original contractual cash flows and the modified cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
Any costs and fees incurred are recognised as an adjustment to the carrying amount of the liability and are

amortised over the remaining term of the modified financial Ilablllty by recalculatlng the effective interest rate

" on the instrument.
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1.7. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset, or paid to transfer a liability, in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal, or in its absence,
the most advantageous market to which the Group has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects
its non-performance risk.

Where possible, fair value is determined with reference to quoted prices in an active market or dealer price
- quotations. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Where quoted prices are not available, the Group uses generally accepted valuation techniques to estimate
fair value. The valuation techniques used include discounted cash flow models and Black-Scholes option
pricing. Wherever possible these valuation techniques use independently sourced market parameters, such
as interest rate yield curves, option volatilities and-currency rates. This reduces the need for Management
judgement and estimation, as well as the uncertainty related with the estimated fair value.

On initial recognition, the best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument is normally transaction price
(i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received). If the Group determines that the fair value on initial
recognition differs from the transaction price, the Group accounts for such differences as follows:

« if fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability or based
on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, then the difference is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss on initial recognition (i.e. day 1 profit or loss), A

e inall other cases, the fair value will be adjusted to bring it in line with the transaction price (i.e. day 1 profit
or loss will be deferred by including it in the initial carrying amount of the asset or liability). Subsequently,
the deferred gain or loss will be released to the statement of profit and loss on an appropriate basis over
the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market
data or the transaction is closed out.

. Ifan asset ora hablllty measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, the Group measures assets at
bid price and liabilities at ask pnce , .

- The Group does not adjust fair value estlmates derived from models for any factors such as credit risk, liquidity
risk or model uncertamtles :

The Group uses a fair value hierarchy that categorises financial instruments into three different levels, as
detailed in Note 35. Levels are reviewed at each repomng date and this determlnes whether transfers between
levels are required.

Further details of the fair value calculation of derivative financial instruments are sét out in Note 1.7(j).

Offsetting financial mstruments :
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a-legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. ’ '

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis onIy when permltted under IFRS or for gains and losses
arising from a group of similar transactions such as in the Group s trading activity. ‘
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1. Basns of preparation and sugmflcant accounting pol:cnes (continued)
1.7. Significant accounting policies (contmued)

(x) Impairment of financial assets
See disclosures at Note 11

Measurement of expected credit losses

Impairment of financial assets is calculated using a forward Iooklng expected credit loss (ECL) model. ECLs
are an unbiased probability-weighted estimate of credit losses determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes. They are measured in a manner that reflects the time value of money and uses reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. '

The Group calculates ECLs and records a loss allowance for all financial assets not held at FVTPL, together
with financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments. Assets held at FVTPL and equny instruments are
not subject to impairment. -

Calculation of ECLs is'dependent upon the ‘stage’ the asset is assigned to (Stage 1, 2 or 3) which is based on
changes in credit risk occurring since'initial recognition. Details of the ‘staging’ of assets, calculation of ECLs
and key judgements and estimates associated W|th this, are provided in the creditworthiness risk section of.
the RISK Management Report on page 43. :

- A summary of ECL measurement is as follows: :

e Financial -assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all cash
shortfalls. Cash shortfalls are the difference between the contractual cash flows due to the Group and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive.

e Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the regortlng date: as the difference between the gross

. carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows. .

e Financial guarantee contracts: as the expected payments to reimburse the holder less any amounts ‘that
the Group expects to recover.

e Loan commitments: ‘as the present value of the difference. between the contractual cash flows that are -
due to the Group if the commltment is drawn’ down and the cash flows the Group expects to receive.

In relatlon to the above, credlt -impaired is a financial asset in Stage 3 as defined in the RISK Management
. Reporton page 43. -

The Group can elect as an accounting-policy choice, to use the ‘simplified approach’ for trade recelvables
contract assets and lease receivables. The Group has chosen not to use the S|mpI|t' ed approach

Modifications :
I afinancial asset is modified, an assessment is made to determlne whether the asset should be derecognised,
as detailed in Note 1.7(w). Subsequently ECLs are measured as follows:
» - if the modification does not result in derecognition of the existing asset then the expected cash flows
arising from the modlt” ed financial asset are.included in calculatlng the cash shortfalls from the existing
. asset; or
o if the modification does result in derecognltlon of the existing asset then the expected fair value of the
new asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial asset at the time of its derecognition.
This -amount is included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the existing financial asset that are
discounted from the expected date of derecognition to the reporting date using the original effective
* interest rate of the existing financial asset. The date of renegotiation is considered to be the date of initial
-recognition for impairment calculation purposes, including in determining whether a significant increase
- in credit risk has occurred and whether the new financial asset is deemed to be a purchased or orlglnated
- credit-impaired asset . - :

Write-offs -

Loans and debt securities are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the borrower does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficiént cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. Write-
offs constitute a derecogmtlon event, as detalled in Note 1. 7(w) :
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policiés (continued)
1.7. Significant accounting policies (continued) - |

Financial assets that are written off can still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the
Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Amounts subsequently recovered on assets previously written off are recognised in impairment losses on
financial assets in the statement of profit and'loss.

Presentation of loss allowances in the statement of financial position
Loss allowances are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:
« financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset;
~ financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments: generally, as a provision; and
where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the Group cannot
identify the loss allowance on the undrawn loan commitment component separately from those on the
drawn component the Group presents a combined loss allowance for both components. The combined
amount is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the drawn component. Any excess
~of the loss allowance over the gross amount of the drawn component is presented as a provision.

(y) Contingent liabilities
See disclosures at Note 40

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence, or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. Alternatively, they are present obligations that have arisen from past events where the outflow
of resources is uncertain or cannot be reliably measured. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the
financial statements but are disclosed, unless the probability of settlement is remote.

(z) Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments
See disclosures at Note 41

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the Group to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when it is due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. They are included in provisions for liabilities and charges in the statement
of financial position.

Initially financial guarantees are measured at their fair value, being the premium received. Subsequently,
financial guarantees are measured at the higher of the amount initially recognised less the cumulative amount
of income recognised in the statement of profit and loss, and the amount of loss allowance determined in -
accordance with the policies set out in Note 1.7(x). Loss. aIIowances are included within provisions for liabilities
and charges in the statement of financial position..

Loan commltments _

Loan commitments are firm commitments to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions. The
Group includes certain uncommitted facilities within its reported loan commitments where the terms are such
that the Group has an obligation to the customer should the customer get into financial distress. The Group
has not provided any commitment to provide loans at below-market interest rate, or that can be settled net in-
cash or by delivering or issuing another ﬁnancial instrument. '

The Group recognises loss allowances in accordance with the policies set out in Note 1.7(x). Loss allowances
are included within provrsrons for liabilities and charges in the statement of financial position.

(aa) Repurchase agreements reverse repurchase agreements and security swaps

For liquidity purposes, securities may be sold subject to a commitment to repurchase them at a predetermined

price (a repurchase agreement). In accordance with Note 1.7(w), the assets are not derecognised as the risks .

and rewards of ownership remain with the Group. A liability is recognised in respect of the consideration

received in amounts due to banks in the statement of financial position, reflecting the Group'’s obligation to
- repurchase the assets for a fixed price at a future date. The difference between the sale and repurchase price
- is treated as interest and recognised in net interest income over the life of the agreement.
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)
1.7. Signifieant accounting policies (continued)

On occasion, certain securities may be swapped via linked repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements

with the same counterparty. In such circumstances, no cash consideration is exchanged. The transferred .
assets are not derecognised and there is no associated liability as the non-cash collateral received is not

recognised on the statement of financial position (i.e. the transaction is off-balance sheet).

(bb) Other reserves

Merger reserve '

The merger reserve represents the fair value of the consideration given in excess of the nomrnal value of the
ordinary shares issued in acqursmons made by the issue of shares.

Capital redemption reserve ' ‘

The capital redemption reserve is a statutory, non-distributable reserve into which amounts are transferred
following the redemption or purchase of a company’s own shares. The provisions relating to the capital
redemption reserve are set out in section 733 of the Companies Act 2006.

1.8. New and revised standards and interpretations not yet adopted _ ‘
A number of new and revised standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board have not yet
come into effect. None of these are expected to have a material impact on the Group's financial statements. -

1.9. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requrres Management to make judgements,
" estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported results and
financial position. Due to the inherent uncertainty in making estimates; actual results reported in the future may
differ from these estimates. . :

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognrsed in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected

The areas involving the most complex and subjective judgements and areas where assumptions and estimates
are considered to have the most significant effect on the financial statements are set out below:

(a) Effective interest rate
See accounting policies at Note 1.7(b) and disclosures at Note 3

The main source of revenue for the Group is interest income on loans and advances to customers which is
recorded using the effective interest rate method. Management must estimate the expected life of each loan
and the profile of loan payments over this period. ThIS calculation involves a number of judgements and
represents a source of estimation uncertamty

- Key assumptlons
The key assumption applled by Management in the effectlve interest rate calculation is the behavnoural life of
the loans. Management reviews the expected lives on a segmental basis, whereby products of a similar nature
are grouped into cohorts that exhibit homogenous behavioural attributes. The expected life behaviours are
_subject to changes in internal and external factors that may result in adjustments to the carrying amount of the
loans which must be recognised in the statement of proflt and loss.

The effective interest rate behawoural models are based on market trends and experience. The actual’
behaviour of the loan portfolios is compared to the modelled behaviour on a quarterly basis. Modelled

behaviours are adjusted if the modelled behaviour materially deviates from actual behaviour, with adjustments ,
recognised in net interest income in the statement of profit and loss. :

Sensitivity analysis
Sensitivity analysis was performed to assess the impact ofa 10% acceleration in the redemptlon curves used
which could potentially shorten the expected life.

A 10% acceleration in the redemption curves would result in a net expense to the statement of profit and loss

-+ of £0.6 million. This is attributable to the Property Finance and Consumer Lending divisions.
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)
1.9. Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

| Property Finance would see an increase in profit of £0.2 million, which is largely due to income received from
early settlement fees, offset against broker fee amortisation. ,

Consumer Lending would see a decrease in profit of £0.8 million, mainly attributable to the acceleratlon of the
amortisation of broker commissions. : .

(b) Impairment testing of goodwitl :
See accounting policies at Note 1.7(m) and disclosures at Note 19

Goodwill is impaired if the carrying amount of a CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. Determining the

recoverable amount of the CGU involves the calculation of its value in use, which is derived by discounting the

forecast cash flows (post-tax profits) to be generated from its continuing use. This calculation is subject to
judgement and estimation uncertainty, specifically:

e  Forecast cash flows: this is based on future cash flows included in the Board approved budget and
assumptions regarding the long-term .pattern of sustainable cash flows thereafter. -This reflects
Management’s view of future business prospects and is subject to significant estimation uncertainty.

e Discount rates: the rates used to discount forecast cash flows can have a significant effect on their

" valuations. Deriving the CGU specific discount rate mcorporates a number of mputs all of which are
subject to estimation uncertamty

Key assumptions
The key assumptions used in the calculation of value in use are as foIIows

Cash flow period: five years of cash flows (post-tax profits) (2018: ﬁve years) are included in the discounted
cash flow model based on the Board approved budget.

Terminal value growth rate: a terminal value growth rate is applied into perpetuity to extrapolate cash flows
-beyond the cash flow period. The terminal value growth rate of 2.0% (2018: 2.0%) is estimated by Management
taking into account rates disclosed by comparable institutions.

Discbunt rate: the post-tax discount rate is an estimate of the return that investors would require if they were
to choose an investment that would generate cash flows of amount, timing and risk profile equivalent to those
that the entity expects to derive from the asset. Management calculates discount rates using the price-to-book
ratio method which incorporates target return on equity, growth rate and price-to-book ratio. The discount rate
for each CGU is adjusted to reflect the risks inherent to the individual CGU.

Discount rates used are as follows:

2019 ) . 2018

Post-tax . Pre-tax' Post-tax Pre-tax’

Property Finance S 15.5% 18.1% . 12.7% 15.1%
Business Finance : 16.0% 18.9% 0 13.2% 15.9%

Sensitivity analysus C

Sensitivity analysis was performed to assess the impact of reasonable changes in cash ﬂows the terminal
- value growth rate and the discount rate on the outcome of impairment testing. :

Cash flows: a decrease in cash flows of 10 0% would not result in any impairment to goodwrll

Terminal value growth rate: a decrease in the terminal value growth rate to 0% would not result |n any
impairment to goodwill. - . A

Discount rate: an increase of 2.0% to the CGU’s discount rate would not result in any impairrnent to goodwiill.

o Management applies post-tax dlscount rates to post-tax cash flows when testing the CGU for 1mpa|rment The pre-tax discount rate is
disclosed in accordance with IAS 36 Impalrment of Assets’. :
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)
1.9. Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

(c) Customer remedlatlon and conduct issues
See accounting policies at Note 1. 7(r) and disclosures at Note 27

Provisions have been recognised in respect of potential instances of misrepresentation or breaches of contract
by suppliers where the suppliers have become insolvent and therefore the Group has limited recourse to those
suppliers. Such provisions represent Management’s best estimate of the Group’s likely costs. In determining
the amount of the provisions, it will often be necessary to form a view on matters which are inherently uncertain,
such as the number of future complaints, the extent to which they will be upheld and the average cost of
redress. This therefore represents a key source of estimation uncertalnty :

Key assumptions ‘
The key factors considered in denvmg the provision are the estimated number of upheld complalnts and the
- estimated redress costs.

_ Key con5|derat|ons in deriving the estimated number of upheld complalnts include:
° complalnt volumes, taking into account both the status of current claims and Management’s estlmate of ‘
potential future claims based on existing complaint data;
e the origin of the claim. For example, if the claim relates to a solvent or insolvent suppller or.if the route of
‘the claim is via a claims management company;
the statutory limitation period; and
Management s estlmate of claim uphold rates based on existing complalnt data.

, Estlmated redress costs are the expected average customer compensation, should claims be upheld, based
.on agreed redress strategiés, inclusive of loan balance adjustments and cash payments.

Sensmvuty analySIS
Sensitivity analysis was performed to assess the |mpact of reasonable changes to certain key assumptlons
- used:in the provision calculatlon as follows

" Customer initiated complamt volume: the impact of a +/-5 percentage pomt change in the number of complamts :

e - would result in a £3.0 million increase or a £2.7 million decrease in the provision, respectlvely

Average ughold rate Qer complaint: the lmpact of a +/-5 percentage point change in the average uphold rate'
per complamt would result in a £0. 3 mllllon increase or decrease in the provision, respectively.

" Average redress per valid complaint; the impact of a £500 increase or decrease in the average redress per
' complalnt would result ina £1.7 million mcrease or decrease in the provuswn respecttvely

‘ (d) lmpawment losses on financial assets
See accounting po/rcres at Note 1.7(x) and d/sclosures at Note 11

The calculation and measurement of expected credit losses requires srgmﬂcant judgement and represents a

key source of estimation uncertainty. Details of the critical judgements and accounting estimates are set out
in the creditworthiness risk section of the Risk Management Report on page 50 and 53, respectively.
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2. Operating segments
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(a)

The Group has four reportable operating segments. These are the Group’s three lending divisions (Property
Finance, Business Finance and Consumer Lending) and a central segment (‘Savings and Central) which
represents the Savings business, central functions and shared central costs.

Further details of the four segments are provided in the Strategic Report on page 9.

The following tables provide information regarding the results and the assets and liabilities of each reportable
segment, and their reconciliation to the Group total. All revenue for each operating segment is earned from
external customers. Current taxes, deferred taxes and certain assets and liabilities are not allocated to
segments as they are managed on a Group basis.

Savings
Property Business Consumer and :
: Finance Finance Lending Central Total
Year ended 31 December 2019 ' £m £m £m . £m £m
Interest income calculated using the ‘ : ‘
effective interest rate method 217.3 . 109.9 69.9 8.9 406.0
Other interest and similar income ‘ - - - (0.3) (0.3)
Interest expense and similar charges . _(68.2) . (20.7) (10.8) (13.4) (113.1)
Net interest income/(expense) 149.1 89.2 59.1 {4.8) 292.6
Operating lease rental income ~ - 10.3 - - 103
Depreciation of operating leases - (8.6) - - (8.6)
Other operating lease income ' - 0.2 . - - 0.2
Net income from operating leases - 1.9 - - 1.9
Fee ahd commission income - _ 0.4 8.9 0.4 - 9.7
Fee and commission expense : © - (3.6) (0.2) (4.2) (0.7) (8.7)
Net fee and commission |  (32) 8.7 (3.8) (0.7) 1.0
mcomel(expense)
Net gains on financial instruments
mandatorily at fair value through profit or , - - - 23 2.3
loss
Other operating expense - - - ' - (2.6) (2.6)
Net operating income/(expense) " 145.9 99.8 55.3 (5.8) 295.2
Administrative expenses (20.7) (24.0) (17.5) (76.2) (138.4)
Impairment losses on financial assets (1.2 (8.4) (20.3) - (29.9)
_Provisions for liabilities and charges 0.2 - (5.0) 0.3 (4.5)
Total operating expenses _ - (21.7) (32.4) (42.8) (75.9) (172.8)
. _Share of results of associate - (0.1) - - - (0.1)
Gain on disposal of subsidiary ‘ ' - 0.3 - - 0.3
Profit/(loss) before tax 1241 67.7 12.5 (81.7) 122.6
Assets 4 R  4,433.7 | 1,664.8 683.2 1,4355 8,217.2
Liabilities - - - (7,459.0) (7,459.0)
Net assets/(liabilities) , 4,433.7 1,664.8 683.2 (6,023.5) 758.2
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_ Savings

Property  Business -Consumer and

" Finance Finance Lending Central Total
Year ended 31 December 2018 £m £m- £m £m £m
Interest income calculated using the
effective interest rate method 194.9 871 69.1 4'9 356.0
Other interest and similar income - - - 0.8 0.8
Interest expense and similar charges (50.5) (15.8) (10.0) (10.9) (87.2)
Net interest income/(expense) 144 .4 71.3 59.1 (5.2) 269.6
Operating lease rental income - 10.0 - - 10.0
Depreciation of operating leases - (7.6) - - : (7.6)
Other operating lease income/(expense) - (0.6) - - "~ (0.6)
Net income from operating leases - 1.8 - - 1.8
Fee and commission income 0.3 9.6 0.8 - 10.7
Fee and commission expense (3.0) (0.4) (4.6) (1.7) (9.7)
Net fee and commission mcome/(expense) ©(2.7) 9.2 (3.8) (1.7) 1.0 -
Net losses on financial instruments '

. mandatorily at fair value through proflt or - - - (0.4) (0.4)
loss' ' '
Other operating income’ - - - 0.9 0.9
Net operating income/(expense)- 141.7 82.3 55.3 (6.4) 272.9
Administrative expenses'’ (16.6) (23.1) (20.0) (69.1)  (128.8)
Impairment losses on financial assets? )
- Impairment losses on financial assets .

{excluding insurance recovery) (5.6) (2.7) (28.5) ) (36.2)

- Insurance recovery - 13.0 C - - 13.0

o _ (5.6) 10.9 (28.5) = (23.2)
Provisions for liabilities and charges (0.2) (0.5) (9.3) (0.1) (10.1)
Total operating expenses (22.4) (12.7) (57.8) (69.2) (162.1)
“Share of results of associate .(0.5) - - - (0.5)
Profit/(loss) before tax 118.8 69.6 (2.5) (75.6) 110.3
Assets 3,705.6 1,433.4 741.0 939.1 6,819.1
Liabilities , - ' - - (6,145.7) (6,145.7)
Net assets/(liabilities) 3,705.6 1,433.4 741.0 (5,206.6) 673.4

-

Cofnparatives for the year ended 31 December 2018 have been restated to reclass £0.9 million of foreign exchange losses on derivative

financial instruments from administrative expenses to net gains/(losses) on financial instruments mandatorily at fair value through profit
* or loss, to ensure compliance with the accounting policy set out in Note 1.3. Other foreign exchange gains of £0.9 million have been
reclassified from administrative expenses to other operating expense/(income). The net impact to administrative expenses is £nil. Net

operating income and total operating expenses are unchanged-as a result of this reclass.

2 During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group received £13.0 million from the Group'’s insurance claim in respect of a controls
breach identified in the Business Finance division in 2016. To allow for meaningful comparison between the reported years, subtotals
have been provnded to present the insurance recovery separately. .
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3. Interest and similar income
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(b)

2019 2018
£m £m
interest income caiculated using the effective interest rate method
On cash and balances at central banks . 6.8 4.7
On loans and advances to customers ' 396.9 351.1
On investment securities ' 2.3 0.2
Total interest income calculated using the effective interest rate method 406.0 356.0
Other interest and similar income
On derivative financial instruments ' (0.3) 0.8
Total other interest and similar income (0.3) 0.8
Total interest and similar income 405.7 356.8

- Interest income recognised during the year ended 31 December 2019 on credit-impaired (Stage 3) loans is

£8.2 million (2018: £7.6 million).

The Group did not capitalise any interest income during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: £nil).

Total interest and similar income includes £406.0 million (2018: £356.0 million) of interest income on financial

assets measured at amortised cost.

4. Interest expense and similar charges
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(b)

2019 2018

£m £m

On amounts due to banks ' 9.4 6.2
On customer deposits , 944 = 743

On derivative financial instruments : (0.7) (0.2)

On debt securities in issue K 34 -

On lease liabilities 0.2 -

On subordinated debt liability ‘ 6.7 6.4

Other interest expense - 0.5

Total interest expense and similar charges 113.1 87.2

The amounts reported above include £113.8 million (20183 £87.4 million) of interest expense on financial

liabilities measured at amortised cost.

5. Fee and commission income
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(c)

2019 2018
£m £m

Fee income on loans and advances to customers : 64 83
Credit facility related fees ' : ' 3.3 2.4
10.7

- Total fee and commission income : 9.7
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2019 2018
£m £m
Payroll costs (see Note 8) 71.6 64.9
Depreciation’ 34 2.0
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 0.1
Amortisation of intangible assets - 7.8 6.1
Impairment of goodwiill - 0.5
Loss on disposal of intangible assets - 1.9
Other administrative expenses 55.6 53.3
Total administrative expenses 138.4 128.8
Other administrative expenses include fees paid to the Group’s auditor (see Note 7).
7. Auditor’s remuneration
Fees payable to the Group’s auditor, KPMG LLP, are as follows:
2019 2018
£000 £000
Audit of these annual accounts _ , 635 515
Audit of the annual accounts of the subsidiaries of the Company 5. 15
Adjustments in respect of prior year and IFRS 9 45 - 45
Other tax advisory services 23 19
Audit related assurance services 75 Co-
All other assurance services 341 59
All other services 7 90 -
Total auditor’s remuneration 1,141 -

743

,' 8. Employees
~ See accounting policies in Note 1.7(d)

The average number of persons employed by the Group on a full-time equvvalent basus (mcludmg Executive

Directors) is as follows:

. 2019 2018 |
Property Finance - 118~ 99
Business Finance 201 170
Consumer Lending - 56 51
Central 439 411
814 S 731

Average employees (on a full-time equivalent basis)

1 Depreciation included within administrative expenses includes depreciation of all asset categories except for assets on opératmg leases.
- Depreciation of assets on operating leases is presented as a separate line item in the statement of profit and loss. The year ended 31
December 2019 includes depreciation of right-of-use assets recognised in accordance with IFRS 16 ‘Leases’. As such results are not

directly comparable See Note 1.6(a) for details.
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8. Employees (continued)

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons are shown in the table below. These payroll costs are a
component of administrative expenses (see Note 6).

2019 2018

£m £m

Wages and salaries - 62.4 56.6
Social security costs 5.7 5.2
Pension costs : 3.5 3.1

- Total payroll costs 71.6 64.9

Wages and salaries include share-based payment charges (see Note 9).

Pension costs represent contributions to defined contribution pension schemes. The Group does not operate
any defined benefit pensmn schemes.

Further details of Directors’ remuneration is provided in Note 10.

9. Employee share-based payment transactions
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(e)

Employee share-based payment charges are a component of payroll costs (Note 8) and are as follows:

2019 2018

£m £fm-

Management Incentive Plan . 0.8 -
Total share-based payments : 0.8 -

There were no share-based awards at any point during 2018. Movements in the number of share based
awards during the year ended 31 December 2019 are as follows: ' :

2019

Management
Incentive Plan Total
. (Number of {(Number of
shares) shares)
As at 1 January ' : - .
Granted ) a 5,275 5,275

As at 31 December : A ' 5,275 5,275

Details of the share-based scheme in operation are as follows:

Management Incentive Plan )
In April 2019, the Management Incentive Plan was mtroduced for a set of individuals. The scheme is an equity-
settled share-based payment scheme.

Ind}viduals included in the Management Incentive Plan were entitled to acquire non-voting ‘B’ Class ordinary
shares in Marlin Bidco Limited, subject to performance conditions. Marlin Bidco is the ultimate parent company
of Shawbrook Group plc (the Company’s parent company). All shares were issued at a price of £135.00 per
share. .

The performance conditions for the Management Incentive Plan relate to the equity valuation of Shawbrook

“Group plc in the event of a prescribed exit event. The outcome of the performance conditions determines the
vesting outcome of the awards.
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9. Employee share-based payment transactions (continued)

The fair value of the shares issued was £580.00.. The fair value of the shares was calculated using a Monte
" Carlo valuation model. A summary of the key data and assumptions used in measuring the fair value at grant
date is as follows:

| Assumptions ‘ 1
Expected volatility , 28%
Dividend yield o : 0%
Risk-free rate of return (based on government bonds) : 0.90%
Expected life at grant date ' 3.7 years

Expected volatil'ity is calculated based on the historieal volatility of banks closely aligned to the Group.

10. Directors’ remuneration

2019 2018
. £000 £000
Directors' emoluments’ - : 1,897.6 3,499.6

Total Directors' remuneration : ' ‘1, 897 6 3,499.6

In the year ended 31 December 2019 there are no termination payments mcluded in Directors! emoluments
(2018 £1.2 million relatlng to termination payments.)

1. Impalrment losses on financial assets
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(x)

Impairment losses on financial assets relate to the Group’s loans and advances to customers, as set out in the
table below. Impairment losses on the Group’s cash and balances. at central banks, loans and advances to
banks and investment securities are immaterial in both reported years, totalling less than £0.1 million.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group received £13.0 million from the Group's insurance claim
in respect of a controls breach identified in the Business Finance division in 2016. To allow for meaningful
comparison-between the reported years, the insurance recovery has been separately presented in both the
statement of profit and loss and the table below.

© 2019 - 2018

. £m £m |
Impairment losses on financial assets (excluding insurance recovery) . ,
ECL charge for the year =~ ' A - 2.6 15.1
Loan balances written-off in the year I .2 256
Amounts recovered in the year in respect of loan balances prewously wntten- - (67) (4.5)
off (excluding insurance recovery) ) )
Total impairment losses on financial assets (excluding insurance B 29.9 ' 36.2
recovery) . . .
Insurance recovery o : - (13.0)
Total-impairment losses on financial assets ‘ ‘ 299 = 232

Fudher analysis of the ECL charge for the year is set out in the credltworthlness rlsk section of the Risk
Management Report on page 43.

1 lan Cowie assumed the role as Interim Chief Executive Officer in July 2018. He was not however formally appointed to the Board of the
Company until 2019. As such, his remuneration is not included in the figures for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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12. Gain on disposal of subsidiary
In October 2019, the sale of Shawbrook International Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, was

completed. The subsidiary was not a separate major business line and therefore is not disclosed as a
discontinued operation. A gain on disposal of £0.3 million is recognised in.the statement of profit and loss.

13. Tax
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(f)

The tax charge recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as follows:

2019 2018
£m £m
Current tax
Current year A : ' ' , 28.1 23.0
Adjustment in respect of prior years . : (2.4) (0.5)
Total current tax , ' . 25.7 ' 22.5
Deferred tax , e ) ‘
Origination and reversal of temporary differences ' 0.8 3.5
- Adjustment in respect of prior years ' ' . 2.3 (0.2)
Total deferred tax _ e 31. 3.3
Total tax charge o 28.8 25.8
A reconciliation of prdfit before tax to the total tax charge is as follows:
2019 2018?
£m £m
Profit before tax - ' 4 ‘ s - 1226 110.3
Implied tax charge thereon at 19.00% (2018: 1'9.00%) 23.3 20.9
Adjustmehfs :
Banking surcharge : s ] 7.7 6.7
Tax relief on coupon paid on capital securities o _(2.5). "~ (2.5)
Adjustment in respect of prior years. = ' ___(01) | (0.7)
Disallowable expenses and other permanent dlfferences . : 0.4 06 .
Effect of tax rate changes . . I : - 0.8
Total tax charge | — 288 _ 2538

Reduction in the UK corporation tax rate from 19% to 17% (effective 1 April 2020) was substantively enacted
on 16 March 2016. As detailed in Note 43, in March 2020, it was announced in Budget 2020 that the main rate
of corporation tax will remain at 19% rather than reducing it to 17% from 1 April 2020.

The deferred tax asset in both reported years has been calculated based on an aggregation rate of 25% This
is based on a rate of 17% substantively enacted at the reporting date and the additional 8% of tax suffered in
relation to the banking surcharge that will unwmd over the remaining Ilfe of the underlylng assets with whrch
they are associated.. :

-1 Comparatlves for the year ended 31 December 2018 have been restated to reflect amendments to IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes'. See Note
1.6(b) for details. . .
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14. Loans and advances to customers
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(g)

Group and Company
Gross
carrying Loss Carrying
. amount allowance amount
As at 31 December 2019 £m £m £m
Loan receivables < 6,226.6 (47.4) 6,179.2
Finance lease receivables v 81.0 (6.4) 74.6
Instalment credit receivables , 3824 (7.3) 375.1
' 6,690.0 (61.1) 6,628.9
Fair value adjustments for hedged risk T 8.8
Total loans and advances to customers 6,637.7
Group Company
Gross : Gross i
carrying Loss Carrying carrying Loss Carrying |-
amount  allowance amount amount allowance . amount
As at 31 December 2018 £m £m £m £m - £m £m
Loan receivables 54104 = (54.1) 5,356.3 5,398.3 (54.0) 5,344.3
Finance lease receivables 95.0 (7.2) 87.8 94.7 (7.2) 87.5
Instalment credit receivables 409.4 (6.5) 402.9 381.1 (6.1) 375.0
: - 5914.8 (67.8) 5,847.0 '5,874.1 (67.3) 5,806.8
Fair value adjustments for

hedged risk J o _ (11) (1 1)

Total loans and advances to 5845.9 5.805.7

customers

Further analysis of the Group’s loans and advances to customers and the associated loss allowance, including
the movement in the loss allowance in the year, can be found in the creditworthiness risk section of the Risk
Management Report on page 44.

Total loans and advances to customers include: '

e  £974.2 million (2018: £1,402.7 million) positioned with the Bank of England for use as collateral against
amounts drawn under its Term Funding Scheme (see Note 25)."

e £163.6 million (2018: £200.7 million) pledged as collateral against secured bank borrowings (see Note
25).

o £286.2 million (2018 £nll) pledged to securitisation programmes (see Note 15).-
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14. Loans and advances to customers (continued)

The finance lease receivables and instalment credit receivables relate to agreements issued to customers for
. a variety of assets including, but not limited to, plant and machinery. The underlying assets provide security
against the gross receivables.

The following table provides further analysis of finance lease receivables:

Group and :

" Company Group Company
2019 2018 2018
£m £m £m

Gross amounts receivable: L
within one year 38.9 . 46.0 45.9
in the second to fifth year ' 42.8 50.0 49.8
after five years , 8.1 10.0 9.9
Unearned finance income : (8.8) (11.0) . (10.9)
Gross carrying amount 81.0 95.0 - 94.7
Loss allowance B (6.4) (7.2) (7.2)
Total finance lease receivables | 74.6 87.8 87.5

Amounts falling due:

within one year : 322 38.0 379
in the second to fifth year - ’ -35.5 41.3 412
after five years : : 6.9 8.5 8.4
Total finance lease receivables 74.6 87.8 87.5

The following table provides further analysis of instalment credit receivables:

Group and
Company Group Company
2019 2018 2018
£m £m £m
Gross amounts receivable:
within one year : : 184.8 173.7 165.2
in the second to fifth year 214.2 249.2 - 2313
_ afterfveyears _ S 1441 265 = 212
Unearned finance income ' (30.7) (40.0) (36.6)
Gross carrying amount : 3824 409.4 381.1
Loss allowance (7.3) (6.5) . (6.1)
Total instalment credit receivables 375.1 402.9 375.0
Amounts falling due: : S o _
within one year , 165.9 151.9 144.9
in the second to fifth year ' 196.0 © 2261 - 210.2
after five years - ' 13.2 24.9 19.9
Total instalment credit receivables 375.1 402.9 375.0

Included within instalment credit receivables are block discounting facilities of £173.5 million (2018: £157.2
million). '
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14. Loans and advances to customers (continued)

The cost of equipment acquired during the year for the purpose of letting to customers under finance lease
and instalment credit agreements is as follows:

Group Company Group  Company

2019 2019 2018 2018

£m . £m £m £m

Finance leases -29.8 29.8 58.9 58.9
Instalment credit 102.7 100.4 - 140.2 135.5
Total cost of equipment acquired durinthhe year 1325 130.2 199.1 194 .4

Modifications
The Group sometimes modifies the terms of loans provrded to customers due to commercial renegotlatlons A
or for dlstressed loans, with a view to maximising recovery.

Details of forborne loans are set out in the creditworthiness risk section of the Risk Management Report on
page 59. :

A Wnte-offs st|ll under enforcement activity

Loans that are written off can still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’s
procedures for recovery of amounts due. The contractual amount outstanding on loans and advances to
customers that were written off during the reporting period, and are still subject to enforcement activity, is £19.9
million (2018: £13.5 million). . :

- 15. ‘Securitisation
. See accounting policies in Note 1.7(h)

In June 2019, the Group securitised certain variable and fixed rate mortgage loans included within loans and
advances to customers. The securitised loans, originated by the Company were transferred to a bankruptcy
.remote SPV, Shawbrook Mortgage Fundlng 2019-1 plc. The SPV is treated asa subsrdlary of the Group and -
~is fully consolldated

The securitisation provides Iong-term fundlng to the Group through the simultaneous issue of mortgage backed
debt securities by the SPV to external investors (see Note 28).

The Group contir'lues to service the transferred loans in return for an administration tee and is entitled to any
- residual income from the SPV after the debt obligations and senlor expenses of the securitisation programme
have been met. :

The transfer of loans are not treated as sales and the loans continue to be recognised in their entirety in loans
‘and advances to customers in the statement of financial position. As such, no galns or losses have been
recognised on pledgmg the loans to the secuntlsatron programme.

In the Company statement of financial position, a deemed loan liability is reoogmsed reflecting consideration
received from the SPV upon transfer of the loans. As at 31 December 2019, the deemed loan liability is £286.2
million. .

The following table summarises the carrying amount of transferred loans and the associated debt securities in
issue as at 31 December 2019:

2019

: 4 , £m
Loans securitised (Group and Company) . K ' __286.2

Debt securities in issue (Group) : ‘ 241.0

‘To allow for the original hedge accounting relationships relating to the securitised loans to be maintained,
back-to-back balance guaranteed swaps were entered into with an external counterparty. The notional amount

". of these swaps will amortise in their entirety based upon the realised amortisation of the reference pool of

- performing fixed rate mortgage loans. Details of the nominal-and carrying amounts of these swaps are
presented in Note 17.
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16. Investment securities
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(i)

Movements in investment securities during the year are as follows:

Group and
Group Company Company
2019 2019 2018
£m £m £m
As at 1 January o ' 139.9 139.9 -
Additions : : 60.0 105.9 139.7
Accrued interest . 01 0.1 0.2
As at 31 December ' : 200.0 245.9 139.9
Investment securities comprise the following:

Group and
Group Company Company
2019 2019 2018
£m £m £m

Coveredbonds =~ =~ . o ) o 1200.0 200.0 - 139.9
Debt securities ‘ ' ' " - 459 -
Total investment securities 200.0 2459 139.9

In the year ended 31 December 2019, investment securities in the Company, include £45.9 million of sterling
" mortgage backed floating rate notes issued by Shawbrook Mortgage Funding 2019-1 plc as part of the Group’s

“securitisation programme which were retained by the Company. These notes are eliminated in full on
'consolldatlon See Note 28 for further details. :

. Investment securltles in both the Group and the Company include £100.0 million of covered bonds (2018: £nil) .
positioned with the Bank of England for use as collateral against amounts drawn under its Term Funding
- Scheme (see Note 25).

The loss allewance for investment securities is immaterial in both reported years, totalling less than £0.1
million. ‘

17. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(j) and Note 1.7(k)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are used for nsk management purposes in order minimise or eliminate the
impact of movements in interest rates and foreign exchange rates. Derivatives are not used for trading or
speculative purposes. The International Swaps and Derivatives Association Master Agreement are used to
document these transactions in conjunction.with a Credit Support Annex.

| The followmg tables analyse derivative financial instruments per the statement of financial position by type of
instrument: :

Assets Liabilities

Group Company - Group and Company

Nominal Carrying Nominal Carrying Nominal Carrying

As at 31 December amount amount amount amount amount amount

2019 £m £m £m £m £m £m

. Interest rate swaps’ 546.2 2.3 546.2 2.3 915.0 9.6

" . Interest rate options .- ’ - - ' - - 1,150.0 4.0

Cross-currency swaps 40.0 0.8 40.0 0.8 _ - -
Balance guaranteed : ' i

oS gu o282 13 - - 236.2 1.3

" Total . : 8224 4.4 586.2 3.1 2,301.2 14.9
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17. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

Assets Liabilities

Group and Company Group and Company

Nominal Carrying Nominal Carrying

amount amount amount amount

As at 31 December 2018 £m £m £m £m
Interest rate swaps : 431.5 1.4 559.2 1.2
Interest rate options _ - o 1,150.0 4.3
Cross-currency swaps 28.7 0.2 1.6 - 0.2

Total 460.2 1.6 1,720.8 5.7

Interest rate swaps are used to manage interest rate risk associated with loans and advances to customers -
and customer deposits. Cross currency swaps are used to manage forelgn exchange risk associated with
loans and advances to customers and banks.

Interest rate options are used specifically to manage interest rate risk associated with certain loans within the
property loan portfolio. The property loan portfolio includes loans where interest rate terms are referenced to
the three-month LIBOR index, but with a minimum reference rate of 0.75%. Interest rate options with a nominal
amount of £1,150.0 million were sold into the wholesale market in order to hedge the interest rate position -
against possible increases in the reference rate. Of these interest rate options, £575.0 million are forward
starting, with an effective date beyond 31 December 2019.

Balance guaranteed swaps are entered _into in relation to the securitisation, as detailed in Note 15.

From March 2019, the Group began transacting in swaps linked to SONIA for new hedges, rather than LIBOR
as previously used, in order to mitigate the Group’s exposure to LIBOR in. preparation for LIBOR reform.
Legacy hedges remain designated against LIBOR. Further information  regarding interest rate benchmark
reform can be found in Note 1.6(c) and in the market risk section of the Risk Management Report on page 70.

The derivatives market has been the subject of regulatory focus in recent years. Article 4 of the European
Market Infrastructure Regulation requires that standardised over-the-counter (OTC) derivatives are
mandatorily cleared through authorised central counterparties. The Group is classified as a Category 3
financial counterparty, the deadline for which to commence clearing OTC trades was 17 October 2019.
Accordingly, since October 2019, standardised OTC derivatives have been cleared via ABN Amro with London
Clearing House. The tables below split out the total nominal amount of derivative financial instruments into
cleared and OTC:

Assets Liabilities
Total Total
nominal nominal
Group _ Cleared ‘OTC amount Cleared OTC amount
As at 31 December 2019 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Interest rate swaps 73.1 473.1.  546.2 696 8454 = 915.0
Interest rate options - C. - . : - 1,150.0 1,150.0
Cross-currency swaps . - 40.0 40.0 - . -
Balance guaranteed swaps , - 236.2 236.2 - C - 236.2 . 236.2
Total , ' 731 749.3 8224 69.6 2,231.6 2,301.2 -
Assets Liabilities
Total - Total
, : nominal nominal |
.| Company Cleared . OTC amount Cleared OTC amount
As at 31 December 2019 £m £m £m £fm £m £m
Interest rate swaps 73.1 473.1 546.2 69.6 8454 915.0 .
_Interest rate options ' - - - ~© = 1,500 1,150.0
Cross-currency swaps - 40.0  40.0 - - -
Balance guaranteed swaps - - - - 236.2 236.2

Total ' 731 5131 586.2 69.6 2,231.6 2,301.2
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17. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

Hedge accounting

The Group holds interest rate swaps and options as hedgmg instruments in fair value hedges. Cross-currency
swaps and balance guaranteed swaps are not in hedge accounting relationships. The Group does not currently
designate any derivatives as cash flow hedges or net investment hedges.

Details of fair value hedges as at 31 December are presented in the following tables:

. Maturity
Group and Company Less than 1-3 3 months "1-5 More than
As at 31 December 2019 1 month months -1 year years 5 years Total-
Interest rate swaps
Nominal amount (£m) - - 407.0 1,002.5 51.7. 1,461.2
Average fixed interest rate - - 1.03% 0.88% 1.21% 1.04%
Interest rate options
Nominal amount (£m) - - 50.0 1,000.0 100.0 1,150.0
Average fixed interest rate - - 0.75% 0.75% 0.75% 0.75%

Maturity |

Group and Company Less than 1-3 3 months 1-5 More than
As at 31 December 2018 1 month months - 1 year years 5 years Total
Interest rate swaps '
Nominal amount (Em) - - 50.0 913.4 27.3 990.7
Average fixed interest rate - - 1.20% 1.12% 1.34% 1.16%
Interest rate options ' ' .
Nominal amount (Em) - - - 850.0 300.0 1,150.0
Average fixed interest rate - - - " 0.75% 0.75% 0.75%

The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments and hedge ineffectiveness are set out in the
tables below. The carrying amount of assets and liabilities included in these tables are presented in the
statement of financial position on the lines derivative financial assets and derivative financial liabilities,
respectively. Ineffectiveness is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the line net gains/(losses) on
financial instruments mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss. The main sources of ineffectiveness in
these hedge relationships relate to the modelled prepayment/repayment behaviour and the assumptlons that

are used in modelling this behaviour.

Change in fair value Ineffectiveness
: : Nominal Carrying used for calculating recognised in statement
Group and Company amount amount ineffectiveness of prof‘ it and loss
As at 31 December 2019 £m £m £m £m
Interest rate swaps . ' _‘ _ .
Assets 546.2 2.3 (8.5) (0.1)
Liabilities 915.0 9.6 0.4 -
Interest rate options
Liabilities 1,150.0 4.0 0.4 0.1
Change in fair value Ineffectiveness
. Nominal Carrying used for calculating recognised in statement
Group and Company amount  amount ineffectiveness of profit and loss |
As at 31 December 2018 £m £m £m £m
Interest rate swaps
Assets 431.5 1.4 (0.7) (0.5)
Liabilities 559.2 1.2 1.7 0.2
Interest rate options
Liabilities 4.3 1.6 0.3

1,150.0
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17. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

The amounts relating to items designated as hedged items are as follows:

Financial Statements

Accumulated fair value hedge
adjustments on the hedged

Change in fair
value used for

Carrying item included in the carrying calculating
Group and Company amount amount of the hedged item' ineffectiveness
As at 31 December 2019 ' £m £m £m
Assets
Loans and advances to customers 2,371.2 8.8 8.0
Liabilities :
Customer deposits , 240.0 (0.5) (0.4)
Accumulated fair value hedge Change in fair
adjustments on the hedged value used for
Carrying item included in the carrying calculating
Group and Company amount amount of the hedged item ineffectiveness
As at 31 December 2018 £m £m £m
Assets ‘ :
Loans and advances to customers 2,890.6 (1.1) (1.1)
Liabilities .
-Customer deposits 280.0 (0.1) (1.4)

Net gains and losses on derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Gains and losses on derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting per the statement of proflt and loss

are summarised as follows:

2019 2018

£m £m

Fair value (losses)/gains on derivative financial instruments? (6.1) 2.1
Fair value gains/(losses) on hedged risk 8.4 (2.5)
Net gains/(losses) on financial instruments mandatorily at fair value 2.3 (0.4)

through profit or loss?

Fair value (losses)/gains on derivative financial instruments include foreign exchange gains/(losses).

1 The accumulated amount of fair value adjustments remaining in the statement of financial position for hedged items that have been de-
designated, for which the fair value hedged item adjustment is being amortised into the statement of profit and loss is £0.5 million.
2 Comparatives for the year ended 31 December 2018 have been restated to reclass £0.9 million of foreign exchange losses on derivative

financial instruments from administrative expenses to net gains/(losses) on financial instruments mandatorily at fair value through profit
or loss, to ensure compliance with the accounting policy set out in Note 1.3.
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18. Property, plant and equipment
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(l)

Financial Statements

Right-of-use Fixtures, Assets on
leasehold Leasehold fittings and operating ,

Group property’ property equipment leases Total
Year ended 31 December 2019 £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
As at 1 January 2019 - 0.7 14.8 58.3 73.8
Impact of adopting IFRS 16 10.3 - - . 10.3
As at 1 January 2019 (adjusted) 10.3 0.7 14.8 - 58.3 84.1
Additions 25 1.7 1.7 18.2 24.1
Disposals (0.2) - (0.3) (8.7) (9.2)
Transfer to finance leases - - - (7.4) (7.4)
As at 31 December 2019 12.6 24 16.2 60.4 91.6
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 January 2019 - 0.6 9.9 24.2 34.7
Charge for the year 1.5 0.3 1.6 8.6 12.0
Disposals - - - (7.0) (7.0)
Transfer to finance Ieases - - - (5.3) (5.3)
As at 31 December 2019 1.5 0.9 11.5 20.5 344
Carrying amount
As at 31 December 2019 11.1 1.5 4.7 39.9 -57.2

Right-of-use Fixtures, Assets on

leasehold Leasehold fittings and operating

Company property’ property equipment leases Total
Year ended 31 December 2019 “£m £m £m £m £m
As at 1 January 2019 - 0.7 ' 14.6 57.4 72.7
Impact of adopting IFRS 16 10.1 - . - 10.1
As at 1 January 2019 (adjusted) 101 0.7 14.6 57.4 82.8
Additions 2.5 1.7 1.6 . 18.2 24.0
Disposals - - I (7.8) ~(7.8)
Transfer to finance leases - - - (7.4) (7.4)
As at 31 December 2019 126 24 16.2 60.4 91.6
Accumulated depreciation :
As at 1 January 2019 - 0.6 9.9 24.1 34.6
Charge for the year 1.5 0.3 1.6 8.6 12.0 .
Disposals ' - - - (6.9) (6.9)
Transfer to finance leases s - - (5.3) (5.3)
As at 31 December 2019 1.5 . 0.9 115 20.5 - 34.4
Carrying amount :
As at 31 December 2019 1.1 1.5 4.7 57.2

29.

- 39.9

- Further deta||s relating to assets on operating leases and right-of-use leasehold proper’ty are set out in Note

1 Adoption of IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ on 1 January 2019 resulted i in the recogmtuon of nght-of use assets. A new asset category was created to .
present these assets. See Note 1.6(a) for details.
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18. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Financial Statements

Fixtures,  Assets on
Leasehold fittingsand - operating
Group * property - equipment leases Total
Year ended 31 December 2018 £m £m £m £m
Cost ' :
As at 1 January 2018 0.8 11.2 637 757
Additions - 3.6 82 11.8
Disposals (0.1) - (9.8) (9.9)
Transfer to finance leases - - (3.8) (3.8)
As at 31 December 2018 0.7 14.8 58.3 73.8
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 January 2018 0.5 8.0 276 36.1
Charge for the year 0.1 1.9 .16 96
Disposals _ - - (8.0)- (8.0)
Transfer to finance leases - - (3.0) . (3.0)
As at 31 December 2018 0.6 9.9 24.2 347
Carrying amount :
As at 31 December 2018 0.1 4.9 341 39.1
: Fixtures, Assets on-
Leasehold fittings and operating
Company property  equipment leases Total
Year ended 31 December 2018 £m £m £m - £m
Cost - . e =
As at 1 January 2018 0.8 112 . 633 75.3
Additions - 3.4 7.7 11.1
Disposals , (0.1) - (9.8) (9.9)
Transfer to finance leases - - (3.8) (3.8)
As at 31 December 2018 0.7 146 57.4 72.7
Accumulated 'depreciation
Asat1January 2018 0.5 8.0 _276_ 361
Charge for the year 01 1.9 7.5 . 9.5
Disposals - - (8.0) (8.0)
Transfer to finance leases - (3.0) (3.0)
As at 31 December 2018 0.6 9.9 24.1 34.6
Carrying amount R
As at 31 December 2018 0.1 47 33.3 38.1
Further details relating to assets on operating leases are set out in Note 29.
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19. Intangible assets

See accounting policies in Note 1.7(m)

Financial Statements

2019 2018
Computer Computer
Goodwill software Total Gaoodwill software Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost .
As at 1 January "~ 38.5 36.3 74.8 38.5 29.1 67.6
Additions - 8.0 8.0 - 9.8 9.8
Disposals - - - - (2.6) (2.6)
As at 31 December 38.5 44.3 82.8 38.5 36.3 74.8
Accumulated amortisation and
impairment
As at 1 January 05 13.6 14.1 - 8.2 8.2
Charge for the year - - 7.8 7.8 - 6.1 6.1
Impairment in the year - - - 0.5 - 0.5
Disposals ' - - - - (0.7)  (0.7)
As at 31 December 0.5 214 219 0.5 13.6 14.1
Carrying amount
As at 31 December 38.0 .22.9 60.9 38.0 227 60.7
2019 2018
‘ Computer . Computer
Goodwill software Total Goodwill software Total
Company £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost , ' .
As at 1 January 23.7 36.3 60.0 23.7 29.1 52.8
Additions - 8.0 8.0 - 9.8 9.8
Disposals - - - - _(2.6) (2.6)
As at 31 December 23.7 44.3 68.0 237 36.3 60.0
Accumulated amortisation and
impairment
As at 1 January - 13.6 13.6 - 8.2 8.2
Charge for the year - 7.8 7.8 - .61 6.1
Disposals - - - - - (0.7) (0.7)
As at 31 December - - 21.4 214 - 13.6 13.6
Carrying amount .
23.7 229  46.6 23.7 227 464

As at 31 December

Computer software additions include'£7.6-Million of internally generated assets (2018: £9.6 million).

vlm'pairmenf testihg of goodwill -

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to CGUs, which are also the reportable lending

divisions, as detailed in Note 2.

Details of impairment testing, including key assumptions and sensitivity analysis, are set out in Note 1.9(b).

No impairment losses have beén recognised in the year ended 31 December 2019. In year ended 31
December 2018, an impairment loss of £0.5 million was recognised in the Group against the goodwill allocated
to the Consumer Lending CGU. This reduced the carrying amount of goodwill in this CGU to £nil.
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19. Intangible assets (continued)

The following table sets out the carrying amount of goodwill by CGU as at 31 December (after the recognition
of |mpa|rment Iosses)

Group Company Group Company |
2019 2019 2018 2018
£m £m £m . £m
Property Finance 54 - 54 -
Business Finance 32.6 23.7 326 23.7
Total goodwill , . 38.0 23.7 380 23.7
20. Deferred tax assets
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(f)
Deferred tax assets are attributable to the following items:

. 2019 - 2018
Group and Company £m £m
Decelerated tax depreciation ' 11.2 12.1
IFRS 9 adjustment , - 2.8 - 4.9
General provisions 0.6 0.7
Other 0.3 0.3

Total deferred tax assets : 14.9 18.0-

Movements in deferred tax assets are attributable to the following items:

2019 2018
Group and Company , £m £m
As at 1 January B - 18.0 15.7
Impact of adopting IFRS 9 ' - - 5.6
Restated balance as at 1 January _ 18.0 21.3
Current period movement - recognised in income , (0.'8) (3.5)
Adjustment in respect of.prior years . s ' (2.3) 0.2
As at 31 December ‘ ’ _ . 149 18.0

Deferred tax assets result primarily from decelerated capital allowances. The business plan projects profits in
future years sufficient to fully recognise the deferred tax assets. The tax assets will unwind over the remaining
life of the underlying assets with which they are associated.

Reduction in the UK corporation tax rate from 19% to 17% (effective 1 April 2020) was substantively enacted
on 16 March 2016. As detailed in Note 43, in March 2020, it was announced in Budget 2020 that the main rate
of corporation tax will remain at 19%, rather than reducing it to 17% from 1 April 2020. 4

The deferred tax asset in both reported years has been calculated based on an aggregation rate of 25%. This
is based on a rate of 17% substantively enacted at the reporting date and the additional 8% of tax suffered in
relation to the banking surcharge that will unwind over the remalnlng life of the underlymg assets with whnch_
they are associated.

21. Investment in associate
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(n)

The Group acduired 19.99% of the 6rdinary shares of The Morigage Lender Limited on 26 March 2018.
Although the Group- holds less than 20% of the ordinary shares, the Group is deemed to have significant
interest. As such, the investment in The Mortgage Lender Limited is accounted for using the equity method of
accountmg .
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The Mortgage Lender Limited’s principal activity is mortgage finance and its place of incorporation and principal

place of business is the UK.

To align to the Group’s reporting period, The Mortgage Lender Limited has changed its financial year end date
from 31 August to 31 December. Consequently, The Mortgage Lender Limited reports a long 16-month
reporting period from 1 September 2018 to 31 December 2019. In the year ended 31 December 2019, monthly
unaudited management accounts have been used for the purposes of applying the equity method of
accounting. In the year ended 31 December 2018, the financial statements for the year to 31 August 2018 and
monthly unaudited management accounts for September to December 2018 were used.

Summarised financial information in respect of The Mortgage Lender Limited is set out below:

2019 2018

As at 31 December £m £m
Current assets 44 = 39

Non-current assets 0.5 0.5

Current liabilities (1.5) (0.5)

Non-current liabilities (0.1) (0.1)

Net assets 3.3 3.8

9 months from

12 months to acquisition to

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

£m £m

Revenue 14.5 4.3

Loss from continuing operations (0.7) (2.3)

Total comprehensive loss for the period (0.7) (2.3)

Dividends received from the associate during the period

A reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the investment in

associate recognised in the statement of financial position as at 31 December is shown below:

| Group and Company 2019 2018 l
Net assets of the associate (Em) 3.3 3.8
Proportion of ownership interest in the associate 19.99% 19.99%
Share of net assets (Em) 0.7 0.8
Goodwill (Em) 4.7 4.7
Total investment in associate (Em) 5.4 5.5

The total investment in associate includes a £0.1 million share of the losses of the associate recognised in the
statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: £0.5 million loss).

22. Other assets

Group Company Group Company

2019 2019 2018 2018

£m £m £m £m

Other debtors L 1.8 1.8 2.9 2.9
Prepayments L 8.0 97 .96

Amounts due from Group companies - 6.4 - 42.6

Total other assets 8.9 16.2 12.6 55.1
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23. Assets held for sale
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(0)

~ As at 31 December 2019, a portfolio of unsecured personal loans from the Consumer Lending division met the
criteria for classification as a disposal group held for sale.

Details of the loans classified as held for sale are as follows:

Gross
' carrying "~ Loss Carrying
Group and Company ‘ _amount allowance amount
As at 31 December 2019 : - £m £m £m
Total loans held for sale ' e : 112.6 (8.5) 104.1

Further analysis of the assets held for sale and the associated loss allowance can be found in the:
creditworthiness risk section of the Risk Management Report on page 47.

On 24 December 2019, a loan sale agreement was signed and a deposit of £48.9 million was received. In

accordance with the terms of the loan sale agreement, the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred.
" until full payment is received on the completion date (31-January 2020). As such, in the year ended 31
- December 2019, the sale of the loan portfolio is not recognised and the loan assets continue to be recognised
at amortised cost in the statement of financial position as assets held for sale. The deposit received is
recognlsed in other liabilities in the statement of financial position (see Note 30).

24, Investment in subsidiaries
The Group's subsidia.ries are detailed in Note 37. As at 31 December 2019, the total investment in subsidiaries
" held at cost amounted to £2 (2018: £102). The decrease in the year is due to the disposal of a subsidiary,

-Shawbrook International Limited, as detailed in Note 12 and Note 37.

~25. Amounts due to banks
* . See accounting policies in Note 1.7(p)

. . 2019 2018
Group and Company ) £m £m
Central bank facilities S . 758.5 876.6 .
Secured bank borrowings ‘ : : . : -o1234 0 1520
Derivative collateral A - 0.8

Total amounts due to banks , . _ 881.6 1,029.4

Total amounts due to banks include:

‘e ' £757.0 million (2018: £875.0 million) drawn.under the Bank' of England S Term Funding Scheme which
fall due for repayment between 2021 and 2022. These amounts are collateralised by loan assets of £974.2
million (2018: £1,402.7 million) and investment securities of £100.0 million (2018: £nil).

.. £123.1 million (2018:-£152.0 million) of secured bank borrowings which fall due for repayment in 2020.

‘ These amounts are secured on Ioan assets of £1 63 6 million (2018: £200.7 mllllon)

26. Customer deposuts
-+ See accounting policies in Note 1.7(q)

. i . _ . . 2019 2018

Group and Company . o , . A : £m : £m

_ Instant access : : L - : : 2,020.2 1,365.6
‘Term deposits and notice accounts . : : . 4,088.7 . 3,612.2

- _Fair value adjustments for hedged rlsk : - -0.5 . 0.1

'Total customerdeposuts . e - 6,109.4 4,977.9
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27. Provisions for liabilities and charges
. See accounting policies in Note 1.7(r)

2019 ' 2018
Loss Other Loss Other
provision provisions Total provision  provisions Total
Group and Company £m £m £m £m £m £m
As at 1 January 1.0 10.6 11.6 - 2.8 2.8
Impact of adopting IFRS 9 : - - - 0.5 - 0.5
Restated balance as at 1 '
January 1.0 | 10.6 11.6 0.5 28 ‘ 3.3
Provisions utilised - (7.8) (7.8) - - (1.8) (1.8)
Provisions made _ ’ - 4.5 4.5 0.5 9.6 10.1
As at 31 December 1.0 - 7.3 8.3 1.0 10.6 11.6

Loss provision
_Loss provision represents the loss aIIowance on fi nancral guarantee contracts and loan commitments..Further
details are set out in Note 41. :

Other provisions

Other provisions are as follows:

_ e £7.3 million (2018: £10.2 million) for customer remediation and conduct issues. See Note 1. 9(c) for details.
s £nil (2018: £0.4 million) relating to the Financial Services Compensation Scheme.

28. Debt securities in issue -
See accountmg poIICIes in Note 1.7(h)

-In June 2019, a Group .company, Shawbrook Mortgage Funding 2019-1, issued £250.0 million of sterling
 mortgage backed floating rate Class A notes to external investors as part of the Group’s securitisation
programme detailed in Note 15. The notes are secured on a portfolio of variable and fixed rate mortgage loans. .

The notes bear interest on their principal amount at an initial rate of Compounded Daily SONIA plus 1. 12% _
per annum, until the optional redemption date of 16 September 2022. Interest is payable quarterly in arrears
in March, June, September and December, commencing on 16 September 2019.

The final maturity date of the notes is 16 December 2050. The final maturity date of the notes is later than the
final repayment date of any of the underlying loans.

The notes may be redeemed in part from time to time, but such redemptions are limited to the principal
repayments received from borrowers in respect of the underlying loans. The notes may all be repurchased by
the Group at any interest payment date on or after the optional redemption date, or at any interest payment
date when the current balance of the loans outstanding is less than or equal to ten percent of the principal
_ amount outstandlng on the notes on the date they were issued.

The Group’s obllgatlons to the note holders are limited to the cash flows (principal and interest) generated from
the.underlying loans.

Movements in debt securities during the year are as follows:

. 2019
Group ’ £m
"As at 1 January ' : -
. Issue of notes ‘ : 250.0
- Redemptions L ‘ , ' _(82)
Capitalised costs S ' o : (1.7)
. Accrued interest and amortisation of costs - : 0.9
"~ As at 31 December , ' ' ' 241.0
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28. Debt securities in issue (continued)

Ae part of the securitisation programme, further sterling mortgage backed floating rate notes (Class B, C and
Z) amounting to £45.9 million were issued by Shawbrook Mortgage Funding 2019-1 plc and were retained by
the Company (see Note 16). These notes are eliminated in full on consolidation.

As at 31 December 2019, for liquidity purposes, certain of the internally held notes retained by the Company
have been used in a security swap in exchange for UK gilts. No cash consideration was exchanged in this
transaction. The notes sold are not derecognised and the UK gilts purchased are not recognised on the
statement of financial position.

29. Leases
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(s)

As detailed in Note 1.6(a), on 1 January 2019 the Group adopted IFRS 16 ‘Leases’, replacing IAS 17 ‘Leases’.
The Group used the modified retrospective approach, meaning comparative information is not restated. As
such, information for 2019 is presented on an IFRS 16 basis and information for 2018 is presented on an IAS .
17 basis. The impact of this on the comparability of the below disclosures is set out in the respective sections.

Group as a lessor -

Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is largely unchanged from IAS 17. As such, the accounting policies applled
by the Group are consistent in both reported years and comparison of the disclosed information can be made = -
between the reported years. . :

Finance leases '
Assets leased to customers underfinance leases are predommantly plant and machinery. Details of the Group
and Company finance lease receivables are set out in Note 14.

* Operating leases

Assets leased to customers under operatmg leases are predominantly pIant and machinery. The carrying
amount of assets on operating leases and the movements during the year are set out in Note 18. Net income
from operating leases is presented on the face of the statement of profit and loss.

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December are as follows:

Group and :
Company Group Company
2019 2018 2018
» . £m £m £m
Lessthaniyear =~ _ _ __ . 97 . 84 82
. Between 1 and 5 years ' - 20.2 16.2 15.8
More than 5 years : : 1.2 0.9 .09

Total future minimum rentals receivable ' : 311 ' 255 24.9

Group as a lessee B
On adoption of IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019, the Group only had operating leases. In 2018 under the
requirements of IAS 17, these leases were held off-balance sheet As such comparatlve information is not
shown in the following tables. : : g

The Group has lease contracts for several buildings. These leases typically have lease terms of between 5
and 10 years. The Group does not sublease any of these leased assets. For these leases, a right-of-use asset
is recognised to represent the right to use the underlymg asset and alease Ilablllty is recogmsed to represent
the obligation to make lease payments. o :

The carrying amount of the right-of-use assets and the movements during the year are set ou_tin Note 18.
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29. Leases (continued)

The carrying amount of the lease liabilities and the movements during the year are set out in the table below:

Group Company |.

2019 2019

£m £m

As at 1 January ‘ - -

Impact of adopting IFRS 16 10.9 10.7

As at 1 January (adjusted) 10.9 10.7
Additions . .25 25

Disposals _ ' - (0.2) -

Interest expense : 0.2 - 0.2

Payments - 7 (1.0) " (1.0)

As at 31 December ' 12.4 12.4

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is presented in the liquidity risk section of the Risk Management Report
on page 64.

The Group has certain leases of office equipment with low value. For these leases, the Group applies the
recognition exemptions for leases of low value assets, whereby no right-of-use asset is recognised and lease
payments are charged to administrative expenses in the statement of profit and loss. Total expense recognised
is summarised in the table below.

The .Group also has several leases for buildings which, at the date of initial application of IFRS 16, had a
remaining lease term of less than 12 months. For these leases, the Group elected to apply the short-term lease
recognition exemption, whereby no right-of-use asset was recognised and lease payments continue to be
charged to administrative expenses in the statement of profit and loss. Total expense recognised is
summarised in the table below.

The following table provides a summary of the amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss during
the year ended 31 December 2019:

2019
Administrative Interest '

expenses . expense Total

: £m £m £m

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 1.5 - 15

Interest expense on lease liabilities - 0.2 0.2
Rental expense on short-term leases - 0.3 T i 0.3

Rental expense on low value assets B 0.1 - 0.1

Total recognised in the statement of profit and loss ‘1.9 0.2 21

In the year ended 31 December. 2018, the amount recognised in administrative expenses in the statement of
profit and loss for operating leases under |IAS 17 was £2.4 million.

In the year ended 31 December 2019, cash outflows for leases included in the statement of cash flows are
£1.0 million. This comprises £0.2 million for payment of the interest portion of the lease llabrllty and £0. 8 million
for payment of the principal portion of the lease liability. :

As at 31 December 2019, the Group is not committed to any lease contracts that have not yet commenced.
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30. Other liabilities

Group Company Group Company

2019 2019 2018 2018

£m £m £m £m

Other creditors 64.2 64.2 19.5 19.5
Accruals’ ‘ -28.9 28.8 19.9 19.5
Amounts due to parent company . 0.9 0.9 1.7 1.7
Total other liabilities 94.0 93.9 41.1 40.7

Other creditors include amounts relating to sundry creditors and other taxes.

In the year ended 31 December 2019, other creditors includes a £48.9 million deposit received in relation to
the sale of a portfolio of unsecured personal loans from the Consumer Lendmg division. Further details are
provided in Note 23.

31. Subordinated debt
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(t)

In October 2015, the Company issued £75.0 million of subordmated debt to its parent company, Shawbrook
Group plc. In September 2019, a further £20.0 million of subordinated debt was issued to its parent company.
"~ The terms of the issued loan notes are consistent with the loan notes listed by Shawbrook Group plc.

The following table sets out movements in the subordinated debt liability during the year:

_ 2019 - 2018

Group and Company £m £m

As at 1 January ) ' 76.1 76.1

Issue of notes ' 200 -

Interest expense and similar charges 6.7 6.4

Repayment of interest _ (6.4) (6.4)

- As at 31 December ) 96.4 76.1

~ 32. Share capital

Ordinary shares of £1.00 each: issued and fully paid, are as follows:

2019 2018

Number of Number of :

Group and Company ~ shares £ shares £

As at1 January and 31 December 175,487,207 175,487,207 175,487,207 175,487,207

Holders of the shares are entitled to dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at general meetings of the Company. There are no restrictions on the rights implicit to the shares.

1 on adoption of IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ on 1 Ja.nuary 2019, accruals totalling £0.6 million related to contracts previously classified as operating-
leases were derecognised. See Note 1.6(a) for details.
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33. Capital securities
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(u)

2019 2018
Group and Company £m £m
As at 1 January and 31 December 125.0 125.0

In December 2017, the Company issued £125.0 million fixed rate reset perpetual Additional Tier 1 write down
capital securities to its parent company, Shawbrook Group plc. The terms of the issued capital securities are
consistent with the capital securities listed by Shawbrook Group plc in December 2017.

In the year ended 31 December 2019, a coupon of £9.8 million (2018: £9.8 million) was paid to Shawbrook
Group plc, the holders of the capital securities.

34. Notes to the cash flow statement
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(v)

Adjustments for non-cash items and other adjustments included in the statement of profit and loss

Group Company Group  Company
2019 2019 2018 2018
- . £m £m £m £m
‘ECL charge for the year 2.6 2.6 15.1 15.1
Accrued interest on investment securities (0.1) (0.1) (0.2) (0.2)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 120 12.0 9.6 9.5
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - ) - 0.1 01 !
Amortisation of intangible assets ) 7.8 7.8 6.1 6.1
Impairment of goodwill ' - - 0.5 -
Loss on disposal of intangible assets e - 1.9 1.9
Share of results of associate . 041 0.1 0.5 0.5
Accru.ed interest and amortisation of costs on debt 0.9 ; _ )
securities ' o
Accrue_d interest an_d amoﬁisatioh of costs on ' ) 0.3 0.3 _ _
subordinated debt liability i )
Share-based payments 0.8 0.8 (0.3) (0.3)
Gain on disposal of subsidiary (0.3) - - -
Total non-cash items and other adjustments 241 23.5 33.3 32.7
Net change in operating assets
Group Company Group Company
2019 2019 2018 2018
) £m £m £m £m
Increase in mandatory deposits with central banks (3.6) (3.6) 4.6) (4.6)
Increase in loans and advances to customers (822.2) (834.6) (1,037.8) (1,042.3)
(Increase)/decrease in derivative financial assets (2.8) (1.5) 0.2 0.2
Increase in operating lease assets (14.4) (15.2) (5.6) (5.1)
Decrease/(increase) in other assets ' 3.7 10.5 (2.7) (35.3)
Increase in assets held for sale (104.1) (104.1) - -
Increase in operating assets . (943.4) (948.5) (1,050.5)  (1,087.1)
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34. Notes to the cash flow statement (continued)

Net change in operating liabilities

Group Company .Group  Company

2019 2019 2018 2018

£m £m £m £m

Increase in customer deposits 1,131.5 1,131.5 601.7 601.7

(Decrease)/increase in provisions for liabilities and (3.3) (3.3) 8.3 8.3
charges A . _ .

Increase in derivative financial liabilities « 982 9.2 23 2.3

Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities - 53.5 53.8 (22.3) 13.9

Increase in operating liabilities 1,190.9 1,191.2 590.0 626.2

Cash and cash equivalents \

Group: Company Group  Company

) 2019 . 2019 2018 2018

£m £m £m £m

Cash and balances at central banks ' ~ 1,064.6 1,064.6 645.2 645.2

Loans and advances to banks o 591 523 50.6 50.1

Less: mandatory deposits with central banks (12 5) (12.5) (8.9) (8.9)

Total cash and cash equivalents - 1,111.2 1,104.4 - 686.9 686.4

35. Financial instruments
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(w)

Classification of financial instruments

The following tables provide a reconciliation between the line items in the statement of financial position and
categories of financial instruments. There were no reclassmcatnons between categones durlng either of the
reported years. '

.

2019 . - 2018
Mandatorily Amortlsed Carrying Mandatorily’ Amortised - Carrying |
. at FVTPL cost amount at FVTPL cost amount
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m

Financial assets

Cash and balances at
central banks

- 1,064.6 1,064.6 6452 . 6452

Loans and advances to

banks - 59.1 59.1 - 50.6 ‘50.6
Loans and advances to - 6637.7  6,637.7 - 58459 58459
customers : y . _

Investment securities . - 200.0 200.0 .- . .139.9 139.9
Derivative financial 44 _ ) 44 . 16 . s
assets ' . )
Assets held for sale - _ - 1041 1041 - ) - -
Total financial assets 4.4 -8,065.5 8,069.9 . 1.6 '6,681.6 6,683.2
Financial liabilities : o , .
Amounts due to banks - 881.6 881.6 ' oo - ..1029.4  -1,029.4
- Customer deposits - 6,109.4 6,109.4 - - - 49779 . 49779
Derivative financial ' o
liabilities 14.9 - 149 57 S 5.}7
Debt securities in issue : - 2410 | 2410 C- - -
Lease liabilities - 12.4 12.4 L. - -
Subordinated debt o i o
liability - 96.4 96.4 - 781 761
Total financial : S e ' -
liabilities . 149 7,340.8 7,355.7 5..7.. 6,083.4 6',089.1
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2019 2018
Mandatorily Amortised Carrying Mandatorily Amortised Carrying
at FVTPL cost amount “at FVTPL cost amount
Company £m ~£m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Cash and balances at - 1,0646 1,064.6 ; 6452 6452
central banks :
Loans and advances to . 52.3 52.3 ) 50.1 50.1
banks o
Loans and advances to - 66377  6,637.7 . 58057 58057
customers
Investment securities - 2459 2459 - 139.9 139.9
Derivative financial 3.1 . 3.1 16 - 1.6
assets - ‘
Assets held for sale - 104.1 104.1 - - -
Total financial assets " 3.1 8,104.6 8,107.7 1.6 6,640.9 6,642.5
Financial liabilities )
Amounts due to banks - 881.6 881.6 ' - 1,029.4 11,0294
Customer deposits - 6,109.4 6,109.4 - 49779 49779
Derivative financial 14.9 . 14.9 5.7 - 5.7
liabilities ] . ’
Lease liabilities - 12.4 124 - - -
Subordinated debt ; . 96.4 96.4 ; 76.1 76.1
liability
Deemed loan due to
structured entity ) 286.2 286.2 i _ -
Total financial 149  7,386.0  7,400.9 57, 6,089.1

6,083.4

liabilities .

Fair value of financial instruments

- A summary of the valuation methods used to calculate the fair values of financial instruments is as follows:

Cash and balances at central banks and loans and advances to banks: fair value approximates to carrying
amount as balances have minimal credit losses and are either short-term in nature or re-price frequently.
Loans and advances to customers: fair value is calculated based on the present value of future principal
and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date, and adjusted for
future credit losses if considered material. '
Investment securities, debt securities in issue and subordinated debt ||ab|I|tv fair values are based on

. _quoted prices where available or by discounting cash flows using market rates.

Derivative financial instruments: fair values of derivatives are obtained from quoted market prices in active
markets and, where these are not available, from valuation techniques including discounted cash flows.
Amounts due to banks, customer deposits and deemed loan due to structured entity: fair value-is

- estimated using discounted cash flows applying either market rates where practicable or rates offered

with similar characteristics by other financial institutions. The fair value of floating rate placements, fixed
rate placements with less than six months to maturity and overnight deposits is considered to approximate
to their carrying amount.

Assets held for sale: fair values are calculated using expected or known sales price. Where such data is

‘not available, fair values are calculated in accordance with the type of asset held for sale using the
~ valuation methods detalled above. .

In accordance with IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’, fair value disclosures are not required for lease
liabilities. Accordmgly, lease liabilities are not mcluded in the followmg tables.
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35. Financial instruments (continued)

The Group uses a fair value hierarchy which reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the

measurements. There are three levels to the hierarchy as follows:

e Level 1: quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entlty can access at the
measurement date;

e Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). A Level 2 input must be observable
for substantially the full term of the instrument. Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not
active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, such as. interest rates
and yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals, implied volatilities and credit spreads. Assets
and liabilities classified as Level 2 have been valued using models whose inputs are observable in an
active market; and

e Level 3: inputs for the asset or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs). :

The consideration of factors such as the scale and frequency of trading activity, the availability of prices and
the size of bid/offer spreads assist in the assessment of whether a market is active. If, in the opinion of
Management, a significant proportion of an instrument’s carrying amount is driven by unobservable inputs, the
instrument in its entirety is classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Level 3 in this context means that
there is little or no current market data available from which to determine the level at which an arm’s length
transaction would be likely to occur. It generally does not mean that there is no market data available at all
upon which to base a determination of fair value (consensus pricing data may, for example, be used).

The tables below analyse financial instruments measured at amortised cost (excluding lease liabilities) into the
fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers between the levels of the fair value hlerarchy during either of the
reported years.

2019 2018
: Level3 Level2 Level1 Level 3 . Level2 Level1
Group £m £m  £m £m £m £m
Financial assets (at amortised cost) _ o
Cash and balances at central banks - - 1,064.6 - - 645.2
Loans and advances to banks - 59.1 - - 50.6 .-
Loans and advances to customers 6,637.7 . - - 5,845.9 : - -
Investment securities - - 200.0 C- - 139.9
Assets held for sale 104.1 - . - - -
Financial liabilities (at amortised cost) .
Amounts due to banks - 881.6 - - 1,029.4 -
Customer deposits - 6,109.4 - - 49779 -
Debt securities in issue ) - 2410 - - - . -
~ Subordinated debt liability ' ' - 96.4 - - 76.1 -
2019 , , 2018
‘ : Level 3 Level2 Level1 Level 3 Level2 Level 1’
Company . £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets (at amortised cost) ' '
Cash and balances at central banks R - 1,064.6 - - 6452
Loans and advances to banks L - 52.3 - - 50.1 -
Loans and advances to customers 6,637.7 Y. - 5,805.7 - -
Investment securities - - 2459 - .- 139.9
Assets held for sale -104.1 - - - - -
Financial liabilities (at amortised cost)
Amounts due to banks : - 881.6 - - 1,029.4 -
Customer deposits - 6,109.4 - - 49779 -
Subordinated debt liability - . 964 - - .. 761 -

Deemed loan due to structured entity - 286.2 - - - -
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35. Financial instruments (continued)

The tables below analyse financial instruments measured at fair value into the fair value hierarchy. There were
~ no transfers between the levels of the fair value hierarchy during either of the reported years. The Level 3
financial instruments in the year ended 31 December 2019 represent the balance guaranteed swaps entered
into during the year in relation to the Group’s securitisation (see Note 15).

2019 2018
Level3 Level2 Level1 Level3 Level2 Level1
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets (at fair value) :
Derivative financial assets 1.3 3.1 - - 1.6 -
Financial liabilities (at fair value)
Derivative financial liabilities 1.3 13.6 - - 57 -
2019 2018
Level3 Level2 Level1 Level3 Level2 Level1
Company £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets (at fair value) o
Derivative financial assets - 31 - - 1.6 -
Financial liabilities (at fair value)
Derivative financial liabilities - 1.3 13.6 .- - 5.7 -

The following tables provide a comparison of the carrying amount per the statement of financial position and
the calculated fair value for financial instruments measured at amortised cost. In accordance with IFRS 7, cash
and balances at central banks, loans and advances to banks and assets held for sale are not included in the
tables, as the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value and fair value disclosures are
therefore not required. Lease liabilities are also excluded from the tables as fair value dlsclosures are not
required.

2019 2018
Carrying Carrying

amount Fair value amount Fair value
Group £m £m £m £m
Financial assets (at amortised cost) '
Loans and advances to customers 6,637.7 6,784.7 5,845.9 6,105.8
Investment securities ' 200.0 2004 139.9 139.0
Financial liabilities (at amortised cost) .
Amounts due to banks _ 881.6 873.3 1,029.4 1,014.8
Customer deposits _ 6,109.4 '6,121.1 4977.9 4,972.8
Debt securities in issue ' ' 241.0 2415 - -
Subordinated debt liability 96.4 100.5 76.1 . - 78.0

2019 . 2018
Carrying Carrying

amount Fair value amount Fair value
Company ' £m £m £m £m
Financial assets (at amortised cost) , ] ) .
Loans and advances to customers » 6,637.7 6,784.7 58057 ~ 6,0654
Investment securities 245.9 246.2 ' 139.9 139.0
Fmanclal liabilities (at amortised cost) o
Amounts due to banks : : 881.6 . 873.3 1,0294 - 1,014.8
Customer deposits ' 6,109.4 6,121.1 49779 4,972.8
Subordinated debt liability » '96.4 100.5 76.1 78.0
Deemed loan due to structured entity 286.2 286.2 - -
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35. Financial instruments (continued)

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The disclosures set out in the following tables include financial assets and financial liabilities that:

» are offset in the statement of financial position; or

+ are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar. agreement, |rrespect|ve of whether
they are offset in the statement of financial position.

Fmanmal instruments such as loans and deposnts are not disclosed in the followung tables unless they are
offset in the statement of financial position.

Net amount Related amounts
presented on not offset
Gross Amount ‘statement of Cash collateral Net
Group amount offset financial position received/pledged amount
As at 31 December 2019 £m £m £m £m £m
‘Financial assets ) ‘
Derivative financial assets 4.4 - 44 . (4.4) -
Total financial assets 4.4 - 4.4 (4.4) -
Financial liabilities , :
Derivative financial liabilities 14.9 - 14.9 - (14.9) -
Total financial liabilities 14.9 - 149 - (149) -
Net amount Related amounts
presented on not offset
. -Gross Amount statement of Cash collateral Net
Company amount offset financial position received/pledged amount
As at 31 December 2019 £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets v '
Derivative financial assets 3.1 . - S 3.1 (3.1) -
Total financial assets 3.1 - - 341 (3.1) -
Financial liabilities .
Derivative financial liabilities 14.9 - 149 , (14.9) -
Total financial liabilities 14.9 - 14.9 (14.9) ‘ -
Net amount  Related amounts
presented on ____ ot offset
Gross  Amount statement of Cash collateral Net
Group and Company "~ amount offset financial.position  received/pledged = amount
As at 31 December 2018 £m £m £m £m £m
_Financial assets ’ , '
Derivative financial assets - 1.6 - 1.6 (1.6) -
Total financial assets 1.6 - 1.6 (1.6) -
" Financial liabilities - _ : A
. Derivative financial liabilities 57 - 57 - (5.7) -
Total financial liabilities - 57 - : 5.7 (5.7) -

36. Ultimate parent company

‘The Company is a subsidiary undertaking of its ultimate parent company, Shawbrook Group plc. Shawbrook
Group plc is incorporated in England and Wales and is the largest' company in which the results of the
Company and its subsidiaries are consolidated. The consolidated financial statements of the Group are
available on request from Lutea House, Warley Hill Business Park, Brentwood, Essex CM13 3BE.
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37. Subsidiary companies
See accounting policies in Note 1.4

~ The Company has the following subsidiary companies as at 31 December 2019 whose results are included in
the consolidated financial statements:

Country of Class of Ownership Principal
Name incorporation shares % activity
E?T:\t'\ézroo'( Bundmgs and Protectlon England and Wales Ordinary 100 Dormant
Singers Corporate Asset Finance Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100 Dormant -
Singers Healthcare Finance Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100 Dormant
Coachlease Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100 Dormant
Hermes Group Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100 Dormant
Eilg?t?a:j& Friedlander Commercial Finance Scotland Ordinary 100 Dormant
Link Loans Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100 Non-trading
Centric SPV 1 Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100 - Dormant
Resource Partners SPV Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100 Dormant
Centric Group Holdings Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100 Dissolved'

All subsidiaries have the same registered office as the Company, as detailed in Note 1.1, except for Singer &
Friedlander Commercial Finance Limited for which the registered office i is: 8 Nelson Mandela Place, Glasgow,
Scotland, G2 1BT. .

Changes to the Group’s subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2019 are as follows:

e  Shawbrook International Limited: Company number: 121556, incorporated in Jersey. Sold on 31 October
2019. _ _ ,

e  Centric Group Finance Limited: Company number: 06405442. Dissolved on 12 February 2019.

Special purpose vehicles o
* As part of the Group’s financing arrangements, in the year ended 31 December 2019, certain mortgage loans
originated by the Company, were transferred to a SPV (see Note 15). The shares of the SPV and its holding
company -are ultimately beneficially owned through an independent trust. However, these entities are
considered to be controlled by the Group and are therefore treated as subsidiaries of the Group and are fully
consolidated. Details of these entities are as follows ‘

: , Country of
Name incorporation Principal activity
Shawbrook Mortgage Funding 2019-1 plc v England and Wales Residential mortgages

Shawbrook Mortgage Funding 2019-1 Holdings Limited England and Wales Holding company
The registered office for the above entities is: 35 Great St. Helen's, London, EC3A 6AP.
38. Related party transactions

Transactions with key management personnel
Key management personnel refer to the Executive Management team and Directors of the Group.

Comgensatlo
. Total compensation for employed key management personnel for the year is as foIIows

- - 2019 2018
Group and Company £m £m
Short-term employee benefits ‘ , 5.8 7.0
Other long-term benefits ' ' 0.2 0.2
Termination benefits : . : 0.4 1.4
Total compensation for employed key management personnel 64 8.6

*V Centric Group Holdings Limited (company number: 06402868) was dissolved on 4 February 2020.
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38. Related party transactions (continued)

Transactions '

The Group provides employee loans to certain key management personnel. These loans are subject to interest
in accordance with the beneficial loan arrangements rate set by HMRC from time to time. The loans do not.
involve more than the normal risk of collectability or present other unfavourable features. As at 31 December
2019, the amount outstanding in respect of these loans is £0.4 million (2018: £nil). Interest income recognised
in respect of these loans during the year ended 31 December 2019 is less than £0.1 million (2018: £nil). No
provisions have been recognised in respect of these loans (2018: £nil) and no balances have been written off
.or forgiven during the year to 31 December 2019 (2018: £nil).

The Group also holds savings deposits from certain key management personnel and their close family

members. Such deposits are held in the ordinary course of business on normal commercial terms. As at 31
December 2019, the amount held in respect of these deposits is £0.3 million (2018: £0.3 million). Interest -
expense recognised in respect of these deposits during both reported years was less than £0.1 million. ‘

Transactions With associate
Details of the Group’s associate are provided in Note 21.

As at 31 December 2019, the balance owed to the Mortgage Lender Limited is £0.1 million (2018 £nil).

In the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group paid £4.0 million of commlssmn and servicing fees to the» :
Mortgage Lender Limited (2018: £0.8 mllllon)

Transactions between the Company and its parent company :
Details of the parent company, Shawbrook Group plc, are prowded in Note 36.

As at 31 December 2019, the balance owed to the parent company is £0.9 million (2018: £1. 7 mulllon) (see
Note 30). Movements in amounts owed to the parent Company are as follows:

Company - Company
2019 2018
: - £m - £m
As at 1 January o | A7 - 10

Subordinated debt payable © : _ (20.0) -
Interest payable on subordinated debt ' ' 6.4 . 6.4
Cash received from subordinated debt issued by parent company ' 20.0 -
Interest paid on subordinated debt on behalf of parent o (6.4) (6.4)

Coupon payable on capital securities ' .98 98
Coupon paid on capital securities on behalf of parent ' ‘ (9.8) (9.8)
Professional fees and other costs o ] 05 . 1.5
Transfer of funds : - (1.3) (0.8)

As at 31 December ' 09 © 1.7

The Company has issued £95.0 million (2018: £75.0 million) of subordinated debt to its parent company. The
terms of the issued notes are consistent wnth the loan notes listed by Shawbrook Grouppic (see Note 31).

The Company has issued £125.0 million (2018: £125.0 mllllon) of capltal securltles to its parent company. The
terms of the issued securities are consistent with the capltal securities listed by Shawbrook Group plc (see'
Note 33).

VTransactlo_ns_ between the Company and its subsidiaries
Subsidiaries of the Group are detailed in Note 37.

Shawbrook International Limited .
All amounts owing from Shawbrook International Limited to the Company were repald upon the sale of the
subsidiary in October 2019. As at 31 December 2018, the balance owed by Shawbrook |nternat|onal lelted-

to the Company was £42.6 million (see Note 22). '
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38. Related party transactions (continued)

Pnor to the sale of Shawbrook International Limited, the Company made payments of £0.8 million to
Shawbrook International Limited (2018: £31.4 million). In addition, seven loans with a carrying amount of £13.8
million were transferred from Shawbrook International Limited to the Company

Shawbrook Mortgage Funding 2019-1 plc
As at 31 December 2019, the balance owed by the SPV to the Company was £6.4 million (see Note 22).

As part of the Group’s securitisation programme, in the year ended 31 December 2019, loans originated by
the Company with a carrying amount of £286.2 million were transferred to the SPV (see Note 15).

A deemed loan liability of £286.2 million is recognised in the Company reflecting consideration received from
the SPV upon transfer of the loans (see Note 15).

The SPV issued sterling mortgage backed floating rate notes, £45.9 million of which were retained by the
Company (see Note 16 and Note 28).

Other related party transactions
The following transactions are related via the ultimate parent company of Shawbrook Group plc (the
Company’s parent company), Marlin Bidco lelted

As at 31 December 2019, the balance owed by the Company to Marlin Bidco Limited is £0.8 million (2018:
£nil).

Durlng the year ended 31 December 2019, certain employees, |nclud|ng key management personnel acquired
non-voting ‘B’ Class ordinary shares in Marlln Bidco Limited as part of an employee share-based payment
scheme (see Note 9). .

39. Capltal commltments

Cap:tal commitments-as at 31 December 2019 are £n|I (2018 £nil).

40. Contingent liabilities
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(y)

Part of the Group’s business is regulated by the Consumer Credit Act (CCA), which contains very detailed and
highly technical requirements. The Group continues to commission external reviews of its compliance with the
CCA and other consumer regulations. The Group has identified some areas of potential non-compliance which
are not considered to be material. While the Group considers that no material present obligation in relation to
non-compliance with the CCA and other consumer regulatlons is likely, there is a risk that the eventual outcome
may dlffer '

The Group's Consumer Lending division is exposed to risk under Section 75 of the CCA, in relation to any
misrepresentations or breaches of contract by suppliers of goods and services to customers where the
. purchase of those goods and services is financed by the Group. While the Group would have recourse to the
supplier in the event of such liability, if the suppller becomes insolvent that recourse would have limited value.

41. Financial guarantee contracts and loan commltments
See accounting policies in Note 1.7(z)

Financial guarantee contracts -
In both reported years, the Group has had one financial guarantee contract amounting to £2.5 million. The‘
contract-is a ¢ontinuous obligation which may be terminated by the Group on g|V|ng three months written .
nohce

The loss allowance for financial guarantee contract in both reported years is £nil, because the contract is fully ’

collateralised through a first fixed charge over a blocked deposit account. As such, the amount the Group '
should have to pay should the guarantee be called upon is £nil. :
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41. Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments (continued)

Loan commitments

: 2019 2018
Group and Company £m £m
Gross amount committed : , 591.5 549.3
Loss allowance recognised within provisions (see Note 27) (1.0) - (1.0)
Total loan commitments ) 590.5 548.3

Further analysis of loan commitments and the associated loss allowance, including the movement in the loss
allowance during the year, can be found in the creditworthiness risk section of the Risk Management Report
on page 47.

42. Country by country reporting

The Capital Requirements (Country by Country Reporting) Reguletions 2013 came into effect on 1 January
2014 and place certain reporting obligations on financial institutions that are W|th|n the scope of the Capital
Requirements Directive V. :

Shawbrook Bank Limited and its subsidiaries are all UK or Channel island registered entities. The activities of
the Group and its subsidiaries are detailed in the Strategic Report and Note 37.

Required disclosures for the Group are summarised below:

l - ] ' ‘ 2019 2018 |
Net operating income (£m) , 295.2 272.9
Profit before tax (Em) ’ 122.6 110.3
Tax charge (Em)' ‘ : 28.8 25.8
Tax paid (Em) ) 28.6 26.4
Average number of employees on a full-time equivalent basis . 814 731

The Group received no public subsidies during the year (2018: £nil).
43. Post balance sheet events

On 31 January 2020, the Group completed the sale of a portfolio of unsecured personal loans from the
Consumer Lending division. The gain on disposal is circa ~£0.5 million. As at 31 December 2019, these loans
are classified as held for sale and further details can be found in Note 23.

Since the close of the financial reporting period, the outbreak of coronavirus (Covid-19) has been labelled a
global pandemic by the World Health Organization. As the outbreak continues to evolve, the Board has
employed preventative measures to minimise potential risk to employees and provide ongoing services to
customers. The Group has updated its existing business continuity plans and has implemented its Incident

-Management Plan. In the Risk Management Report, a new top risk theme, global- pandemic risk, has been
- established and further assessment of the risk is provided (see pages 34 and 38, respectively). The impacts
for the Group and its customers are being continuously assessed, taking into consideration measures
implemented by the Bank of England and the UK government designed to support businesses and protect the
economy. Dueto the level of uncertainty surrounding this unprecedented event, it is' challenglng to predict the
full extent and duration of the implications and the financial effect cannot currently be evaluated with a high
degree of certainty. The Group estimates that there could be negative impacts on areas including the Group’s
loan book (specifically asset quality and ECLs), net interest income, impairments and provisions. The Group
considers this a non-adjusting event after the reportung period and no changes have been made to the financial
‘statements

On 1 1 March 2020 it was announced in Budget 2020 that the main rate of corporation tax will remain at 19%.
The impact of this on the deferred tax asset is an increase of £0.2 million. This constitutes a non-adjustlng
event after the reporting period and no changes have been made to the financial statements.

There have been no.other significant events betvyeen 31 December 2019 and the date of approval of the 2019
Annual Report and Accounts that require a change or additional disclosure in the financial statements.

1 Comparatives for the year ended 31 December 2018 have been restated to reflect amendments to IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes'. See Note
1.6(b) for details.
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Abbreviations

Other information

AT1 Additional Tier 1

bps Basis point

CCA Consumer Credit Act

CET1 Common Equity Tier 1

CGU(s) Cash generating unit(s)

CRD IV Capital Requirements Directive IV

EAD Exposure at default

ECL Expected credit loss

EU European Union

FCA __Financial Conduct Authority

FVOCI Fair value through other comprehensive income
FVTPL Fair value through profit or loss

GDPR General Data Protection Regulation

IAS International Accounting Standards

'ICAAP Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards
ILAAP ‘Internal Liquidity Adequacy Assessment Process
kWh kilowatts per hour

LCR Liquidity coverage ratio

LGD Loss given default

LIBOR London Inter-Bank Offered Rate

Mi Management information

MREL Minimum requirements for own funds and ellgable liabilities
NSFR Net stable funding ratio

OoTC Over-the-counter

PD Probability of default

PRA Prudential Regulation Authority

RMF . Risk Management Framework

RRP Recovery Plan and Resolution Pack

SICR _Significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
SME(s) “Small and medium enterprise(s)

SONIA Sterling Overnight Index Average rate

SPPI Solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
SPV Special purpose vehicle

TFS Term Funding Scheme

VAT Value added tax

~ ‘Company’ refers to: Shawbrook Bank Limited
*‘Group' refers to: the Company and its subsidiaries
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Other information (continued)

Key performance indicators

Certain financial measures disclosed in the Annual Report and Accounts do not have a standardised meaning
prescribed by IFRS and may not therefore be comparable to similar measures presented by other issuers.
These measures are deemed to be ‘alternative performance measures’. Definitions of the Group’s key
performance indicators are set out below:

Average principal
employed

The average of monthly closing loans and advances to customers' (net of loss .
allowance and fair value adjustments for hedged risk) and assets on operatnng
leases included in property, plant and equipment.

‘Common Equity Tier 1
(CET1) capital ratio

Common Equity Tier 1 capital, divided by, risk-weighted assets.

Cost of risk

Impairment losses on financial assets, divided by, average principal employed.

Cost to income ratio

The sum of administrative expenses and provisions for liabilities and charges,
divided by, net operating income.

Gross asset yield

Net operating income less interest expense and similar charges, divided by,
average principal employed.

Leverage ratio.

. Total Tier 1 capital, divided by, total leverage ratio exposure measure. Total

leverage ratio exposure measure is total assets excluding derivatives and
intangible assets, and adjusted for off-balance sheet items such as pipeline and
undrawn collateral, exposure value for derivatives and transitional adjustments?.

Liability yield

Interest expense and similar charges, divided by, average principal employed.

Liquidity coverage
ratio

Liquidity buffer, divided by, total 30-day net cash outflows in a standardnsed
stress scenario.

Loan book

The sum of loans and advances to customers’ (net of loss allowance and falr
value adjustments for hedged risk) and the carrying amount of assets on
operating leases included in property, plant and equipment.

Management expenses
ratio

The sum of administrative expenses and prowsaons for liabilities and charges,
divided by, average principal employed.

Net interest margm '

Net operating income, divided by, average prmcnpal employed.

Return on lending
assets before tax

Profit before tax, divided by, average principal employed.

Return on tangible
equity

Profit after tax (adjusted to deduct distributions made to holders of capital
securities), divided by, average tangible equity. Average tangible equity is
calculated as, total equity less capital securities and intangible assets at the
beginning of the period, plus total equity less capital securities and mtanglble
assets at the end of the period, divided by two.

Risk-weighted assets

A measure of a bank’s assets adjusted for their associated risks. Rlsk weightings
are established in accordance with Prudential Regulation Authority rules and are
used to assess capital requirements and adequacy under Pillar-1.

Total capital ratio

Total regulatory capital, divided by, risk-weighted assets.

Total Tier 1 capital
ratio

Total Tier 1 capital, divided by, risk-weighted assets.

Tinthe year ended 31 December 2019, for the purpose of this KPI calculation, loans and advances to customers includes loans transferred
to assets held for sale, as they are still considered to be part of the Group's overall loan book until derecognised.

2 Transitional adjustments refer to adjustments for phasing in the impact of IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments adoption in accordance with
EU regulatory transitional arrangements.
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